 CRISik

A STANDARD & POOR’S COMPANY

The financial details and capital evolution of the transfer'ée/resulting and transferor/demerged

Name of the Company:

CRISIL LIMITED

(Rs. in Crorés)

1. Networth includes equity share capital and all reserves and surplus'e,s including securities premiun

: 1 year prior to 2 years prior to
Unaudited | /S Perlast Audited | the last 1 oo A dited
Financial Year Audited . .
Financial Year Financial Year |
30-Jun-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Equity Paid up Capital 7.15 7.14 7.07 7.02°
Reserves and surplus 784.78 | 720.25 601,77 447 .44
Carry forward losses . - - - . -
Net Worth . 791.93 727.39 608.84 - 454 .46
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - ' -
Secured Loans - - - -
“lUnsecured Loans - . - -
Fixed Assets 64.71 70.83 83.64 -96.66
Income from Operations 452.22 903.37 789.28. 736.60
Total Income 453,39 935.41 832.18 759.25
Total Expenditure 329.23 628.02 542.84 488.96
Profit before exceptional item 142.85 307.39  289.35 27028
|Exceptional item - - 99.36 .
Profit before Tax 142.85 307.39 388.71 270.28
Profit after Tax 97.82 215.51 281.18 192.86
Cash profit 109.64 239.43 304.44 216.78
EPS (Basic) 13.70 30.37 39.91 | 2749
EPS (Diluted) 13.49 30.03 39.79 27.34
Book value 110.84 102.51 86.41 | 64.79
Notes:

2. Cash profit is calculated by adding depreciation and amortization to profit after tax
3. Book value of shares is calculated by dividing the networth by the total outstanding shares

For CRISIL Limited

Minal Bhosale -

Company Secretary
ACS 12999

CRISIL Limited
Corporate identity Number: L67120MH1987PLC042363

S'L

Ranictarad Nffire: CRISH Hnulcp. Central Avente. Hiranandani Business Park. Powai. Mumbai - 400 076. Phone: +91 22 3342 3000 | Fax: +91 22 3342 3001



GLOBAL RESEARCH & ANALYTICS.
The financial details and capital evolution of the transferee/resulting and transferor/demerged

companies for the previous 3 years as per the audited statement of Accounts

‘Name of the Company: PIPAL RESEARCH ANALYTICS AND
INFORMATION SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE

LIMITED
' (Rs. in Crores)
As per last 1 yeér prior to the | 2 years prior to the
Audited Audited Financial | . last Audited last Audited
Year Financial Year Financial Year
- 30-Jun-15 | 31-Dec-14. 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-12
Equity Paid up Capital 0.01 0.01 0.01 . 0.01
Reserves and surplus , 10.46 9.22 6.77 3.79
Carry forward losses - - L __ .
Net Worth 1047 | v 9.23 6.78 3.80
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - -
Secured Loans , - - - o
Unsecured Loans - - - -1 -
Fixed Assets 5.65 6.23 S 759 8.95
Income from Operations 13.33 28.24 32.66 32.60
Total Income ~13.33 28.27 32.72 _ 32.63 |
Total Expenditure | 1159 24.58 2842 2837
Profit before Tax 174 | 3.69 4.30 425
Profit after Tax | 123 2.45] 299 . 288
Cash profit 1.89 : - 3871 - C 447 3.98
EPS 1,234.57 2,450.75 2,986.09 2,877.04
Book value ’ 10,469.50 o 9,234.93 6,784.17 ‘ 3,798.08

Notes: ' .
1. Networth includes equity share capital and all reserves and surpluses including securities premium

2. Cash profit is calculated by adding depreciation and amortization to profit after tax
3. Book value of shares is calculated by dividing the networth by the total outstanding shares

For PIPAL RESEARCH ANALYTICS AND ‘lNFORMATION SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED -

Minal Bhosale ‘ o v
Authorised Signatory - ‘ 573
: Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Corporate ldentity Number: U731 00MH2004PTCZ44103

Reglstered Office: CRISIL House, Centrai Avenue, Huranandam Business Park, Powal Mumbai - 400 076. Phone: +91 22 3342 3000 | Fax: +91 22 3342 3001




s

o

COALITION

ANAIATICS | INTELLIGERNGF

Coalition Development Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd-
Unit 2, 7" Floor, Bldg. S & 6, Mindspace SEZ,

Thane Belapur Rd, Airoli, Navi Mumbai, India - 400708

Tel: +91 22 39116400 Fax: +91 22 66733721

The financial details and capital evolution of the transferee/resuiting
and transferor/demerged companies for the previous 3 years
as per the audited statement of Accounts

Name of the Company:

 COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

(Rs. in Crores)

Audited As per last 1 year priorto - | 2 years prior to the
: Audited the last Audited last Audited
Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
o 30-Jun-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Equity Paid up Capital 0.05 . 0.05 0.05 0.056
Reserves and surplus 7.56 7.30 6.45 5.37
Carry forward losses - - - -
| Net Worth - '7.61 7.35 6.50 5.42
Miscellaneous - ' - . -
Expenditure |
Secured Loans - - - _ -
Unsecured Loans ' - - - ‘ -
Fixed Assets 1.70 1.76 1.57 1.13
| Income from Operations 2.27 6.92 7.42 11.39
Total Income 2.38 7.14 7.91 11.50
Total Expenditure 1.98 5.87 6.56 9.65
Profit before Tax 0.39 1.27 1.35 1.85 |
Profit after Tax 0.26 0.85 1.08 1.34
Cash profit '0.33 1.16 1.27 1.59
EPS o 52.24 169.93 216.54 | 267.99
Book value 1,521.46 1,469.22 1,299.30 1,083.76
’ )
Notes:

1. Networth includes equity share capital and all reserves and surpluses including securities premium
+ 2. Cash profitis calculated by adding depreciation and amortization to profit after tax
3. Book value of shares is calculated by dividing the networth by the total outstanding shares

For COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

tws-b .

Minal Bhosale
Authorised Signatory

Registered Office: CRISIL House, Central Avenue, Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, Mumbai 400 076
“Tel. : 022-3342300 Fax : 022-3342 38210 )
CIN: U72300MH2004PTC149360

’ | 54,




Mercator Info-Services India Private Limited

Unit 24, 5t Floor, Bldg. 5 & 6, Mindspace SEZ,

Thane Belapur Rd, Airoli, Navi Mumbeai, India - 400708

Tel: +91 22 61125200

The financial details and capital evoiution of the transféreelresulting and
transferor/demerged companies for the previous 3 years as per the audited statement

Name of the Company:

of Accounts

MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(Rs. in Crores)

Audited As per last 1 year prior to | 2 years prior to
: Audited the last Audited the last
" Financial Financial Year Audited
Year Financial Year
30-Jun-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14- 31-Mar-13

Equity Paid up Capital 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Reserves and surplus 6.60 5.79 2.92 1.25
Carry forward losses - - - -
Net Worth 6.70 5.89 3.02 1.35
Miscellaneous - - - -
Expenditure
Secured Loans - - - R
Unsecured Loans - - - -
Fixed Assets 5.18 4,66 | 2.76 2.59
Income from 6.69 23.53 13.71 7.56.
Operations
Total Income- 6.78 23.53 | 13.71 7.56
Total Expenditure 5.77 19.94 11.62 6.41
Profit before Tax 1.02 3.59 2.09 1.15
Profit after Tax 0.81 . 2.87 1.67 092}
Cash profit 1.21 413 2.54 -1.69
EPS 80.96 287.26 167.34 91.85
Book value - 670.17 589.21 301.94 134.60
Notes:

1. Networth includes equity share ;:apital and all reserves

premium

and surpluses including securities

2. Cash profit is calculated by adding depreciation and amortization to profit after tax
3. Book value of shares is calculated by dividing the networth by the total outstanding shares

For MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

gt

Minal Bhosale
Authorised Sighatory

Regis_tered Office: CRISIL House, Central Avenue, Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, Mumbai 400 076

Corporate Identity Number: U72300MH2010PTC211572

SS




The Financials of Last Three Years of CRISIL Limited are available on the website of
CRISIL at the link : http://www.crisil.com/investors/financial-reports.html
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CRISIL Limited

_Statement of Financial Results for the quarter and half year endad June 39, 2815

kNM%MK«é 4

- {Rs. In Crorg)

PARTI Consolidated Standalone
3 Months 3 Months | Corresponding3 | & Momths | Corresponding & 3Months  Corresponding 3| 6 Months | Cerresponding §
Particulars ended ended Months ended | ended KMontls ended | Year endad 3 Months ended ended fonths ended ended Months ended  Year ended
304Jun-1% 31.Mar-15 30-Jun-14 30Jun.1s 30Jun-14 J1.Dec.14 30-Jun-15 H-Moras J0-Jun-14 30-Jun.15 30-Jun14 31.0ec.14
Unsudited | Unaudited Unaudited Unzudited Unaudited Audited Unauditad Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited:
1. Income frem operations :
£ Net sales { incoms from operations 32647 A 304.7¢ 526 41 377 1.253.38 23044 222.98 249.8% 452.22 439.67 3.3
B. Otaer oparetingintoma 0.33 3.3 [k} 277 0.5¢ 14 0.54 053 CEl 117 1.10 748
1, Total incoime from operations 32856 30182 305.13 83718 £14.36 1,254.82 23678 2251 220.44 453.3% $40.17 305.85
2. Expenditure ) .
A Staf expenses 17283 150.06 150.57 323.89 29C.45 56294 €3.50 84.00 8§5.30 177.50 {6345 - 328.71
B.  Rengxpenses 11.88 1188 122 2373 1.2 47.73 8.34 8.87 £.£3 ‘T XA 35.62
_C.  Estabishmont gxpenses 1:.03 .28 10.37 21.2¢ 20.55 44.58 8.27 17 .18 602 ‘444 3285
D, Profacsonal feas 137 15.54 12.2¢ 29.3C 2361 5414 2248 2658 3137 §2.05 58.57 119.1¢
£ Trarsl expanses §.51 3.5 9.42 S8 19.50 .02 4.7¢ 4.87 £.41 J£6 173 23.84
F. Associgte senice fess 8.3 3.39 09 1758 17.89 358 8.12 $.2) £L5 ‘132 ‘156 3528
6. Othar expansas (Refer note 5 1134 1568 11.5¢ 26.3¢ 26.61 52.16 877 10.39 £E3 718 596 3053
H. . Depraciation { AmodiZation 947 336 534 1936 17.85 35142 5.3% . §.00 6.4 - *1.82 “1.9¢ 2342
2. Total expenditure ©AELS paili) 22534 173.26 440,58 904.01 168.57 160.56 159,62 329.23 3143 530.58
3, Profitfreri aperationsbefore other income, intsrestand 8154 1641 7959 157.92 17338 25031 62.21 61.95 60.82 124.16 129.34 21530
exceplionaliteins {1 2} . ) ‘
4. Otharincente {Refer rote B} 10.35 310 306 1345 5.3 25.85 14.00 ¢ 463 £.23 18.5¢ A 324
5. Profit brefore interest and exceptional items {3 + 4) 3186 A 2.5 7.7 178.703 376.05 wa §6.64 $7.08 142.85 - 13985 367.38
6. Mrerest expense ] ] . B i . . : B . . R . - .
7. Profit after interest buf bafore exceptional items (5 - 6} 91.86 - 7351 82.75 3L 17973 376.06 76.21 66.64 67.05 142.85 129.85 307,38
8. Sxcepbionzl HEm . B . i R .' R - ] R . 4
8. Profit from ordinary activitles bofore tax [T + 3} 91.36 79.51 82.75 171.3%7 179.73 376.08 fial §6.64 £7.05 142.85 139.85 307.3¢
10, Tax expense . 26,94 23.4¢ 24.92 50,13 53.19 107,62 | z4.01 . 21.63 .12 45,4 21.97 91.65
1. Hetprofit for the geriod {8 . 10} ) 5492 56.3¢ 57.83 121,24 126.54 268.44 52.20 45,61 46.93 91.81 97.8¢ 215.51
12, Paid g Equty Share Cagina { Face velve o7 R 1 cash ) 715 1 7.0 7145 74¢ 7.4 716 . 7.44 7.10 715 7.10 7.4
13, Reseives {excluding revaiualion reseves) - - - - $41.21 - - - - 720,28
14. Earnings Per Shate {EPS } . ] ) i
‘Basic (ot snwgised) 9.09° 7.30 £.16 <6.9¢ 1788 J7E3 731 6.33 BEZ 237G 1388 3037
Diavzed (Noz annualsed) 895 |- 7.76 £.04 16.72 | 17.71 37.4% 7.3 6.23 E£2 “34¢ “3.7C 3203
rd

July 17,2015
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PART Il Cansolidatsd:” Standalone
3 Months 3Months - Corresponding 3| 6 Moriths |, Comgsponding 6 IMonths | Corresponding 3| 6 Months  [Comesponding§ |
Particulars endad ended Months ended <gnded " | . Months ended | Year ended 3 Months ended ended Months ended anded Months e‘n_ded | Yearended
36Jun-15 | 31-Mar15 30-Jun-14 30-Jun13 3 o 30-Jun-14 31:Dsc-14 30-Jun-13 31 Mar-15 30-Jun-14 -Jun-15 . 30‘4un;,14 B 31De'~::-14
O : Unaudited Unaadited Unaudited Unaudifed Unauditad Audited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited {naudited Rudited -
A. PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDING i i
1. Public sharsheiding . o ) . ! . : - _
(A Humber of shaes 2361795 23,524,516 23,129,491 23,617,381|, 23,129.491] 23,524,516 23,517.581 . 23,524,518, 23,129,691 23,?1:7,93?‘ : 23.1294%1 23,52&315
3] ewcentags o sharehoiding 33.96% 32.57% 32.5%% 3E06% 3259% 32.37% 33.06% 32.97% 3‘2.59% éfi.C*S“_(a : J254% ]‘2,_.’9.‘%
Promoters and promolers group ; -
2} Pledged/Encumbered : L —
- Mumber of Shares HIL g HIL fiL NIL NIL L i L HIL NIL - HIL NIL
-Perzentzge of shzres (35 3 % of the tetal sharenolding of oromoter znd : | ' o o ]
proracter group) : HIL ML L | L HIL AlL ML NiL HIL NIL i iMIL: NIL
- Percantage of shares ‘as @ % of e tota share captal of the compary] HIL NL ML NL HIL NIL L HNIL ML N‘lL ML HIL
b} Hen-encambered ¢ . i . - s ___ . - SN
- Mumber of Shaves 47,332,539 | 47632539 47822639 37822233 ] 4183253¢ | 47832538 | A7E3Z63) 47832639 47.832.53% 47:332,:53?' - 47.852.639- | 418326381
-Percentzge of shares (3s 3 % of the tctal sharenalding of promoter znd S b ’ ) S . o L . .
_ |gramcter group) i 190% _100% 106% 1065 300% 120% _100%: 100% 100%, "lEfFl% ‘ 160% - 100%
- Penantage of sharss {as a % of the tota chare captal of ihe company) 56.39% €71.03% 67.41% 66.94% 57.41% $2.03% :65.54% 67.02% _67:41% 659-’-% 67.4°% 67.03%
Particulars 3 months ended 39-June-15}
B. INVESTORS COMPLAINTS
Jending a: tae beginniag of the quartar ©XNi : ‘
Reczived duving the uarter 1 1 |
Jisposed of Guiing she quarler [ 1 -
Jemairing urresolved at the end of he quarer Ni |

July 17,2015
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LRISIL Limited

Statzment of Segment Results for the quarter and half year ended June 30, 2015

{Rs. In Crore}

" Consolidated Standalone
3 onths IMonths  Comesponding3 6 Months | Corresponding & . : 3Honths | Conesponding3| &Months  Corresponding 6
Particulats ended endeil lonths ended endad Months ended . | Year ended 3 Months ended ended Months endetd onded Months ended  Year endad
30-Jun-15 . Mar.i5 -tundd 30Jun.15 Wdun4 3.0ec-44 W15 3.Mar15 30.Jun-14 30-Jun-15 6 Jun-14 3.Dec14
Unaudited | Unaudited Unagdited - Unaudited Unaudited Audited Unzudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited
1. Operating revenue ' . ) )
A Rating sarvices 198.58 104.41 111.85 312.96 2748 d48.04 108 68 104.41 111.85 21296 23778 £45.04
B. Researca samvices . - 206.17 190.66 178.80 396.83 35E.5C 124.89 121.5¢ 117.57 107.98 229.26 21249 453.33
. Advisary sanices 14.45 a7 1444 26462 2F.0% 63.45 . - - - - b
{ D. Total operating revenue from operations 1847 307.24 0479 7 636.41 $13.77 1,253.38 23014 72208 219.83 452.22 434.61 903.37
2 Less: Iater segmant revenua . . . R . i . . . . E
3, et income from operations {10 - 2} 129.47 A RN £36.41 51307 1,253.38] 2044 222,08 21983 522 439.67 903.37
4, Segment profits A
A Reting services 3533 33.28 3529 69.24 8628 16564 391 3328 3949 £9.19 £6.28 65.53
B Research safvicas 82.72 547 46.85 447,19 100.7E 2724 3684 32.46 2611 7230 £224 “3351
£. Acwisory sanvices {5761 (3.03) 0.76 (4.73) 2.21 6.65 - . . . |
{4 D. Total operating profit . 96.8% 8472 3718 181.61 18634 188.49 - 15.15 £5.74 £6.20 141.48 138.72 29321
5. Add /{Loass)
i, Intarast . . . - . . 4 . . . . . -
i, Other unalacable income net of uraliocabiz expenditure {Refar noie 6) 4.3 4.75 479 9.2 g2 2269 .28 3.5 5.93 1348 S 210
ii. Depreciation / Swortisation - 19.40% (3.95) (8.4} (12.33) {17,851 (35.12) {5.831 i6.001 {6.14) 11.83) 1195} (2:.92)
8, Profit from ordinary octivities before axceptional itsms and tax {4 .86 7951 82.75 137 17413 376.08] 5.1 €6.64 67.05 142.85 13¢.66 307.33
D+5 . . ) »
7. Exceptiongl tems - R | R .
8. Prior pesicd items - . . . . R - . . . . B
3. st profii frem ardinany activities bafore tax {€ + 7 +8} 9N.88 79.5 82.75 1R 175.73 376.08 5.4 £5.64 £7.05 142.85 135.86 307.33
Capltal employed {Refar note 5} )
A. Reting sarvices [46.83) 24.57 110,33 (45.83) 120.30} {15.84) {46.83; 2LET (10.30) 46.83) 10.3%) (1£.54)
B. Research sanvices 4133 | 99.54 13 14133 1134 .72 267.95 2443 254.94 _ 25795 25404 225148
C. Acvisary saivices 17,38 13.13 24.51 17.35 24,51 27.52 - - - - - -
D. Urallocatls fhet} 822.05 765.01 692.33 82205 £92.33 T44.67 58081 502.69 483.22 580.81 £83.22 520.74

Jaly 17, 2015

www.crisil.com



e CCRISILTimited . e S R T

__ ... . Siatementof Assetsand Liabilities. . e e e et e e e e e 2
’ ) : {Rs. im:?:rore’j
" Particulars Consolidated. . |- Standalone. -
As at As at As at As at
30-Jun-15 | 31-Dec-14 30-un-15| 31.Dec-14
: Unaudited | -Audited \Unaudited | Audited
A. Equity and liabilities L ‘ ' :
1. Shareholders’ funds . - _
{a} Share capital 7.15 7.14 715 . 714
{b) Reserve and surplus 92675 841.21 78478 720.95
Sub-tetal Shareholders’ funds 933.90 848.35 791.93 72139
2. Non-current liabilities ) B ' : '
{a} Trade payables . A7 - 9.83) I -
{b) Other liabilities _13.07) 1539 10.50 12.26
{c ) Provisions _10.04 857 9.85 10.27
Sub-otal non-current liabilities| .-~ 27:82[- - - 3511 20.35| 22.53
3. Current liabilities ' e ~ :
(a) Trade payables 100.92 110.14 4411 7112
{b) Other fiabilities _22129]  138.84 182.21 95.02
(c) Provisions - 43.15] 13217 3008 116.11
‘ Sub-total current liabilities| ~ 355.29] 381.15 256.40] 28225
|TOTAL - Equity and liabilities  B32001) . 1,264.61 1,068.68] 1,032.17
B. Assets .
- T Non-current assets ~ o ey R
{a) Fixed assets 107.98] 11688 §4.71 - 70.83
|{b) Goodwill on consolidation 315.03] -~ 315.03 - -
¢ } Investments 5.63] 563 151.39] 151.39
{d } Deferred tax assets {Net) 3257 29.91 -~ 2305 21.66
e} l:oans_and advances 5.5 ~ 476330 - 185.02] -
{f} Other assets ) , 0.81 053
_ Sub-total non-current assets| - 416.29 42943
2. Current-assets . _
{a) Invéstirients 293.45 355.52
{b) Trade receivables 20727 126.59
{c} Cash and bank balances 85.10 58.63
{d) Loans and advances - 4117 42.85
{e) Other assets ] ) : 2540 19.15
Sub-total current assets| £52.39 502.74
TOTAL - Assets ' 1,068.68| 1,032.17
July 17,2015 o T (; 3 www_crisil.com’




Notes:

1 The above results were reviewed by the Audit Committee on July 16, 2015 and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on July 17, 2015. :

2 The standalone unaudited financial results of the company for the quarter ended June 30, 2015 has
been subjected to limited review by the auditors. :

3 The Board of Directors has declared interim dividend of Rs. 4 per share having nominal value of Re. 1
each. The said dividend amount along with the dividend distribution tax thereon has not been provided

for in the books and will be accounted on payment basis.

4 The Company's operations predominantly relate to providing rating, research and advisory services.
Accordingly, revenues earned through rendering of these services represent the primary basis of

segment information set out above. :
P [

5 Assets and liabilities used interchangeably between segments has been cléssiﬁed as unallocable. The
Company believes that it is currently not practicable to allocate all assets and liabilities since a |
meaningful segregation of the available data is not feasible. ' |

6 Details of foreign exchange gain or loss are as under :

Details Forex Gain Included under | Forex loss included under
. other income ( Rs. Crore) other expense ( Rs.
. : Crore)
Quarter ended June 30, 2015 , . 6.82 Nil
Quarter ended March 31, 2015 Nil ' 2.67 ’
Quarter ended June 30, 2014 ) 1.29 Nil-
Half year ended June 30, 2015 . 6.82 2.67
Half year ended June 30, 2014 1.29 , 3.00
Year ended December 31, 2014 : 5.26 3.00

7 In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to.-the public
announcement for the buy back made by the Company on June 23, 2015, the Company initiated a L
buyback plan on July 2, 2015 from the open market through stock exchanges. The buyback plan closed e
on July 14, 2015. Under the buyback plan, the Company-acquired 511,932 Shares for a consideration :
of Rs. 101.98 Crores. The actual extinguishment of shares was completed on July. 16, 2015 due to
which the effect of the buyback will be recognised in the next quarter. : ‘

8 The promoters have not pledged any shares owned by them.

9 The Consolidated accounts include accounts of CRISIL Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries -
CRISIL Risk and Infrastructure Solutions Limited, Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services
India Private Limited, Coalition Development Systems (India) Private Limited, Mercator Info-Services
India Private Limited, CRISIL Irevna Information & Technology (Hangzhou) Co. Limited, CRISIL Irevna
UK Limited, CRISIL lrevna US LLC, CRISIL Irevna Argentina S.A., CRISIL Irevna Poland Sp.Zo.o.,
Coalition Development Limited and Coalition Development Singapore Pte Limited

L July 1 7,2015 www._crisil.com,




10 'Previous year/ quarter figures have béen. regrouped where necessaryto conform to curfent period.

. Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of CRISIL Limited
Gy g

Weraging Direchor & Chief Exeoutve Offioer
- Mumbai, July 17, 2015

July 17, 2015
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Limited Review Report

Review Report to
The Board of Directors
CRISIL Limited

1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited flnancial resuits of CRISIL
Limited (‘the Company’) for the quarter ended June 30, 2015 (the “Statement”), except
for the disclosures regarding ‘Public Shareholding' and ‘Promoter and Promoter Group
Sharehoiding' which have been traced from disclosures made by the management and
have not been reviewed by us. This Statement is the responsibility of the Company’s
management and has been approved by the Board of Directors, Our respons:br Ity is to
Issue a report on the Statement based on our review.

2. We conducted our review In accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE)
2410, Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of
the ‘Entity issued by the Instifute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard
requires that we plan and perform the review fo obtain moderate assurance as to whether
the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review Is limited primarily to inquiries
of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus

‘provides less assurance than an audit, We have not performed an audit and accordingly,
we do not express an audit opinion,

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attentlon that causes
us to believe that the accompanying Statement of unaudited financlal results prepared In
accordance with recognitlon and measurement principles laid down In Atcounting
Standard 25 “Interim Flnancial Reporting”, specifled under the Companies Act, 1956
which are deemed to be applicable as per section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with rule 7 of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other recognised accounting
practices and policies has not disciosed the information required to be disciosed in terms
of Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement Including the manner Iin which it is to be disclosed,
or that it contains any materfal misstatement.

tw

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
ICAj Firm registration number: 301003E

Chartered Accountants .
- . / ;SUE(,,? \

_—-f""/’ E

per Jayesh Gandhi N /8
Partner : \*@}x;wf s

Membership No.: 037924

Place; Murnbal o | |
Date: July 17, 2015 .
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Directors’ Report

Your Directors present the Tenth Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts

for the year ended on December 31, 2013.

Financial Results :

A summary of the Company’s financial performance is given below:

(Rupees in lakh)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
| Total Income for the year 3,271.67 3,262.64
“Profit / (Loss) before depreciation 577.90 536.11
Depreciation 148.32 110.70
" Profit / (Loss) before Tax 429.58 425.41
Provision for tax 130.97 137.71
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 298.61 287.70

Operations:

In 2013, the global economic environment remained subdued despite an improvement over 2012.
The European economy remained weak with no near-term signs of recovery, while the US economy
was on a recovery path. In 2013, the global banking industry remained stressed with lower
profitability despite recovery in trading volumes in certain asset classes. Banks are focusing on
improving cost-to-income ratios of their businesses, which led to stretched decision cycles, tough

pricing negotiations and tight client budgets.

Investments made in 2012 towards new approaches - sales team, work streams and go-to-market
strategies — began showing results in 2013. This has led to an expansion of our existing customer
base, addition of clients in newer work streams and strengthening of relationships with existing

clients. We also took a number of steps to manage costs through pruning of database costs,






Particulars regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange

Earning and Expenditure :

The particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and expenditure appear at note nos. 24 and 25
in the Notes to the Accounts. Since, the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the
other particulars relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption stipulated in the

Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are not

applicable.
Personnel :

Statement under Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies

(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended is not annexed as none of the employees are

covered under the provisions of the said section.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement as required under the provisions contained in section

217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 :

Your Directors hereby confirm that:

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts for financial year ended December 31, 2013, the

applicable accounting standards have been followed.

(ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at December 31, 2013 and of the profit of the

Company for the year ended on that date.

(i)  The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for financial year ended December 31,

2013 on a ‘going concern’ basis.



Impact of Companies Act 2013 :

In its pursuit of overhauling the Company Law in India and to make Indian business and companies
competitive and globally recognisable, the Companies Act 2013 (“new Act”) has been enacted on
August 30, 2013. However, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified 98 sections of the
new Act on September 12, 2013. The MCA is in the process of evaluating the rules for the various
sections of the new Act and is expected to notify the rest of the sections of the new Act, once the
respective rules are finalised. The Report of the Board of Directors and the notice of the Annual
General Meeting are prepared based on the provisions of the Companies Act 1956 and the sections

notified under Companies Act 2013 till the date of this notice.

Acknowledgements :

Your Directors wish to place on record their grateful appreciation for the continued support, co-
operation and assistance extended to the Company from time to time by the Company’s Bankers,
Clients, Vendors and various authorities for their confirmed support, and for the hard work put in

by the employees at all levels.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

=<0 :
Raman Uberoi
Director

Mumbai, February 3, 2014




























































NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the members of Pipal

Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited will be held on Friday,

April 11, 2014 at 10:30 am. at the registered office of the Company at CRISIL House,

Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, Mumbai 400 076 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business :

1.

Adoption of accounts

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Profit & Loss Account of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2013 and the audited Balance Sheet as at that date,

together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon.
Re-appointment of Mr. Raman Uberoi

To appoint director in place of Mr. Raman Uberoi, who retires by rotation and, being

eligible, seeks re-appointment.
Appointment of Auditors

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 224 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, S. R. B. C. & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants having firm registration No. 324982E, be and hereby re-appointed
statutory auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Meeting
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, on such

remuneration to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company.”



Special Business :

4,

Appointment of Mr. G. Ravishankar as Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 161(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, Mr. G. Ravishankar, who
was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of Directors of the Company
and who holds the office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is

hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

By order of the Board
For Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

Raman Uberoi
Director

Mumbai, February 3, 2014

NOTES:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and a proxy need not be a member of
the Company. A proxy form duly completed, stamped and signed should reach
the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of
the Annual General Meeting.

Members / Proxies should bring the duly filled Attendance Slip at the Annual General
Meeting. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorising their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the

Meeting.



Explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 4

Mr. G. Ravishankar was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company under Section
161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 effective September 16, 2013 and holds office up to the
date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has received notice in writing
from a member along with a deposit of Rs. 500 proposing the candidature of Mr. G.
Ravishankar as Director of the Company. None of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company or their relatives, except Mr. G. Ravishankar, is

directly/indirectly interested in this resolution.

By order of the Board
For Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

-
.

Raman Uberoi
Director

Mumbai, February 3, 2014
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Ninth Annual General Meeting of the members of Pipal
Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited will be held on Thursday,
April 11, 2013 at 10:30 a.m. at the registered office of the Company at ‘The Mira’, G-1, Plot
no 1&2, Ishwar Nagar, Near Okhla crossing, New Delhi 110 065 to transact the following
business:

Ordinary Business :

1.

Adoption of accounts

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Profit & Loss Account of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2012 and the audited Balance Sheet as at that date,
together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

Re-appointment of Mr. Arun Panicker

To appoint director in place of Mr. Arun Panicker, who retires by rotation and, being
eligible, seeks re-appointment.

Appointment of Auditors

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 224 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, S. R. B. C. & Co., Chartered Accountants
having firm registration No. 324982E, be and hereby re-appointed statutory auditors
of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Meeting until the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, on such remuneration to be fixed
by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

By order of the Board
For Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

Raman Uberoi
Director

Mumbai, March 18, 2013



NOTES:

1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and a proxy need not be a member of
the Company. A proxy form duly completed, stamped and signed should reach
the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of
the Annual General Meeting.

Members / Proxies should bring the duly filled Attendance Slip at the Annual General
Meeting. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board

Resolution authorising their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the
Meeting.



Director’s Report

Your Directors present the Ninth Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts

for the year ended on December 31, 2012.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

A summary of the Company’s financial performance is given below:

(Rupees in lakh)
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011

Total Income for the year 3,262.64 2,892.74
Profit / (Loss) before depreciation 536.11 456.57
Depreciation 110.70 85.06
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 425.41 371.51
Provision for tax 137.71 88.54
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 287.70 282.97

OPERATIONS:

The Company has consolidated its leadership position in the research and analytics space, adding
numerous new clients in 2012, including banks and Fortune 500 companies. The high-end research
has enabled clients to improve their rankings, increase research coverage, enter new markets, get
better business insights, and deliver path-breaking research. The regulatory and risk management

practice has helped clients comply with regulations.

The rebranding of Pipal Research to CRISIL GR&A has strengthened our position as a global
analytics provider. The new positioning leverages on the strong CRISIL brand, and has received

positive reception from stakeholders, including customers, employees and industry bodies.



Directors:

During the year, there was no change in the constitution of the Board. In accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Arun Panicker retires by rotation and being eligible,

seeks reappointment.

Auditors:

The Statutory Auditors of the Company, S. R. B. C. & Co., Chartered Accountants, hold office up to the

ensuing Annual General Meeting and the Board recommends their reappointment.

Particulars regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange

Earning and Expenditure:

The particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and expenditure appear at note nos. 24 and 25
in the Notes to the Accounts. Since, the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the
other particulars relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption stipulated in the
Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are not

applicable.
Personnel:
Statement under Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended is not annexed as none of the employees are

covered under the provisions of the said section.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement as required under the provisions contained in section

217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956

Your Directors hereby confirm that:



(1

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

In the preparation of the annual accounts for financial year 2012, the applicable accounting

standards have been followed.

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at December 31, 2012 and of the profit of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for financial year 2012 on a ‘going

concern’ basis.

Acknowledgements

Your Directors wish to place on record their grateful appreciation for the continued support, co-

operation and assistance extended to the Company from time to time by the Company’s Bankers,

Clients, Vendors and various authorities for their confirmed support, and for the hard work put in

by the Employees at all levels.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Arun Panicker
Chairman

Mumbai, February 14, 2013
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Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Pipal Research Analytics and Informatlon Services India Private Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Pipal Research Analytics And Information
Services India Private Limited (‘the Company’) as at December 31, 2012 and also the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date
annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India.
Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) [‘the Order’'] issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the
Companies Act, 1956, we enclose, in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

i.  We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

il. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

iii. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

iv. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report comply with the accounting standards referred to in
sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

v. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on December
31, 2012, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the
directors is disqualified as on December 31, 2012 from being appointed as a director in
terms of clause (@) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;




L] . |
14
P! . Do

Chartered Accountants

Auditors’ Report

Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Year ended December 31, 2012

Page 2 of 5

vi. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the said accounts give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at December
31, 2012;

b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that
date; and

¢) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

—(»
R Be ©
‘ForSRBC & Co.
Firm registration number: 324982E
Chartered Accountant

s ® 2 ==

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No.: 102102

Place: Mumbai
Date: February 14, 2013
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date
Re: Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

@

(i

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)
(vii)

(il

(ix)

€))

)

©

€))

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the year in
accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

There was no substantial disposal of fixed assets during the year.

The Company is engaged in the business of providing research services and therefore
the provisions of clause (ii) of paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted/taken any loans, secured or unsecured to/from companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act,
1956. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (iii) (a) to (g) of paragraph 4 of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is
an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and
the nature of its business, for the purchase of fixed assets and for rendering of
services. The activities of the Company do not involve purchase of inventory and the
sale of goods. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major
weakness or continuing failure to correct any major weakness in the internal control
system of the Company in respect of these areas.

In our opinion, there are no contracts or arrangements that need to be entered in the
register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause (v) (b) of paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not
prescribed maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section
209 of the Companies Act, 1956 for the products of the Company.

The Company is reqular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, investor education and protection fund,
income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to custom duty and excise duty are not
applicable to the Company.
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(1)

©

(69)]

(xi)

(xii

(xiiD)

xiv)

(xv)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, investor education and protection fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, sales-tax, customs
duty, excise duty, cess and other material undisputed statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the records of the Company, amounts of income tax dues disputed by
the Company, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which | Forum where
Statute. Dues (Rs.) the amount dispute is
relates pending
Income Tax Income Tax 7,544,894 | A.Y.2007-2008 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 demands of Income Tax
raised Appeal
against the 25,480 | A.Y.2008-2009 | Commissioner
Company of Income Tax
Appeal
36,217,002 | A.Y.2008-2009 | Income tax
Appellate
Tribunal
15,161,300 | A.Y.2009-2010 | Commissioner
of Income Tax
Appeal

The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has
not incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial year.
The Company has not taken any loans from financial institutions, banks and not
issued any debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
documents and records produced to us, the Company has not granted loans and
advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other
securities.

In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund /
society. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xiii) of paragraph 4 the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xiv) of
paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions.
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(xvi) The Company has not taken any term loans during the year.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term investment.

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties or
companies covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956.

(xix) The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year.

(xxi) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

==l .
P- B C k

For SRBC & Co.
Ehartered Accountants
irm's Registration Num®“er: 324982E

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

Place: Mumbai
Date: February 14, 2013




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at December 31,2012

Particulars Notes As at
December 31,2012 December 31, 2011
Rupees Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 100,000 100,000
Reserves and surplus 4 37,880,828 9,110,456
Non-current liabilities
Trade payables 5 2,222,644 64,075
Current liabilities
Trade payables 5 37,323,344 24,177,749
Other current liabilities 6 41,254,207 7,354,105
Short-term provisions 7 9,550,683 12,010,793
TOTAL 128,331,706 52,817,178
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 8 89,529,477 14,873,443
Deferred tax assets 9 4,443,221 1,676,357
Long-term loans and advances 10 8,173,165 3,378,532
Other non-current assets 12 196,253 -
Current assets
Trade receivables 11 326,750 62,885
Cash and bank balances 13 19,199,679 21,062,147
Short-term loans and advances 10 6,463,161 11,458,507
Other current assets 12 - 305,307
TOTAL 128,331,706 52,817,178
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Jese te

For SRBC & Co.
Firm Registration No.: 324982E
Chartered Accountants p

L‘C P

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No.: 102102

Date: February 14, 2013
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Pipal Research
Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

G V Mani
Director

Date: February 14, 2013
Place: Mumbai

%n Uberoi

Director




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended December 31, 2012

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
Notes December 31,2012 December 31, 2011
Rupees Rupees

INCOME

Income from operations 14 326,013,594 283,971,452

Other income 15 250,058 5,302,885

TOTAL 326,263,652 289,274,337

EXPENSES

Personne! expenses 16 185,061,952 179,595,836

Establishment expenses 17 43,538,922 34,300,028

Other expenses 18 44,051,159 29,721,367

Depreciation / amortization 8 11,070,131 8,505,625

TOTAL 283,722,164 252,122,856

Profit before tax 42,541,488 37.151.481
Tax Expense

Current tax (Refer note 20) 16,537,981 10,530,623

Deferred tax benefit (2,766,865) (1,676,357)
Total tax expense 13,771,116 8,854,266
Profit after tax 28,770,372 28,297,215
Profit for the year from operations 28,770,372 28,297,215
Eamnings per share : Nominal value of Rs.10 per share
Basic and Diluted eamings per share computed on the basis of profit from operations 2,877.04 2.829.72
Number of Shares used in Computing Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 10,000 10,000
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even daleCn
For SRB C & Co.

Firm Registration No.: 324982E
Chartered Accountants

L“_V_,c s W

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No.: 102102

Date: February 14, 2013
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Pipal Research
Analytics and Information Services India Pr’ " “nited

.[,U\w.

-
GV Mani Raman Ub
Director Director - :

Date: February 14, 2013
Place: Mumbai




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended December 31,2012

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Rupees Rupees
A. |Cash Flow from operating activities :
Profit before tax 42,541,488 37,151,481
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 11,070,131 8,505,625
Provision for doubtful deposits - 189,960
Unrealised Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss 5,015,380 15,342
(Profit)/ loss on sale of fixed assets 5,933,797 (108.,000)
Interest on bank deposits (17,978) (3,724
Operating profit before working capital changes 64,542,818 45,750,684
Movements in working capital
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (263,865) 15,724,131
- (Increase)/decrease in sundry deposits 7,185,782 137,400
- (Increase)/decrease in advances recoverable in cash or kind (3,935,857) -
- (Increase)/decrease in accrued revenue 290,000 (290,000)
- (Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses 138,269 (1,663,016)
- Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 15,305,017 1,357,672
- Increase/(decrease) in fee received in advance 28,951,291 (41,752.,655)
- Increase/(decrease) in provision for leave encashment 9,975 4,127,713
- Increase/(decrease) in provision for gratuity (2,470,085) 187,649
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (67,422) 883,209
Cash generated from operations 109,685,923 24,462,787
- Taxes paid (19,725.461) (10,848,053)
Net cash generated from operating activities - (A) 89,960,462 13,614,734
B. [Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of fixed assets (93,258,126) (4,396,023)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1,598,164 108,000
Investment in fixed deposits (134,100) -
Interest on bank deposits 21,132 -
Net used in investing activities - (B) (91,772,930) (4,288,023)
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B) (1,812.468) 9,326,711
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance 21,012,147 11,685,436
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing balance 19,199,679 21,012,147
Net Increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,812.468) 9,326,711
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended December 31, 2012

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Rupees Rupees
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents as at
Cash on hand - 2,140
With banks on current account 19,199,679 21,010,007
19,199,679 21,012,147

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Cash flow statement

.S per our report of even date

For SRB C & Co.
Firm Registration No.: 324982E
Chartered Accountants

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No.: 102102

Date: February 14, 2013
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Pipal Research
Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

- " v’\’ﬂ/{"\//_\
G V Mani R_man Uberoi
Director Director

Date: February 14,2013
Place: Mumbai
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2.1
a)

b)

2.2

23

24

25

Pipal Research Anatytics and Information Services India Private Limited ("Pipal” or "Company”) 1s is engaged i the provision of low-risk IT Enabled Scnices i the area of
corporate research.

Basis of Preparanion of Financiul Statement
‘The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounnng principles in India (Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on an
acerual basis in compliance with all material aspect of the Accounting Standards (AS) Notified by Companies Accounting Standard Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant
provistons of the Companies Act, 1956, The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used 1n the previous year except for

the change in Accounting Policy explained in Pont No 2.1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Change in accounting policy

Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Statements

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the revised Schedule V1 notified under the Compantes Act 1956, has become applicable to the Company. for preparation and
presentation of its financial statements. The adoption of revised Schedule V1 does not impact recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial
statements, However, it has sigmficant impact on presentation and disclosures made in the financial statements, The Company has also reclassified the previous year figures in
accordance with the reqoirements applicable in the current year.

Current/ Non-Current classif _of assets_and habilities
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other cntena set out in the revised Schedule V1 to 1he
Companies Act, 1956, Based on the nature of products and the time between the acq on of assets for p and their real in cash and cash equivalents, the

Company has ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of current and non current classificaton of assets and labilines

to make esti and p that affect the
reported amounts of assets and habilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operauons during the reporting year end
Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estinates.

Fix 1A
Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any autributable cost o' brmging the asset 10 1ts
working condinion for its intended use.

Software purchased is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.
Deprec|

Depreciation 1s provided using the Straight Line Method ('SLM') as per the useful lives of the assets estimated by the management, or at the rates prescnbed under schedule X1V
of the Act, whichever 1s higher.

Assets Rates (SLM) Schedule XIV
Rates (SLM)
Fumiture and Fixtures 10 00% 6.33%
Oftice Equipment 10.00% 4 75%
Computers 33.33% 16 21%

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease lerm or useful hife of the asset, whichever is less

Fixed assets having original cost being tess than Rs. 5,000 individually are depreciated fully in the year of purchase

Impairment

The carrying wmounts of assets are reviewed at cach balance sheet date if there is any indicauon of impairment based on intemal/external factors. An impairment loss 1s
recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ils recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 1s the greater of the asset's net selling price and value in use.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its rematning useful life
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Revenue is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured

Income from operations comprises of income from rescarch activities carried out by the Company during the year. Revenuce for committed research services is recogmsed on time
period basis based on contracts with the client . Revenue from research services are recognised in the period in which such assignments are carried out or milestones achieved or
as per agreement with client

Revenue is recognised on a tume proportion basis taking into account the amount o ding and the rate applicable

Renrement_and other employee benefits

Reurement benefits in the form of Provident Fund 1s a defined contribution scheme and the contribunions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the
coniributions 1o the respective funds are due. There are no other obiigations other than the contribution payable 1o the respective authonies or trusts

Gratuity hability 1s provided for on the basis of an actuanal valuaton on projected unit credit method made at the end of cach financial year

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on Long term p d absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The acluanal valuaton is
done as per projected umit credit method
Actuarial 1 are fiately taken to Stater of profit and loss and are not deferred

Operating Leages
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases Operanng lease payments are
recognized as itn expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Foreiun Curreney Trans:
Inmitial Recogmition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in reporting curtency by applying to the foreign currency amounts, the average exchange rates for the month prior to the month in
which the ransaction takes place.

Conversion

Foreign currency monelary items are reported using the closing rates. Non monetary items which are carried i terms of histonical costs denominated 11y a foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction

lxchange Difference

Exchange differences, ansing on scttlement of monetary items or on Company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were ininally recorded during the year,
or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expense in the year in which they arise

Segment Reporting Polices
Identification of seyments

The Company operates in a single primary business segment - providing research services
The analysis of geographical segiments is based on the area in which there are major customers of the Company

2.1

o

214

Actof 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year tnung differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal
of nming differences of earlier years

Deferred tax is measured based on the 1ax rates and the tax laws cnacted or substantively cnacted ar the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Labiliues ure
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set oft current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilines relate to the taxes on
income levied by same goverming taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recogmsed only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufticient future taxable mcome will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses. all deferred tax ussets
are recognised only if there 1s virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recogmses unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that 1t has become reasonably
certain that sufficient future 1axable sncome will be available aganst which such deferred tax assets can be realised

Fhe carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed at each Balance Shect date. The Company writes down the carrying amount of « Deferred Tax Assct to the extent 1t 1s
no longer reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which Deferred Tax Asset can be reahised. Any such
write down is reversed to the extent that it becoines reasonably or virtually cernain, as the case may be. that sufficient future taxable income will be available

r Share

Eamings
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period anributable 10 equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equny shares
outstanding during the period

For the purpose of calcutating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the pertod attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Provisions

A provision 1s recopnised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; 1t probable that an outflow of resources will be required 10 settle the obligation, in
respect of which a reliable esuniate can be made. Provisions are not discounted 1o 11s present value and are determined based on best esumate required to seutle the obligation at
the balance sheet date These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Cush and Cx

Cash and casb equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term imvestments with an oniginal maturity of three months or less.

sh Equiv - are
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Notes to the cial of Di ber 31,2012
3. Share capital December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Rupees Rupees
Authorised Capital:
100,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each (P.Y. 100,000 of Rs. {0 each) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up (P.Y. 10,000 of Rs.10 each) 100,000 100,000
All the shares are held by the Holding Company, CRISIL Limited. The Ultimate Holding Company is The McGraw-Hill
Comipanies, Inc., US.A

Total 100,000 100,000
{a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Lquity shares
December 31, 2012

Rupees Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Rs.10/- per share) 100,000 10,000
Outstanding at the end of the year 100,000 10,000

December 31, 2011

Rupees Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Rs.10/- per share) 100,000 10,000
Outstanding at the end of the year 100,000 10,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of cquity shares having par value of Rs. [0 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

and/ or their subsidi

ies/ associates

(c) Shares held by holding/ ulti holding Comp

4
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, are as below:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Particulars Rupees Rupees
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 are held by CRISIL Limited, Holding Company (P.Y. 10,000 of Rs.10 each) 100,000 100,000
(d) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder December 31, 2012

% holding in the class Nos.
liquity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid (PY Rs_10 ¢cach)
a) CRISLL Limited, Holding Company 100% 10,000
Namie of the shareholder December 31, 2011

% holding in the class Nos.
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid (PY Rs. 10 each)
a) CRISIL Limited, Holding Company 100% 10,000
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ bers and other declarations received from sharehold ding beneficial interest, the above

shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

garaing

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date ts Nil.

4. Reserves and surplus

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Rupees Rupees
Surplus / (deficit] in the statement of profit and loss
Bal as per last fi ial ents 9,110,456 (19,186,759)
Profit for the year 28,770,372 28,297,215
37,880,828 9,110,456 |

Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss

5. Trade payables

Decenmber 31, 2012

December 31,2011

Rupees Rupees
Current
Trade payables (refer note 2] for details of dues to micro and small enterprises) 37,323,344 24,177,749
37323344 24,177,749
Non-Current
Trade payables (refer note 21 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises) 2,222,644 64,075
2,222,644 64,075
Total 39,545,988 24,241,824
6. Other current liabilities December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Rupecs Rupees
Current
2,855,280 2,922,702
Fees received in advance 38,398,927 4,431,403
Total 41,254,207 7,354,105

7. Short-term provisions

December 31,2012

December 31, 2011

Rupees Rupees
Provision for employee benefits
Proviston for Gratuity {Refer note 29) 1,852,449 4,322,534
Provision for leave benefits 7,698,234 7,688,259
Total 9,550,683 12,010,793
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8. Fixed Assets

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
Ason Additions Deductions / Ason Upto For the Deductions / Upto Ason As on
January 1, 2012 Adjustments December 31,2012 | January 1, 2012 Year Adjustments December 31,2012 | December 31,2012 | December 31,201}
Furniture and Fixture 5,187,123 8,863,393 5,132,087 8,918,429 2,212,753 965,174 2,424,506 753,421 8,165,008 2,974,370
Office Equipments 5,882,663 12,858,151 4,647,249 14,093,565 2,414,334 1,420,882 2,267,101 1,568,115 12,525,450 3,468,329
Computers 33,091,262 10,357,521 7,718,548 35,730,235 27,945,323 4,063,210 7,718,549 24,289,984 11,440,251 5,145,939
Lease Improvements 11,879,979 61,179,061 10,831,615 62,227,425 8,595,174 4,620,865 8,387,382 4,828,657 57,398,768 3,284,805
Total 56,041,027 93,258,126 28,329,499 120,969,654 41,167,584 11,070,131 20,797,538 31,440,177 89,529,477 14,873,443
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
As on Additions Deductions / Ason Upto For the Deductions / Upto Ason Ason
January 1, 2011 Adjustments December 31,2011 | January 1, 2011 Year Adjustments December 31, 2011 | December 31,2011 | December 31, 2010
Furniture and Fixture 5,187,123 - - 5,187,123 1,532,578 680,175 - 2,212,753 2,974,370 3,654,545
Office Equipments 5,799,602 83,061 - 5,882,663 2,400,274 14,060 - 2,414,334 3,468,329 3,399,328
Computers 29,968,004 4,312,962 1,189,704 33,091,262 26,502,778 2,632,249 1,189,704 27,945,323 5,145,939 3,465226
Lease Improvements 11,879,979 - - 11,879,979 3,416,033 5,179,141 - 8,595,174 3,284,805 8,463,946
Total 52,834,708 4,396,023 1,189,704 56,041,027 33,851,663 8,505,625 1,189,704 41,167,584 14,873,443 18,983,045
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9 Deferred tax asset

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax liability
Provision for Grauuity 25,011 -
Gross deferred tax liability 25,011 -
Deferred tax asset
Fixed assets 2,019,157 1,115,571
Lease Rent amortisation 742,193 21,786
Provision for Leave Encashment 682,308 171,398
Provision for Bonus 1,006,377 -
Provision for Gratuity - 367,602
Disallowance under section 40(a) 18,197 -
Gross deferred tax asset 4,468,232 1,676,357
Net deferred tax asset 4,443,221 1,676,357

10 Loans and advances

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Rupees Rupees
Current
Sundry deposit
Unsecured, considered good 2,874,018 7,499,800
Doubtful - 189,960
2,874,018 7,689,760
Provision for doubtful security deposit - 189,960
2,874,018 7,499,800
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured considered good 1,437,636 1,877,955
Oth rloans.and advances
Prepatd expenses 1,989,413 2,080,752
Loans to employees 162,094 -
6,463,161 11,458,507
Non-Current
Sundry deposit
Unsecured, considered good 16,500 2,576,500
Other loans and advances
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 3,900,543 713,062
Prepaid expenses 42,040 88,970
Service Tax Input Credit (Net) 4,214,082 -
8,173,165 3,378,532 |
Total 14,636,326 14,837,039 |

11 Trade receivables

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Rupees Rupees
Unsecured, considered good unless slated otherwise.
Qustanding for a penod less stx months from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 326,750 62,885
Total 326,750 62,885

12 Others assets

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Rupees Rupees
Current
11s  red consid -ed good unless stated othenwisg
Interest accrued on fixed deposits - 15307
Accrued Revenue - 290,000
- 305,307
Non-current
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 12,153 -
Other bapk balances
- Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 184,100 -
{Deposit includes Fixed Deposits with Banks Rs.184,100 (P.Y. -NIL) marked as lien for Guarantees issued by Banks on behalf of]
the Conipany. (Refer note 19)
196,253 £
Total 196,253 305,307

13 Cash and bank balances

December 31, 2012
Rupees

December 31, 2011
Rupees

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash on hand

Balances with banks:

— On current accounts

Qther bank balances

— Depostts with original maturity within 12 months

(Deposit includes Fixed Deposits with Banks - Rs. NIL (P.Y. Rs.50,000) marked as lien for Guarantees issued by Banks on
behalf of the Company. (Refer note 19)

19.199.679

2,140

21,010,007

50,000

Total

19,199,679

21,062,147

e
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14 Income from operations Year Ended Year Ended
December 31,2012 December 31, 2011
Rupees Rupees
Income from Research Services 326,013,594 283,971,452
Total 326,013,594 283,971,452
Year Ended Year Ended
15 Other income December 31,2012 December 31, 2011
Rupees Rupees
Interest income on
Bank deposits 17,978 3,724
Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) - 206,499
Excess provision reversed - 4,766,871
Miscellaneous Income 232,080 217,791
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets - 108,000
Total 250,058 5,302,885
16 Personnel expenses Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Rupees Rupees
Salaries, wages and bonus 168,713,026 164,878,303
Contribution to Provident Funds 8,010,411 7,624,600
Contribution to Gratuity Funds 2,994,510 3,187,649
Staff welfare expenses 5,344,005 3,905,284
Total 185,061,952 179,595,836
17 Establishment expenses Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Rupees Rupees
Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 2,979,576 3,581,456
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 2,706,084 2,580,507
Electricity 2,878,815 2,219,526
Communication Expenses 5,832,481 6,718,299
Insurance 61,659 17,828
Rent (Refer note 28) 29,079,255 19,119,044
Rates and Taxes 1,052 63,368
Total 43,538,922 34,300,028
18 Other expenses Year Ended Year Ended
December 31,2012 December 31, 2011
Rupees Rupees
Printing and Stationery 406,834 235212
Conveyance and Travelling 13,309,098 16,447,009
Data Subscription 5,576,664 2,803,440
Business Promotion and Advertisenment 40,625 131,055
Professional Fees 10,169,283 6,889,042
Software Purchase & Maintenance Expenses 1,512,491 549,071
Foreign Exchange Loss (Net) 5,015,380 -
Loss on sale of fixed assets 5,933,797 -
Auditors' Remuneration (Refer note 22) 865.849 550,000
Recruitment Expenses 375.794 1,672,591
Miscellaneous Expenses 845,344 443 947
Total 44,051,159 29,721,367
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19 Deails of Contingent Liabslities are as under

Year Ended Year Ended
Decemaber 31, 2012 | December 31, 2011
(Rs) (Rs)
1. Bank Guarantees in the normal course of business 184,100 50,000
2 Disputed ncome tax demand
Pending before Appellate authorities in respect of which the Company is in appeal 58.948.670 15,186,780
3. Est d amount of contracts (net of advances) r i 10 be executed on capital account and not provided for 910,271 -
Total 60,043,047 15,236,780

20 The tax year of the Company being the year ending March 31, 2013, the provision for tax for the year is the aguregate of the provision made for the three months ended March 31,
2012 and the provision for the mne months upto December 31, 2012. The tax provision for nine months has been arrived at using the effective tax rate for the period April 1,

2012 to March 31. 2013.
21 The Company has the process of identification of ‘suppliers’ registered under the *“The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (' MSMED') Act, 2006™ by obtaming

confirmations from suppliers. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 10 whom the
Company owes dues on account of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been made.

22 Auditors’ Remuneration includes

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2012 | December 31, 2011
(Rs) (Rs)
Audit Fees 715.000 550,000
Certification Fees 85,59¢ -
Reimbursement of Expenses 65,250 -
Total 865,849 550,000

23 The Company is engaged i the business of providing research services, being its primary segment. Duning the year, the Company was engaged in only one business segment The
followng tahle shows the distribution of the Company's consolidated sales by geographicat market (secondary segment)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2012 | December 31, 2011
(Rs) (Rs)
Quiside India 324,430,060 283,439,407
india 1,583,534 532,045
Total 326,013,594 283,971,452
24 Earmings m foreign currency Rs. 333,268,154 (P.Y Rs. 283,439.407)
25  Expendiure in foreign currency (on accruai basis)
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31,2012 | December 31, 2011
(Rs) (Rs)
Foreign Travel 3,849,628 4,715,899
3,849,628 4,715,899

26 Listof Related Parties

Parties Relauonship
Related parties where control exists

CRISIL Linnted Holding Company
The McGraw-Hill Compuanies, Inc The ulimate Holding Company
Other Related pat :

S&P India, LLC Fellow Subsidiary
Standard & Poor's’ LLC Fellow Subsidiary
Standard & Poor’s' Intemational LLC, USA Fellow Subsidiary
CRISIL Irevna UK Limited Feliow Subsidiary
CRISIL Irevna USA LLC Fellow Subsidiary
CRISIL lrevia Poland Sp.Zo o Fellow Subsidiary
CRISIL frevna Argentina S . A. Fellow Subsidiary
CRISIL Risk and Infrasiructure Solutions Limited Fellow Subsidiary
CRISIL revna Informarion & Technology (Hangzhou) Co., Lid Fellow Subsidiary
Coaliton Development Systems (India) Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary
Mercator Info-Services India Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary
Coulion Development Limited, UK Fellow Subsidiary
Coalinon Development Singapore Pre Limuted Fellow Subsidiary
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Related Party Disclosure
Naime of the related party Nature of transaction Year Ended Year Ended
D ber 31, 2012 | De ber 31, 2011
(Rs) (Rs)
CRISIL Limuted Share Capital Qutstanding 100,000 100,000
Expense reimbursement 157.824 148.101
Rent paid 16,400,738 -
Amount Payable (net) 1,351,403 13,055
CRISIL Risk and Infrastructure Soiutions Limited Expensc reimbursement 74,256 69,690
Amount receivable 6,258 6.142
324,430,060 283,439,407

CRISIL Ireviia UK Limited

Fecs from research services

Advance received

38,398,921

4.431,403

Operating Lease

The Company has taken certain office premises on non cancelable operating lease basis Some of these agr

future commitments are as under :

clause. Details as regards payments and

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2012 | December 31, 2011
(Rs) (Rs)
Lease Payment recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 29,079,255 19.119.044
Future Minimum Lease Payments -
Not later than One Year 16,101,564 17,229,167
Later than One Year & not later than Five Years 71,350,037 5.948,794
Later than FiveYears 66,197,571 -
153,649,172 23,177,961

Total
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Gratuty and other post-employment bengfit plans

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 CRISIL provides for gratuity, s defined benefit retirement plan covening eligible employees of the Company. The Gratmty
Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or terminanon of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary

and tenure of employment wath the Group

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statemem of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts recogrised i the

Balance Sheet for the respective plans

Statement of Profit and Loss:
Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2012 | December 31,2011
(Rs) (Rs)
Current Service cost 1,944,553 1,312,202
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 692,185 448,687
Expected retum on plan assets (582337) (243,576)
Net actuarial loss recognised in the year 940,111 1,670,336
Net Graturty Benetit Expense 2,994,512 3.187.649
Balance Sheet
Details of Provision for Gratuity Benefit
Year Ended Year Euded
December 31, 2012 | December 31, 2011
(Rs) (Rs)
Present value of funded obligations 11,779,535 8792235
Less. Fair value of plan assets (9.927,086) (4.409,701)
Net Liability 1,852,449 4,322,534

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

Year Ended
December 31, 2012

Year Ended
December 34, 2014

(Rs) (Rs)
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 8,792,235 5.949.575
Current Service Cost 1,944,553 1,312,202
Interest Cost 692,185 448,687
Actuarial loss 1,052,478 1.621.762
Benefits pad (701,916) (539,991)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 11,779,535 8,792,235
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2012 | December 31, 2011
(Rs) (Rs)
Opening Fair value of plan assets 4,469,701 1.814.690
Expected return on plan assets §82,337 243.576
Actuanal ga/ (loss) 112.367 (48.574)
Contribution by employer 5,464,597 3.000.000
Benefits paid (701.916) (539.991)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 9,927,086 4,469,701
Details of experience adjustment on plan assets and liabiltties are as follows -
Year Year Ended Year Finded Year Ended
Dccember 31, 2012 | December 31,2011 | December 31. 2010
(Rs) (Rs) (Rs)
Experience adjustment on plan assets 112,367 (48,574) {123.972)
Experience adjustment on plan liabihities (1,013,868) (L713.11]) 477111

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows

Year Ended
December 31,2012
(Rs)

Year Ended
December 31,2011
(Rs)

Investment with Insurer
Actual retum on plan assets (Based on interest rate declared by the insurer as at 3 1st March 2012/2011)

100%

8 50%

100%
8 50%

The principal assumptions used in determining Gratwity for the Company's plans is as below:

The overall expected rate of retum on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be setiled.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2012 | December 31, 2011
(Rs) (Rs)
Discount Rate 8.10% 8.20%
Estimated rate of retumn on plan asseis 8 50% 8 S0%
Expected Employee Tumover
Age : 20-44 Years 25.20% 25 20%)|
Age  45-58 Years 25 20% 25 20%,
Expected Employer’'s Contribution next year (Rupees) 5,600,000 3,500,000

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in

the employment market.

Details of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at December 31, 2012 - Current Liability Rs 38,398,921 (P.Y Rs.NIL)




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Notes to the financtal statemenis of December 31, 2012

31 Previous year comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current year's classification.

s per our report of even dale.
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“or SRB C & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Pipal Rescarch
Firm Registration No.: 324982E Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
L. B
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. )
per Shrawan Jalan PN
Partner GV Mani Raman Uberor
Membership No.. 102102 Director Director
Date: February 14, 2013 Date: February 14, 2013

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbar
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SR BatiBoi& Co. LLP - g ey

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Pipal Research Analytics and lnfoffﬁa_t'ioﬁ‘;s"e'r«\'fvices india Private
Limited ' :

. We have audited the accompanying interim financial statements of Pipal Research Analytics and
" Information Services India Private Limited ("the Company”), which comprise the interim Balance
Sheet as at June 30, 2015, and the interim Statement. of Profit and Loss and interim Cash Flow
statement for the six-month period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting pelicies
and other explanatory information. ‘ -

'Managernent's Responsibitity for the interim Financial Statements N

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these -finangial

statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted-in India; including: the

Accouriting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule.7 of. the Companies.

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Company'’s Board of Directors: is also responsible for:maintenance:

of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 'of the Act for safeguarding of

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and-estimates

that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of ‘adequate

. internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
' completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
P interim financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

L2 v b i o

error.

Auditor's Responsibility on the interim financial statements | '

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these interim financial statements-ba"sédﬁon*oﬁfj‘ - o J

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the f
i

~Institute of Chartered Accountants of india, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the interim financial statements are free
from material misstatement. - C

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the interim financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the interim financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the interim )
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit proceduges that are -~ ;
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether 2
the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and the effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policie$ used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the interim financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provi‘déva hasis for our audit opinion on the interim financia!_statements.

$or PIPALRESEARCH ANAL YIS & tNEORRATION SERVICES INDIA PYT, L VD, . £

oot |

AUTHORISED SIG. i

63

5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, 3 Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street; Bitick "€, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-T00 016




S.R. BAtLiBO1 & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the accompanying interim financial statements have been prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles specified in Accounting Standard
25 covered under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014,

Other matters

(a) Figures for the corresponding period i.e. January 01, 2014 to June 30, 2014 are
unaudited, and are as certified by the management. Our opinion is not qualified in
respect of the above.

(b) Restriction of use

The accompanying interim financial statements have been prepared, and this report
thereon has been issued, solely for the purpose of submission to the stock exchange in
connection with Amalgamation between the Company and CRISIL Limited. Accordingly,
this report should not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without
our prior written consent.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Eirm Registration Number: 301003E

per Jayesh Gandhi

Partner

Membership Number: 037924
Place: Mumbai

Date: October 17, 2015




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2015

Particulars Notes As at
June 30, 2015 December 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 100,000 100,000
Reserves and surplus 4 104,594,979 92,249,260
Non-current liabilities
Other liabilities 5 9,943,043 7,248,103
Provisions 6 1,670,605 2,090,922
Current liabilities .
Trade payables 7 11,386,489 24,352,150
Other liabilities 8 3,854,728 4,148,868
Provisions 9 10,414,206 11,173,386
TOTAL 141,964,050 141,362,689
ASSETS
Non-current assets ,
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 56,531,236 62,254,370
Deferred tax assets 11 12,206,855 13,133,921
Loans and advances 12 19,623,839 16,446,735
Other assets 13 243,177 232,327
Current assets
Trade receivables 14 19,280,429 17,404,656
Cash and bank balances 15 32,565,972 28,037,275
Loans and advances 16 1,503,917 3,853,405
Other assets 17 8,625 -
TOTAL 141,964,050 141,362,689
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

1CAI Firm Registration No.: 301003E  Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

Chartered Accountants

XV

per Jayesh Gandhi Amish Mehta
Partner Director
Membership No. 037924

Date: 17th October 2015
Place: Mumbai

Aneck P ML

Date: 17th October 2015
Place: Mumbai

Raman Uberoi
Director




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period January to June 30, 2015

Particulars 6 months ended 6 months ended
Notes June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
INCOME
Income from operations (net) 18 133,284,182 141,702,808
Other income 19 34,388 125,549
TOTAL 133,318,570 141,828,357
EXPENSES
Personnel expenses 20 82,018,702 84,513,222
Establishment expenses 21 17,142,916 16,787,281
Other expenses 22 10,250,880 14,801,240
Depreciation / amortization 10 6,507,034 7,235,616
TOTAL 115,919,532 123,337,359
Profit before tax 17,399,038 18,490,998
Tax Expense
Current Tax 4,126,255 5,829,089
Deferred Tax 927,064 (37,998)
Total tax expense 5,053,319 5,791,091
Profit after tax 12,345,719 12,699,907
Earnings per share : Nominal value of Rs.10
Basic and Diluted for six months 1,234.57 1,269.99
Number of Shares used in Computing Earnings Per Share
Basic and Diluted 10,000 10,000
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

-

per Jayesh Gandhi
Partner
Membership No. 037924

Date: 17th October 2015
Place: Mumbai

" For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

Amish Mehta
Director Director

ot

Raman Uberoi

Date: 17th October 2015
Place: Mumbai




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the period January to June 30, 2015

6 months ended
Particulars June 30, 2015
Rupees
A. |Cash Flow from operating activities :
Profit before tax 17,399,038
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 6,507,034
Interest on bank deposits & Employee Short Term Loan (34,388)
Operating profit before working capital changes 23,871,684
Movements in working capital
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (1,875,773)
- (Increase)/decrease in advances recoverable in cash or kind 1,858,676
- (Increase)/decrease in unbilled revenue (8,625)
- (Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses 819,722
- Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (10,270,722)
- Increase/(decrease) in provision for leave encashment (759,180)
- Increase/(decrease) in provision for gratuity (420,317)
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (294,139)
Cash generated from operations 12,921,326
- Taxes paid (7,632,269)
Net cash generated from operating activities - (A) 5,289,057
B. |Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of fixed assets (840,397)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 56,499
Interest Received on Bank Deposit and Short term loan to employees 23,538
Net used in investing activities - (B) (760,360)
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B) 4,528,697
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance 28,037,275
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing balance 32,565,972
Net Increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,528,697
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 30th June 2015
With banks on current account 32,565,972
32,565,972
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Cash flow statement

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

P
per Jayesh Gandhi

Partner
Membership No. 037924

Date: 17th October 2015
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India
Private Limited

Anl £ ML ZM

Amish Mehta Raman Uberoi * ~
Director Director

Date: 17th October 2015
Place: Mumbai




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements

2.1

22

23

24

2.5

26

Nature of Operations
Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited ("Pipal® or "Company") is engaged in the provision of low-risk IT Enabled Services in the area of]
corporate research.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared m accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India, mandatory accounting standards
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (* the 2013 Act”), read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014. The Financial
Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The accounting policies applied by the company are consistent with those used in
the previous period.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non- current as per the company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Revised Schedule III to
the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in'cash or cash equivalents, the
company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current / non- current classification of assets and liabilities.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the
reporting year end. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Iteins of fixed asset held for disposal are stated at lower of the net book value and net realisable value and are shown
under other current assets.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost if it meets criteria’s (as per notified accounting standards 26) set by the management.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible
assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitatized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is
incurred.

Depreciation

Considering the applicability of Schedule I, the management has re-estimated useful lives and residual values of all its fixed assets. The management
believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of fixed assets, though these rates in certain
cases are different from lives prescribed under Schedule IL

Leasehold Iinprovements are amortized over the lease term or useful life of the asset, whichever is lower.

Iinpainnent .
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impainnent based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is
recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use.

After impainnent, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Income from operations comprises of income from research activities carried out by the Company during the period. Revenue is recognised based on mark up over cost
incurred.

Interest Income
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Retirement _and other employee benefits
Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution schemne and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period|
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities or trusts.

The Company provides gratuity a defined benefit plan to the eligible employees. Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method made at the end of each financial year.

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial
valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains/losées are i diately taken to S of profit and loss and are not deferred.

.




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements

2.7

28

29

2.10

2,11

2.12

Qperating Leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased tenn, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in reporting currency (INR) by applying to the foreign currency amounts, to the monthly average exchange rates for the
respective periods in which the transaction takes place.

Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rates. Non monetary items which are carried in terms of historical costs denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange Difference
Exchange differences, arising on settlement of monetary items or on Company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during
the period, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expense in the period in which they arise.

Segment Reporting Polices

The Company is engaged in providing low risk IT enabled services which in the context of Accounting Standard- 17 “Segment Reporting” notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is idered as the only seg The Company’s activities are
restricted within India and hence no separate geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary.

Taxes On Income
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax
Act of 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and
reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

1 h

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws or ively d at the bal sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the
taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses,
all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become
reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. The Company writes down the carrying amount of a Deferred Tax Asset to the
extent it is no longer reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which Deferred Tax Asset can be
realised. Any such write down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be
available.

Eamings Per Share
Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estinate required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements

As at June 30, 2015

As at December 31,

3. Share capital 2014
Rupees Rupees
Authorised Capital:
100,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each (P.Y. 100,000 of Rs.10 each) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up (P.Y. 10,000 of Rs.10 each) 100,000 100,000
All the shares are held by the Holding Company, CRISIL Limited, which also includes 1 shares
(P.Y 1| shares) held by nominee on behalf of the Holding Company. The Ultimate Holding|
Company is The McGraw-Hill Financial, Inc.
Total 100,000 100,000
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Equity shares
As at June 30, 2015
Rupees Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Rs.10/- per share) 100,000 10,000
Qutstanding at the end of the period 100,000 10,000
As at December 31, 2014
Rupees Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Rs.10/- per share} 100,000 10,000
Qutstanding at the end of the period 100,000 10,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

vote per share.

shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding C

P

y and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, are as below:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

Particulars

As at June 30, 2015

Rupees

As at December 31,
2014

Rupees

10,000 of Rs.10 each)

10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 are held by CRISIL Limited, Holding Company (P.Y.

100,000

100,000

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than §% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder

As at June 30, 2015

% holding in the Nos.
class
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid (PY Rs. 10 each,
a) CRISIL Limited, Holding Company 100% 10,000
Name of the shareholder As at December 31, 2014
% holding in the Nos.
class
Equitv shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid (PY Rs. 10 each)
a) CRISIL Limited, Holding Company 100% 10,000

date is Nil.

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the reporting,




Notes to the financial statements

Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

4. Reserves and surplus

As at June 30, 2015

As at December 31,

2014
Rupees Rupees
Surplus / (deficit) in_the statement of profit and loss
Opening Balance 92,249,260 67,741,733
Profit for the period 12,345,719 24,507,527
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 104,594,979 92,249,260
Total 104,594,979 92,249,260
S. Other liabilities As at June 30, 2015| As at December 31,
2014
Rupees Rupees
Non-current
Other Payables 9,943,043 7,248,103
Total 9,943,043 7,248,103
6. Provisions As at June 30, 2015| As at December 31,
2014
Rupees Rupees
Nou-current
For employee benefits
For Gratuity (Refer note 29) 1,670,605 2,090,922
Total 1,670,605 2,090,922

7. Trade payables

As at June 30, 2015

As at December 31,

2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Trade payables (refer note 25 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises) 11,386,489 24,352,150
Total ’ 11,386,489 24,352,150
8. Other liabilities As at June 30, 2015| As at December 31,
2014
. Rupees Rupees
Current
Other Current Liabilities 2,470,914 3,110,179
Service Tax Input Credit (Net) 1,383,814 1,038,689
Total 3,854,728 4,148,868
As at June 30, 2015| As at December 31,
9. Provisions 2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
For employee benefits
For leave benefits 10,414,206 11,173,386
Total 10,414,206 11,173,386




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements in Rupees
10. Fixed Assets
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
As on Additions Deductions / As on Upto For the Deductions / ~ Upto As on As on
January 1, 2015 Adjustments June 30, 2015 January 1, 2015 Period Adjustments June 30, 2015 June 30, 2015 December 31,2014
Fumiture and Fixture 8,861,953 - 27,482 8,834,471 2,450,605 417,379 - 2,867,984 5,966,487 6,411,348
Office Equipments 14,509,975 - 29,015 14,480,960 4,148,881 702,584 - 4,851,465 9,629,495 10,361,094
Computers 33,511,539 840,397 35,848 34,316,088 30,949,006 1,915,728 35,848 32,828,886 1,487,202 2,562,533
Lease Improvements 60,668,592 - - 60,668,592 17,749,197 3,471,343 - 21,220,540 39,448,052 42,919,395
Total 117,552,059 840,397 92,345 118,300,111 55,297,689 6,507,034 35,848 61,768,875 56,531,236 62,254,370
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
As on Additions Deductions / As on Upto For the Deductions / Upto As on As on
January 1, 2014 Adjustments | December 31, 2014 | January 1,2014 Year Adjustments December 31, 2014 | December 31,2014 | December 31, 2013
Fumiture and Fixture 8,852,092 11,361 1,500 8,861,953 1,580,999 869,606 - 2,450,605 6,411,348 7,271,092
Office Equipments 14,199,100 310,875 - 14,509,975 2,733,997 1,414,884 - 4,148,881 10,361,094 11,465,104
Computers 34,250,063 193,078 931,602 33,511,539 26,995,979 4,884,628 931,601 30,949,006 2,562,533 7,254,084
Lease Improvements 60,668,592 - - 60,668,592 10,748,975 7,000,222 - 17,749,197 42,919,395 49,919,617
Total 117,969,847 515,314 933,102 117,552,059 42,059,950 14,169,340 931,601 55,297,689 62,254,370 75,909,897




Notes to the financial statements

Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

As at June 30, 2015| As at December 31,

11. Deferred tax asset 2014
Rupees Rupees

Deferred tax asset

On Depreciation of Fixed assets 3,925,449 3,317,377
On lease rent amortisation 2,480,335 2,351,647
On provision for Leave Encashment 3,846,469 3,064,173
On provision for Bonus 1,228,593 2,884,723
On provision for Gratuity 504,919 468,859
On disallowance under section 40(a) 221,090 1,047,142
Deferred tax asset 12,206,855 13,133,921

12. Loans and ndvances

As at June 30, 2015

As at December 31,

2014
Rupees Rupees
Non-Current
Other ioans and advances
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 18,732,894 15,226,881
Prepaid expenses 890,945 1,219,854
Total 19,623,839 16,446,735

13. Others assets

As at June 30, 2015

As at December 31,

2014
Rupees Rupees

Noun-current
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 59,077 48,227
Other bank balances
_ Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 184,100 184,100
(Deposit includes Fixed Deposits-with Banks Rs.184,100 (Dec'l4. Rs. 184,100) marked as
lien for Guarantees issued by Banks on behalf of the Company. {Refer note 23})

Total 243,177 232,327

14. Trade receivables

As at June 30, 2015

As at December 31,

2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 19,280,429 17,404,656
Total 19,280,429 17,404,656
15. Cash and bank balances As at June 30, 2015 As at December 31,
2014
Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - -
Balances with banks:
— On current accounts 32,565,972 28,037,275
Total 32,565,972 28,037,275
16. Loans and advances As at June 30, 2015 As at December 31,
2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Sundry deposits
Unsecured, considered good 15,000 15,000
15,000 15,000
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured considered good 360,267 1,921,931
Other loans and advances
Prepaid expenses 1,020,358 1,511,170
Loans to employees 108,292 405,304
Total 1,503,917 3,853,405

17. Others assets

As at June 30, 2015| As at December 31,

2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Unbilled Revenue 8,625 -
Total 8,625 -




Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements

18. Income (rom operations

6 months ended

6 months ended

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Income from Research Services 133,284,182 141,702,808
Total 133,284,182 141,702,808
19. Other income 6 months ended 6 months ended
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Interest Income on
Interest on Fixed Deposits 10,850 9,109
Interest on Employees Short Term Loan 23,538 -
Miscellaneous Income - 116,440
Total 34,388 125,549

20. Personnel expenses

6 months ended
June 30, 2015

6 months ended
June 30, 2014

Rupees Rupees
Salaries, wages and bonus 65,864,394 69,095,317
Contribution to Provident Funds 2,837,153 2,924,766
Contribution to Gratuity Funds (Refer Note 29) 53,683 (218,452)
Staff welfare expenses 1,069,241 446,095
Add : Overhead expense charged by holding Company 12,194,231 12,265,496
Total 82,018,702 84,513,222

21. Establishment expenses

6 months ended
June 30, 2015

6 months ended
June 30, 2014

Rupees Rupees
Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 319,166 31,556
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 576,647 555,123
Communication Expenses 5,049,013 5,114,236
Rent & Other Services (Refer note 28) 9,203,948 9,046,134
Add : Overhead expense charged by holding Company 1,994,142 2,040,232
Total 17,142,916 16,787,281

22. Other expenses 6 months ended 6 months ended
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Conveyance and Travelling 415,239 2,456,450
Data Subscription 1,874,489 2,891,101
Professional Fees 2,094,405 2,788,346
Software Purchase Expenses 132,585 122,482
Software Maintenance Expenses 471,957 176,800
Auditors' Remuneration (Refer note 26) 412,302 410,283
Recruitment Expenses 37,829 593,384
Miscellaneous Expenses 206,703 247,656
Add : Overhead expense charged by holding Company 4,605,371 5,114,738
Total 10,250,880 14,801,240
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Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements

23 Details of Contingent liabilities are as under :

Particulars As at June 30, 2015 {As at December 31,
Rupees 2014
Rupees

1. Bank Guarantees in the normal course of business 184,100 184,100
2.Disputed incomne tax demand:

Pending before Appellate authorities in respect of which the Company is in appeal 166,246,319 123,044,577
3. Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 906,685 8,849
Total 167,337,104 123,237,526

24 The tax year of the Company being the year ending March 31, 2016, the provision for tax for the year is the aggregate of the provision made for the three months ended
March 31, 2015 and the provision for the three months upto June 30, 2015. The tax provision for three months has been arrived at using the effective tax rate for the period

April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016.

25 The Company has a process of identification of ‘suppliers’ registered under the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006” by
obtaining confirmations from suppliers. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Developinent Act, 2006 to

whom any amount was payable on account of principal amount or interest, accordingly no additionat disclosures have been made.

26  Auditors' Remuneration includes :

Particulars 6 months ended 6 months ended
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees

Audit Fees 285,000 285,000
In any other matter:

Tax audit fees 115,000 115,000
Reimbursement of Expenses 12,302 10,283
Total 412,302 410,283

27  List of Related Parties

CRISIL Risk and Infrastructure Solutions Limited

CRISIL Irevna Information & Technology (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd
Coalition Development Systems (india) Private Limited
Mercator Info-Services India Private Limited

Coalition Development Limited, UK

Coalition Development Singapore Pte Limited

Parties Relationship
Related parties where control exists

CRISIL Limited Holding Conpany
The McGraw-Hill Financial, Inc The Ultinate Holding Company
Other Related parties

S&P India, LLC Fellow Subsidiary
Standard & Poor's’' LLC Fellow Subsidiary
Standard & Poor's' Intemnational LLC, USA Fellow Subsidiary
CRISIL Irevna UK Limited Fellow Subsidiary
CRISIL Irevna USALLC Fellow Subsidiary
CRISIL Irevna Poland Sp.Zo.o Fellow Subsidiary
CRISIL Irevna Argentina S .A. Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
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Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements

Related Party Disclosure

Name of the related party Nature of transaction (Profit and Loss) 6 months ended 6 months ended
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
CRISIL Limited Expense reimbursement Paid 712,424 -
Expense reimbursement received 79,228 78,912
Rent paid & Other Services 8,843,970 7,919,273
Fees from research services 133,284,182 141,702,808
Share of overhead expenses paid 18,793,744 19,420,466
Bank Guarantees given by CRISIL 179,703,000 179,703,000
CRISIL Risk and Infrastructure Solutions Limited Expense reimbursement received - 37,128
Name of the related party Nature of transaction (Balance Sheet) As at December
As at June 30, 2015 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
CRISIL Limited Share Capital Outstanding 100,000 100,000
Amount Receivable (net) 19,280,440 17,404,667

28 Operating Lease
The Company has taken certain office premises on non cancelable
payments and future commitments are as under :

operating lease basis. Some of these agreements have a price escalation clause. Details as regards

Particulars 6 months ended 6 months ended
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Lease Payment recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 9,203,948 9,046,134

As at June 30, 2015

As at December

Rupees 31,2014
Rupees
Future Minimum Lease Payments :
Not later than One Year 18,398,700 18,098,721
Later than One Year & not later than Five Years 80,149,344 78,769,440
Later than FiveYears 13,224,068 23,803,322
Total 111,772,112 120,671,483

29  Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 CRISIL provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees of the Company. The
Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective

employee’s salary and tenure of employment with the Group.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the

Balance Sheet for the respective plans.

Statement of Profit and Loss:
Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)

Particulars 6 months ended 6 months ended
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Current Service cost 800,250 (250,000)
Net acturial loss recognised for the period (738,369) (7,194)
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 339,552 462,990
Expected return on plan assets (347,750) (424,248)
Net Gratuity Benefit Expense 53,683 (218,452)

Balance Sheet:
Details of Provision for Gratuity Benefit

Particulars As at June 30, 2015|  As at June 30,
Rupees 2014
Rupees
Present value of funded obligations 9,568,605 10,460,390
Less: Fair value of plan assets (7,898,000) (9,537,990)
Net (Liability) / Assets (1,670,605) (922,400)
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30

31

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 10,478,053 11,239,188
Current Service Cost 800,250 (250,000)
Acturial Gain / Loss (728,250) 6,475
Interest Cost 339,552 462,990
Benefits paid (1,321,000} (998,263)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 9,568,605 10,460,390
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Opening Fair value of plan assets 8,387,131 9,402,131
Expected return on plan assets 347,750 424,248
Actuarial gain/ (loss) 10,119 13,669
Contribution by employer 474,000 696,205
Benefits paid (1,321,000) (998,263)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 7,898,000 9,537,990
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
Particulars As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,
Rupees 2014
Rupees
Investment with Insurer 100% 100%
Actual return on plan assets (Assumed) 8.50%) 8.50%

The overall expected rate of return on assets is deternmined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the
settled.

The principal assumptions used in detenmining Gratuity for the Company’s plans is as below:

period over which th

e obligation is to be

Particulars As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,
Rupees 2014
Rupees
Discount Rate 8.00%)| 8.50%
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50%
Expected Employee Turnover
Age : 20-44 Years 25.20%) 25.20%
Age : 45-58 Years 25.20% 25.20%
521,400 474,000

Expected Employer's Contribution next year (Rupees)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and

demand in the employment market.

Broad category of plan assets as per percentage of total plan assets of the Gratuity

Particulars As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,
Rupees 2014
Rupees
Government securities 52.24% 40.00%
Fixed deposit, debentures and bond 42.26% 53.52%
Others 5.50%)| 6.48%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

Based on information declared by the insurer as at 31st March 2015/2014

Previous year figures of Cash Flow Statement have not been provided as the Company has opted exemption as per para 44 of notified acounting standard 25, "Interim

Financial Reporting”

Details of unhedged foreign currency exposure: NIL (PY: NiL)
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Notes to the financial statements

32 Previous period comparatives

Figures for the period January 01, 2014 to June 30, 2014 are unaudited and compiled by the management, and have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to

confinn to current period’s classification

As per our report of even date.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
ICATI Firm Registration No.: 301003E
Charte

per Jayesh Gandhi
Partner
Membership No. 037924

Date: 17th October 2015
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pipal Research Analytics and Information Services India Private Limited

Ak - Mebile 0

Amish Mehta Raman Uberoi
Director Director

Date: 17th October 2015
Place: Mumbai
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C.A. MUKESH B. ADVANI MB. AD VANI & CO

B.COM.F.CA. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
302 & 304 -B, "NEELKANTH", 98, MARINE DRIVE,MUMBAI- 400 002
TEL.: OFFICE : 2281 28 17,2281 6807 * FAX : 22816807
E-mail : mukeshadvani1203@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO,

THE MEMBERS OF COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA)
PRIVATE LIMITED

- Report on the Financial Statements

1.1 have audited the accompanying financial statements of COALITION
DEVELOPMENT SYSTEM (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”),
vyhich comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31% 2015, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance & cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companie‘s (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

- safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,

vere operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the




accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. I have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

4. 1 conducted your audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to
the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company has in
place all adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial statements.




6.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained by me is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for my audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

7.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations
given to me, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31* 2015, and its profits and its cash flows for the year

ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, I give
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the
Order to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, I report that:

(a) T have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of your audit.

(b) In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by

the Company so far as it appears from my examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss. and the Cash Flow

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In my opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31% 2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as March 31* 2015 from being appointed as a director

egms of Section 164(2) of the Act.




10. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to me:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred.
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M.B.ADVANI & CO.

*
—X-Chartered Accountant
N, Membership No. 7/

37657

Mukesh B . Advani
(Proprietor) ‘ : .
Membership No. — 037657

Place : Mumbai

Date : 02™ September 2015




Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Rebort

(Referred to in paragraph (8) of my report of even date on the Financial Statements for the year ended 3]st

March, 2015, of COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED)

I report that to the members of Coalition Development Systems (India) Private Limited
for the year Ended on March 31 2015.

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)  The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its tixed
assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain fixed assets
were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(a)  The company has no inventory; hence this clause is not applicable.
(b)  The company has no inventory; hence this clause is not applicable.

(c)  The company has no inventory; hence this clause is not applicable.

As informed, the Company have not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
Companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions stated in the
paragraph 3(iii)(a) and 3(iii)(b) of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management of the company, there is an adequate internal control system
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with
regard to purchase of inventories and fixed assets and with regard to the sale of
goods and services. During the course of audit we have not observed any major
weakness in the internal control system during the course of the audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given by the
management of the company, the company has not accepted any deposits from the
public within the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions
ompanies Act, 2013 and Companies Acceptance & Deposits Rules 2014.




(vi) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost
records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of
the products of the Company.

(vii) (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to me and on the
basis of my examination of the records of the Company, amounts
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
wealth tax, service tax, value added tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess any
other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year
by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

There was no undisputed amounts payable by the Company in respect of
the aforesaid statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2015 for a period
more than six months from the date they become payable.

According to the information and explanation given to me, there are no
disputed amounts payable in respect of Wealth tax and Cess , Duty of
Excise, Duty of Customs, Sales-Tax and Service Tax which have not been

~ deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

Nature of Dues | Amount not
| deposited (In %)

Income Tax (AY 2012-13) 45,98,639/-

TOTAL 45,98,639/-

According to the information and explanations given to me, the amounts
which were required to be transferred to the investor education and
protection fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, and rules there under has been transferred made there

under.

(viii) The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial
year and has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(ix) According to the records of the Company examined by me and the information and

explanatfon given to me, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to

ncial institution or bank or debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.




(x)  According to the information and explanations given to me and the record
examined by me, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by
others from banks or financial institutions.

(xi) To the best of my knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations given to me, no term loans were availed by the Company during the
year.

(xii) During the course of examination of the books and records of the Company
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing ‘practice in India,
and according to the information and explanation given, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud on or by the company, noticed or reported during the
year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management of the
company. '

'4/
ukesh B. Advani

(Proprietor)
Membership No. — 037657

\ Chartered Accountant /
\, Membership No.

37657

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 02™ September 2015




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

Particulars Notes i As‘at
March 31, 2015 ‘ March 31,2014
Rupees | Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds ;
Share Capital 3 500,000 500,000
Reserves and Surplus 4 72,961,215 64,464,787

Non-current liabilities

Trade payables 5 3,754,706 2,696,789

Provisions 6 - 2,585,665
Current liabilities : .

Trade payables 7 4,529,214 1,434,867

Other liabilities | 8 529,748 736,478

Provisions 9 2,085,792 7,429,327
TOTAL 84,360,675 79,847,913
ASSETS

Non-current assets
Fixed Assets

Tangible assets 10 ‘ 17,648,579 8,637,026
Capital Work in Progress - 7,097,503
Deferred tax assets (Net) 11 3,178,886 3,666,817
Loans and advances 12 9,028,106 ' 4,620,972
Other Assets 13 - 7,020,146
Current assets
Other Assets ] 14 605,425 860,179
Trade Receivables 15 3,815,619 6,626,851
Cash and bank balances - 16 49,134,857 39,412,035
Loans and advances 17 949203 1,906,384
TOTAL 84,360,675 | - 79,847,913
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's Report
Signed in terms of separate report of even date.

M.B. ADVAHNI & CO.
A For And On Behalf Of The Board Of
Directors
| \ Chartered Accountant M&Mﬂ/\/ -M
. \, Membership No. -
Wkesh Advani '\ 37657 - Rajasekhar Kaza Raman Uberoi
Proprietor T Director : Director

Membership No.- 037657

Date: 2nd September 2015 Date: 2nd September 2015




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the calendar year ended 31 March 2015

Particulars Year ended . Year Ended
Notes March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
‘ Rupees Rupees
INCOME
Income from operations ‘ 18 69,237,542 74,171,419
Other Income 19 2,155,180 4,950,753
TOTAL 71,392,722 79,122,172
EXPENDITURE '
Personnel expenses 20 35,677,143 42,017,157
Establishment expenses 21 13,318,600 15,077,469
Other expenses 22 6,538,422 6,538,500
Depreciation ' 10 3,141,840 1,966,528
TOTAL 58,676,005 65,599,654

Profit Before Exceptional And

Extraordinary Items And Tax 12,’/16,717 13,522,518
Exceptional Item - -
Profit Before |
Extraordinary Items And Tax 12,716,717 | 13,522,518
Extraordinary Items - -
Profit Before Tax 12,716,717 13,522,518
Tax Expense
Current tax 3,732,357 5,049,656
Deferred tax charge / (Benefit) 487,932 -2,304,168
Total tax expense 4,220,289 2,745,488
Profit after tax ' 8,496,428 | ' 10,777,030
Profit for the year from operations 8,496,428 10,777,030
Earnings per share : Nominal value of Rs.10 per share :
Basic , 169.93 | | 215.54
Diluted 169.93 215.54
Number of Shares used in Computing
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share : 50,000 50,000
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's Report
Signed in terms of separate report of even date.
M.B. ADVANI & CO.

Directors

\ Chartered Accountant /
. Membership No.

N\.37657

Myikesh Advani

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of

-~
g

Rajasekhar Kaza Raman Uberoi

Proprietor Director Director
Membership No.- 037657

Date: 2nd September 2015 Date: 2nd September 2015




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the calendar year ended 31 March 2015

Particulars For the year ended 31| For the year ended 31
March 2015 March 2014
.|Cash Flow from operating activities :
Profit before tax 12,716,717 13,522,518
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 3,141,840 1,966,528
Loss on Sale of Assets - 704,391
Unrealized Forex (Gain) / Loss (41,614) 917,653
Interest on deposits (2,155,180) (2,208,236)
Operating profit before working capital changes 13,661,763 14,902,854
Movements in working capital
- (Increase)/decrease in Trade receivables 2,852,846 10,772,917
- (Increase)/decrease in loans and advances 957,181 (7,875,813)
- (Increase)/decrease in Other Assets - (7,389)
- (Increase)/decrease in Provision for Employee Benefits (5,343,535) -
- Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payables 4,152,263 (89,690)
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (206,730) (1,403,587)
Cash generated from operations 16,073,789 16,299,293
- Taxes paid (10,725,155) 5,137,687
Net cash generated from operating activities - (A) 5,348,633 11,161,606
.|Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of fixed assets (5,055,890) -
Capital wrok-in-progress (7,097,503)
(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposit 7,020,145 -
Interest on deposits & loans 2,409,933 2,208,236
Net cash generated from investing activities - (B) 4,374,188 (4,889,267)
Cash flow from financing activities: - -
Net cash generated from financing activities - (C) - -
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 9,722,822 6,272,339
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance 39,412,035 33,139,696
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing balance 49,134,857 39,412,035
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,722,822 6,272,339
For the year ended 31 | For the year ended 31
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at March 2015 March 2014
with banks in current account 26,485,451 9,412,035
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 5,000,000
Deposits with original maturity between 3 months to 12 months 22,649,406 25,000,000
Total 49,134,857 39,412,035

The accompanyjng notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Auditor's Repgfrt

\ Chartered Accountant

Membership No.- 037657

Membership No.
37657,

Date: 2nd September 2015

For and on Behalf of the board of Directors

Rajasekhar Kaza R
Director Director *

Date: 2nd September 2015
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27

Nature of Operations
The Company is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing services.

Basis of Preparation of Finaricial Statement

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in India, mandatory accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (** the 2013 Act™), read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The Financial Statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The accounting policies applied by the company are consistent with those
used in the previous year.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non- current as per the company's normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in Revised Schedule I1I to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its
operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current / non- current classification of assets and liabilities.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting year end.
Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions,actual results could
differ from these estimates.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost compnses the purchase
price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Items of fixed asset held for
disposal are stated at lower of the net book value and net realisable value and are shown under other current assets.

Based on intemnal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out by external valuers the management believes
that the useful lives as given below best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Hence in
certain class of assets, the useful lives is different from the useful lives prescribed under Part C of Schedule IT of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Fixed Asset purchased during the year, depreciation is provided on pro — rata basis from the date the'assets are installed. In
case the assets are sold, depreciation is provided on the same upto the date of sale on pro — rata basis. The perpetual software
licenses are depreciated over a period of three (3) years . The non-perpetual licenses are writtenoff in the license period.

Assets ) Rates (WDV) Schedule 1T
Rates (WDV)
Furniture & Fixtures ) 18.10% 25.89%
Office Equipments » 13.91% 45.07%
Computers 40.00% 63.16%
Vehicles 25.89% 31.23%

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term or useful life of the asset, whichever is lower.
Fixed assets having original cost of less than Rs. 5,000 individually, are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. i

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Operating Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased tenm are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. |

Investments !

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments.
All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value
determined on an individual investment basis. Long-ternm investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution
in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured.

Income from operations comprises of income from research activities carried out by the Company dunng the year. Revenue
is recognised based on mark up over cost incurred.

Interest Income i

Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Formiug Part of the Fi ial S for the calendar year ending 31 March 20!5

2.8 Retirement_and other employee benefits

N

S

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the yéar when the contributions to.the respective funds are due, There are no other
obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities or trusts

The Company provides gratuity a defined benefit plan to.the eligible employees. Gratuity liability is provided for on the
basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. :

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided for
based on actuarial vatuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to Statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in reporting currency (INR) by applying to the foreign currency amounts to the
monthly average exchange rates for the respective periods in which the transaction takes place.

i

“onversion f
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rates. Non monetary items which are carried in terms of

historical costs denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Lxchange Difference .

Exchange differences relating to long term monetary items, arising during the year, such differences are accumulated in the

“Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Account” and amortised to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the balance

life of the long term monetary item. All other exchange differences are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. )
Non-monetary items carried in terms of hlstoncal cost denominated'in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange

rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation

denominated in a foreign cutrency are reported using the exchange rate that existed, when the values were determined.

Exchange differences arising as a result of the above are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Taxes On Income ;

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to-be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act of 1961 enacted in India. Deferred i income taxes reflects the
impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the ycar ‘and reversal of timing
differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied by
same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where
the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred
tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. The Conipany writes down .the
carrying amount of a Deferred Tax Asset to the extent it is no longer reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which Deferred Tax Asset can be realised. Any such write down is
reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available. ;

Segment Reporting Policies

Segment Policies:

The Company mainly is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing Services and primarily concentrated in
one geographical location. Hence there is only one segment of business.

Earnings Per Share ;

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose’ of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year: attributable to equity
“shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions_ .

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents ' :
Cash and cash equivalents in.the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with

original maturity of three months or less.
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3|Share Capital March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Authorised Capital:
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 500,000 500,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up (P.Y. 50,000 shares 500,000 500,000
| of Rs.10/- each) )
Total 500,000 500,000

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period

Equity shares

March 31, 2015

Rupees Nos.
At the beginning of the period (face value of Rs. 10/- per share) 500,000 50,000
Add: Shares issues during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 500,000 50,000

March 31,2014

Rupees Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Re. 10/- per share) 500,000 50,000
Add: Shares issues during the year - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 500,000 50,000

|(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class o‘fequity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is

entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their

subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

Particulars

March 31,2015
Rupees

March 31,2014
Rupees

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- are held by CRISIL Ltd (Holding
Company)

500,000

500,000

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder

March 31, 2015

% holding in the class Nos.
Equity shares of Rs. 10/-each full
CRISIL Ltd 100.00% 50,000
Name of the shareholder March 31, 2014
% holding in the class Nos.
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
CRISIL Ltd 100.00% - 50,000
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. March 31,2015

March 31,2014

4 |Reserves and Surplus Rupees Rupees
Surplus:
Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 64,464,787 53,687,757
Profit for the year 8,496,428 10,777,030
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 72,961,215 64,464,787
Total 72,961,215 64,464,787
§ |Trade Payables Mar‘g]u;l’e:m 5 Mar(l:{hu?)‘leé?M
Non-Current
Trade payables (Refer note no.24 ) 3,754,706 2,696,789
Total 3,754,706 2,696,789
.. March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
6 |Provisions
Rupees Rupees
Non-Current
Other provisions
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) - 2,585,665
Total . 2,585,665
7 |Trade Payables March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Trade Payables ( Refer note no.24) 4,529,214 1,434,867
Total 4,529,214 1,434,867
8 |Other liabilities March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Other Current Liabilities 529,748 736,478
Total 529,748 736,478
9 |Provisions March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Provision for employee benefits :
Bonus Payable 1,697,792 4,956,688
Provision for gratuity liability - 1,102,691
Provision for Leave encashment 388,000 1,369,948
' Total 2,085,792 7,429,327




10. Fixed Assets

COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

in Rupees
Gross Block at Cost Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
Ason Additions Deductions / Ason Upto For the Deductions / Upto As on As on

April 1,2014 Adjustments |- March 31,2015 April 1,2014 Period Adjustments| March 31, 2015 March 31, 2015 | March 31,2014

Tangible assets
Fumniture & Fixtures 1,085,460 275,840 - 1,361,300 781,981 104,036 886,017 475,283 303,479
Office Equipments 4,797,569 686,543 - 5,484,112 1,722,792 606,763 - 2,329,555 3,154,558 3,074,777
Computers 3,912,936 - - 3,912,936 3,091,560 328,549 3,420,110 492,826 821,376
Lease Improvements 4,916,784 | 11,191,010 - 16,107,794 1,155,759 1,927,380 3,083,139 13,024,655 3,761,025
Vehicles 1,285,626 - 1,285,626 609,257 175,112 784,369 501,257 676,369
Total 15,998,375 | 12,153,393 - 28,151,768 7,361,349 3,141,840 - 10,503,190 17,648,579 8,637,026

Gross Block at Cost Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
Ason Additions | Deductions / Ason Up to For the Deductions / Up to Ason Ason
April 1, 2013 Adjustments|{ March 31,2014 April 1,2013 Period Adjustments| March 31,2014 | March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
Tangible assets :

Fumniture & Fixtures 1,159,089 - 73,629 1,085,460 765,629 69,930 53,578 781,981 303,479 393,460
Office Equipments 5,559,632 - 762,063 4,797,569 1,446,386 547,851 271,445 1,722,792 3,074,777 4,113,246
Computers 7,308,327 - 3,395,391 3,912,936 5,673,293 619,935 | 3,201,668 3,091,560 821,376 1,635,034
Lease Improvements 4,916,784 - - 4,916,784 663,597 492,162 | - 1,155,759 3,761,025 4,253,187
Vehicles 1,285,626 - - 1,285,626 372,607 236,650 .- 609,257 676,369 913,019
Total 20,229,458 - 4,231,083 15,998,375 8,921,512 1,966,528 | 3,526,691 7,361,349 8,637,026 11,307,946
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11 |Deferred Taxes Margﬁ,;so 15 Mar;hui)le,efo 14
Deferred tax asset
Due to fixed assets 1,519,639 1,480,005
Due to rent equalisation reserve 1,153,217 874,973
Due to leave encashment 125,885 444 480
Due to Bonus 550,840 509,591
Due to gratuity {170,695) 357,768
Net deferred tax asset 3,178,886 3,666,817
12 | Loans and Advances March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 4,407,134 -
Sundry Deposits 4,620,972 " 4620972
) Total 9,028,106 4,620,972
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
13 jOther Assets
Rupees Rupees
Non-Current
{Other bank balances
— Deposits with original maturity more than 12 months - 7,020,146
Total - 7,020,146
1'4 Other Assefs March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit 605,425 860,179
Total 605,425 860,179
15 ITrade Receivables March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Unsecur/ed, considered good 3,815,619 6,626,851
Total 3,815,619 6,626,851
16 |Cash and bank balances March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash equivalents
(i1) Balances with banks:
— In current accounts 26,485,451 9,412,035
— Deposits with original maturity within 3 months - 5,000,000
26,485,451 14,412,035
Other bank balances
— Deposits with original maturity between 3 to 12 months 22,649,406 25,000,000
Total 49,134,857 39,412,035
17| Loans and Advances March 31,2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 101,340 1,252,961
Cenvat Credit receivable 235919 235,919
Prepaid expenses - 325,801
Other loans and advances 63,610 -
Loans and advances to employees 22,220 91,703
Gratuity 526,114 -
Total 949,203 1,906,384
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18{Income from operations March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Researched Data Processing Services 69,237,542 74,171,419
Total 69,237,542 74,171,419
19]Other income March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Interest income 2,155,180 2,208.236
Foreign Exchange Gain - 2,742,517
Total 2,155,180 4,950,753
20(|Personnel expenses March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Salaries, wages and bonus 33,742,767 39,052,370
Contribution to:
Provident fund 410,388 447,650
Other fund (26,000) 252,141
Staff welfare expenses 1,549,988 2,264,996
Total 35,677,143 42,017,157
21| Establishment Expenses March 31,2015 March 31,2014
. Rupees Rupees
Repairs and Maintenance-Building 2,102,563 2,016,505
Repairs and Maintenance-Others 1,564,587 2,683,100
Electricity 1,254,628 1,594 341
Communication expenses 1,069,267 1,263,133
Insurance 19,351 47,582
Premises rent (Refer note no.30) 7,308,204 7,472;808
Total 13,318,600 15,077,469
22|Other Expenses March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Foreign Exchange Loss 2,249,109 -
Printing and Stationery 55,102 113,896
Travelling & Conveyance 1,504,360 2,914,803
Bank charges 35,362 110,252
Professional fees 2,226,808 2,274,567
Software Maintenance Expenses 85,000 -
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - 704,390
Auditors' remuneration (Refer Note 27) 80,000 80,000
Miscellaneous Expense 142,762 102,156
Membership and subscription 159,919 238,436
Total 6,538,422 6,538,500
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23 Details of Contingent liabilities are as under :
a) |Contingent Liabilities March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
] Rupees Rupees
Disputed Income Tax Demand pending before Appelate Authority
AY.2010-11 : . 2,683,680 2,683,680
AY.2011-12 6,982,430 6,982,430
A.Y.2012-13 7,098,639 -
b) |Commitments March 31,2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 591,422 9,797,951
not provided for
24 The Company has a process of identification of ‘suppliers registered under the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006 by obtaining confirmations from suppliers. There are no Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom any amount was payable
on account of principal amount or interest, accordingly no additional disclosures have been made.
25 Payment in Foreign Currency
Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency, on account of expenses
. March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Foreign Travel 63,611 498,571
Total 63,611 498,571
26 Earning in foreign currency Rs. 69,237,543 (P.Y. Rs. 74,171,419)
27 Auditors' Remuneration includes :
Parti March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
articulars
Rupees Rupees
Audit Fees 60,000 60,000
Other Certificates 20,000 20,000
Total 80,000 80,000
28 Segment Reporting
Business Segments:
The Company's main business is to provide researched data processing services. The business operations of the company
are primarily concentrated in one geographical location. As such, there is no separate reportable segment as per accounting
standard 17 on segment reporting,
29 List of Related
Parties Relationship
Related parties where control exists
CRISIL Limited Holding Company
Coalition Development Ltd, UK Fellow Subsidiary
Mercator Info Services India Pvt Ltd Fellow Subsidiary
Related Party Disclosure .
Name of the related party Nature of transaction March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Coalition Development Ltd, UK Service Income 69,237,543 74,171 419
Amount Receivable 3,815,619 6,626,851
CRISIL Limited Share Capital Outstanding 500,000 500,000
Reimbursement of expenses 181,627 -
Mercator Info Service India Pvt Ltd Reimbursement of Expense Paid 1,795,307 3,305,404
. Reimbursement of Expense Received 79918 -
Amount Payable - 533,100
30 Operating Lease

The Company has taken office premises on cancelable operating lease basis and which have a price escalation clause.
Details as regards payments and future commitments are as under :

Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees

Lease Payment recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 7,308,204 7,472,808
Future Minimum Lease Payments :

Not later than One Year 6,856,930 3,975,032
Later than One Year & not later than Five Years 29,827,646 -
Later than Five Years 14,325,270 -
Total 51,009,847 3,975,032
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Employee Retiral Benefits : {AS 15)(As per Actuarial Valuation Report)

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan
covering eligible employees of the Company. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and

tenure of employment with the Group.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
the funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for the respective plans.

Statement of Profit and Loss:
Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)

Particulers

March 31,2015§

March 31,2014

Rupees ; Rupees
Current Service cost -276, 501 510,651
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 242, 694 263,323
Expected return on plan assets (201,000) (193,813)
Net actuarial loss recognised in the year (345,000) (330,827)
Net Gratuity Benefit Expense (26,805) 249,334
Balance Sheet:
Details of Provision for Gratuity Benefit .

. March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Particulars

Rupees | Rupees
Present value of funded obligations (2,608,576) (2,735,381)
Less: Fair value of plan assets 3,134,690 1,632,690
Net (Liability)/Assets 526,114 (1,102,691)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

March 31,2015

March 31,2014

Particulars
Rupees Rupees

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 2,735,381‘ 3,191,799
Current Service Cost 276, 50] 510,651
Interest Cost 242 694 263,323
Actuarial (gain)/loss (408, 000) (378,891)
Benefits paid (238,000) (851,501)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 2,608,576 2,735,381

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2014

Particulars
Rupees Rupees

Opening Fair value of plan assets 1,632,690 2,227,730
Expected return on plan assets 201,000 193,813
Actuarial gain/ (loss) (63,000) (48,064)
Contribution by employer 1,602,000 110,712
Benefits paid (238,000) (851,501)
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 3,134,690 1,632,690

Experience Adjustment

Particulars

March 31, 2015

March 31,2014

The principal assumptions used in determining Gratuity for the Company’s plans is as below: |

Rupees . ‘Rupees
On plan liability Gain/(Loss) on Plan Liabilities 617,000 219,972
On plan liability Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets (63 000;) (48,064)

Particulars

March 31,2015

March 31, 2014

Discount Rate
Estimated rate of return on plan assets
Attrition Rate

Salary Escalation

7.80%
8.70%
12.00%,
6.00%

9.29%
8.70%
12.00%
6.00%)

and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Details of unhedged foreign exposure

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of mﬂatlon seniority, promotion

Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31,2014

Rupees Rupees
Currency Assets ) Liabilities  Assets Liabilities
GBP - 3.815.619 - 11,452,283 5
| Total 3.815.619 - 11.452,283 _
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33 Previous period comparatives
Previous period figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current year's classification.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE
LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S COALITION
DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”)(which continue to be applicable in respect of section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in terms of General Circular 15/2013 dated September 13,2013 of the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.




Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
a. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2014;
b. in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date;

¢. in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

]. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of scction 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 (which continue to be applicable in respect of section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in terms of General Circular 15/2013 dated September 13,2013 of
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs);

e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2014,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2014, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section
(1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

f) Since the Central Government has not issued any notification as to the rate at which the
cess is to be paid under section 441 A of the Companies Act, 1956 nor has it issued any
Rules under the said section, prescribing the manner in which such cess is to be paid, no
cess is due and payable by the Company.

For M.BADVANI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg/No - 100052W__ R

777 A3~ vl )
ukesh B . Advani

(Proprietor)

Membership No. — 037657

Place: Mumbai

Date:August 14,2014



ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph (3) of our report of even date on the accounts for the vear ended
31° March, 2014, of COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED.

[. (@) The Company has maintained proper records to show full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified during the year by the management in accordance
with a programme of verification, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, the fixed
assets have been physically verified by the management, during the year and no material
discrepancies between the book records and the physically inventory have been noticed.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, a substantial
part of fixed assets has not been disposed of by the Company during the year.

2. (a) The company has no inventory, hence this clause is not applicable.
(b) The company has no inventory, hence this clause is not applicable.

(¢) The company has no inventory, hence this clause is not applicable.

3. (@) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 30] of the Act, and
accordingly clauses (iii) (b), (iii) (c) and (iii) (d) of paragraph 4 of the order are not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not taken any
loans, secured or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties covered in the
Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, and accordingly
clauses (iii) (f) and (iii) (g) are not applicable.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business for obtaining the services, fixed assets and for rendering the services.
Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across nor

have been informed of any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid
internal control procedures.




**2**

5. (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions that need to be entered into the register in pursuance of Section 301 of Act,
have been so entered.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions made in pursuance of the contracts or arrangements entered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of
Rs. Five Lakhs in respect of any party during the year have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time, except that
reasonableness could not be ascertained where comparable quotations are not avajlable
having regard to the specialized nature of some of the transactions of the Company.

6. The Company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of Sections 58A and S8AA
of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

7. In our optnion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and
nature of its business.

8. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

9. (a) According to records examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, MVAT, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Weaith Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, -
Wealth-tax, Customs Duty, and Excise Duty were outstanding, at the year end for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, except for disputed Income Tax
Assessment dues mentioned below, there are no other dues of Sales Tax, Income Tax,
Customs Duty, Wealth Tax, Excise Duty or Cess outstanding on account of any dispute.

Name of the statute Nature of dues =~ Forum where Period to which Amount involved
dispute is pending amount relates

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax Commissioner of A.Y.2010-11 26,83,680/-
[ncome Tax(Appeals)
AY.2011-12 69,82,430/-

10. The Company has no accumulated losses as at 31% March, 2014 and it has not incurred any

cash losses in the financial year ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial
year.

11. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or
bank or debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

**3 ¥ %

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted loans
and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares and other securities.

The provisions of special statute applicable to chit fund and nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society
are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not a dealer or trader in shares, securities, debentures and
other investments.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the record examined by us, the
Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial
institutions.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no term loans were availed by the Company-during the year.

On the basis of an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, in our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no funds raised on a
short-term basis which have been used for long- term investment, and vice versa.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies
covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act during the vear.

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year.
The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
such case by the management.

For M.BADVANI & CoO.
Chartered Act

(Proprietor)

Membership No. - 037657
Place: Mumbaij
Dated: August 14,2014



COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014

Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share Capital 3 5,00,000 5,00,000
Reserves and Surplus 4 6,44,64,787 5.36,87,756
Current liabilities
Trade payables N 41,31,656 42,21,346
Other current [iabilities 6 7,36,478 4,79,587
Short-term provisions 7 1,00,14,992 1,17,63,503
TOTAL 7,98,47,913 7,06,52,192
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed Assets
Tangible assets 9 86,37,026 1,13,07,946
Capital work-in-progress 70,97,503 -
Deferred tax assets(Net) 8 36,66,817 13,62,650
Long-term loans and advances 11 46,20,972 46,20,972
Other Non Current Assets 10 70,20,146 £,00,000
Current assets
Trade Recejvables 12 66,26,851 1,83,17,420
Cash and bank balances 13 3,94,12,035 3,31,39,697
Short-term loans and advances 11 16,06,384 9,50,717
Other current assets 10 8,60,179 8,52,790
TOTAL 7,98,47,913 7,06,52,192
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's Report

Signed in terms of separate report of even date.

M.B. ADVAN( & CO.
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Director
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COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2014

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
INCOME
Income from operations 14 7,41,71,419 11,38,71,106
Other Income 15 49,50,753 11,49,071
TOTAL 7,91,22,172 11,50,20,177
EXPENDITURE
Personnel expenses 16 4,20,17,157 6,24,47,777
Establishment expenses 17 1,50,77,469 1,77,98,735
Other expenses 18 65,38,500 1,37,45,385
Depreciation 9 19,66,528 25,009,041
TOTAL 6,55,99,654 9,65,00,938
Profit Before Exceptional And
Extraordinary Items And Tax 1,35,22,518 1,85,19,239
Exceptional ltem - -
Profit Before
Extraordinary ltems And Tax 1,35,22,518 1,85,19,239
Extraordinary Items - -
Profit Before Tax 1,35,22,518 1,85,19,239
Tax Expense
Current tax 50,49,656 70,00,000
Deferred tax charge / (Berefit) (23,04,168) (18,80,336)
Total Tax Expeuse 27,45,488 51,19,664
Profit After Tax 1,07,77,030 1,33,99,575
Profit for the year from operations 1,07,77,030 1,33,99,575
Eamings per share : Nominal value of Rs.10/- per share :
Basic 215.54 267.99
Diluted 215.54 267.99
Number of Shares used in Computing
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share 50,000 50,000
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's Report
Signed In termgs of separate report of even date.
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COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2014

March 31, 2014 | March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
. |Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
Profit before tax 1,35,22,518 1.85,19,239
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 19,66,528 25,09,041
Loss on sale of assets 7,04,391 -
Interest on deposits (22,08,236) {11,49,071)
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,39,85,202 1,98,79,209
Movements in working capital
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 1,16,90,570 (54,62,212)
- (Increase)/decrease in advances (78,75,813) 26,57,642
- (Tncrease)/decrease in other assets (7,389) -
- Increase/(decrease) in sundry creditors (89.690) 30,64,873
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities and provisions (14,03,587) 52,47.124
Cash generated from operations 1,62,99,293 2,53,86,636
- Taxes paid 51,37,687 71,26,769
Net cash generated from operating activities - (A) 1,11,61,606 1,82,59,867
. |Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of fixed assets - (9,03,198)
Capital wrok-in-progress (70,97.503) -
Interest on deposits & loans 22,08,236 4,82,578
Net cash generated from investing activities - (B) (48,89,267) (4,20,620)
Cash flow from Financing Activity:
Net cash generated from financing activities - (C) - -
Net [ncrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 62,72,339 1,78,39,247
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance 3,31,39,697 1,53,00,449
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing balance 3,94,12,035 3,31,39,697
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 62,72,339 1,78,39,247
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at
with banks on current account 94,12,035 1,13,48,517
with bank in fixed deposits with original maturity period of less than 3
months or less 50,00,000 50,00,000
with bank in fixed deposits with original maturity period of more than 3
months but less than 12 months 2,50,00,000 1,67,91,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financlal statements.
Auditor's Report

Signed in terms of separate report of even date
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Director
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Director




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2014

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

25

Nature of Operations
The Company is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing services.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indjan
GAAP) under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis in compliance with all material aspect of the Accounting
Standard (AS}) Notified by Companies Accounting Standard Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 {to the extent notified) and the Companics Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable). The accounting
policies have been consistently applied and are consistent with those used in the previous years.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current/ Non-Current classificalion of assets and liabilities

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal aperating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956. Based on the nature of products and the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as up to (welve months for the purpose of current — Non Current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting year end.Although these

estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions,actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase
price and any attributable cost of bringing the asse 1o its working condition for its intended use.ltems of fixed asset held for
disposal are stated at lower of the net book value and net realisable value and are shown under other current assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on all the assets under Wriiten-Down value Melhod on pro-rata basis on the assets, which were in
use during the year at the rates prescribed in Schedule X1V of the Companies Act, 1956. If the assets are purchased during
the year, depreciation is provided on pro - rata basis from the date the assets are instafled. In case the assets are sold,
depreciation is provided on the same upto the date of sale on pro ~ rata basis.The perpetual software licenses are
depreciated over a period of three (3) years .The non-perpetual licenscs are writtenoff in the license period.

Assets Schedule XIV
Rates (WDV)
Furniture & Fixtures 18.10%
Office Equipments 13.91%
Computers 40.00%
Vehicles 25.89%

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term on Straight Line Basis.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to (he present value at interest rate specific to the asset and in

case where the specific rate is not available at the weighted average cost of capital which is adjusted for country
risk/currency risk.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining usefu! life.




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2014

26

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

Operating_I eases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease 1erm.

[nvestments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classificd as current investments.
All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value
determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for
diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 1o the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured.

Income from Operations

Income from Operations comprises of Income from Researched Data Processing Services and same is recognised for on

accrual basis when the service has been provided and in accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the
company and the counter party.

Interest Inconte
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount oulstanding and the rate applicable,

Retirerment_and other emplovee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged 10 the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions (o the respective funds are due. There are no other
obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities or trusts.

Contribution to Gratwity fund of LIC is made and Actuarial valuation is obtained to ascerain the liability. During the year

gratuity liability is providea for on the basis of an Actuarial valuation on projecied unit credit method made at the end of
financial year.

Compensated absences are provided for based on acruarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit
credit method.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amounts, the monthly
average exchange rates for the respective periods in which the transaction takes place.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the ¢losing rates. Non monetary items which are carried in terms of
historical costs denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange Difference

Exchange differences relating to long term monetary items, arising during the year, such differences are accumulated in the
“ Foreign Currency Monelary Item Translation Account™ and amortised to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the

balance life of the long term monetary item. All other exchange differences are recognised as income or expense in the
Statement of Profit ang Loss.

Non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reporied using the exchange
rate al the date of the transaction; and non-monetary itcms which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate that cxisted, when the values were determined.

Exchange differences arising as a resalt of the above are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2014

2.1

2.12

2.13

2.14

The foreign curréncy transactions have been accounted in accordance with AS-11 issued by the ICAI Monetary
transactions arising in foreign currency during the year are converted at Bank rates as per Bank advice received during the
year. In absence of Bank intimation, and for transactions outstanding as on the year end date, the exchange rate prevailing
on that date is taken.

Taxes On Income

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Current income tax is measured at the amount expecied to be paid to the
tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act of 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income taxes reflects the
impact of current year timing differences between taxable incomc and accounting income for the year and reversal of
timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax asseis and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 1ax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate 10 the taxes on income levied by
same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there js reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where
the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, ail deferred tax asscts are recognised only if there is
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.

At cach balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred
tax assets to the cxtent that it has become reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheer date. The Company writes down the
carrying amount of a Deferred Tax Asset to the extent it is no longer reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which Deferred Tax Asset can be realised. Any such write down is
reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available,

Segment Reporting Policies

Segment Poligies:

The Company mainly is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing Services and primarily concentrated in
one geographical location.Hence there is only one segment of business.

Eamings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable fo equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity

shareholders and the weiphted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to seltle the obligation, in respect of which a refiable estimate can be made. Provisions are not
discounted 1o its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to seftle the obligation at the balance
sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 1o reflect the current best estimates.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with
original maturity of three months or less.




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

3|Share Capital March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Authorised Capital:
50,000 Lquity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5,00,000 5,00,000
|

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up (P.Y. 50,000 shares of

Rs. 10/- each) 5,00,000 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000 5,00,000

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Equity shares

March 31, 2014

Rs. Nos.
At the beginning of the period (face value of Rs. 10/- per share) 5,00,000 50,000
Add: Shares issues during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 5,00,000 50,000

March 31, 2013

Rs. Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Rs. 10/- per share) 5.00,000 50,000
Add: Shares issucs during the year -
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,00,000 50,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per sharc. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 10 receive remaining assets of
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 16 the number of
equity shares held by the sharcholders.

(¢) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their
subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Particulars Rupees Rupees
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- are held by CRISIL Ltd (Holding 5,00,000 $,00,000
Company)

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than S% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder March 31, 2014
% holding in the Nos,
class
Lauity shares s. [0/-each fully paid
CRISIL Lid 100% 50,000
Name of the shareholder March 31, 2013
% holding in the Nos.
class

Eaquity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid

CRISIL Ltd 100% 50,000




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

_
Reserves and Surplus

—
March 31, 2014

March 31, 2013

Rupees Rupees
Surplus:
Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 5,36,87,756 4,02,88,18]
Add: Profit after tax for the year 1.07,77,030 1,33,99,575
Le¢ss: Appropriations - -
Total appropriations - -
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 6,44,64,787 5,36,87,756
Total 6,44,64,787 5,36,87,756
Trade Payables March 31,2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Current
Trade payables (Refer Note No. 20) 41,31,656 42,21,346
Total 41,31,656 42,21,346
Other liabilities March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Current
Statutory Dues 7.36,478 4,79,587
Total 7,36,478 4,79,587
Provisions March 31,2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Current
Provision for emplovee benefits
Provision for Leave Encashment 13,69,948 17,13,086
Provision for bonus 49.56.688 64,12,650
Proviston for Gratuity(Refer Note No.27) 11,02,69 1 9,64,069
74,29,327 90,89,805
Other provisions
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 25,85,665 26,73,698
25,85,665 26,73,698
Total 1,00,14,992 1,17,63,503
Deferred Tax Asset March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax asset
Due to rent equalisation reserve 8.74,973 -
Due 1o fixed assets 14,80,005 13,62,650
Due (o gratuity liability 3,57,768 -
Due to lcave encashment payable 4,44,480 -
Due to bonus payable 5,09,591 -
Gross deferred tax asset 36,66,817 13,62,650




68L'E16T'1 9r6'L0'C1' TS IT68 - 1H0°60°ST LYYy 8S1'67°70°C - 861'€0'6 097'9T'¢6' e)oy
0L6° 1T 610'C1°6 L09'2L'S - 156'81°C 959°€S 929°¢8°71 - - 979°58'21 SANYIA
11°0S'LY L81'€S°TY L6S'C9'9 ) 926'9%6p 12999°1 PBL'91'6Y - - p3L916Y sjusuraA01dw pjoyaseay
0L pL0'SE91 6T LL9S - 625°L0°01 YILS99 LTEB0'EL - £STS1'Y ¥10°€6'89 sindwo)
ve6'€TTH LRI 98'9F b1 - £89'86'S 0L Lb'S 7£9'65'SS - §P6'LB'Y LB91L'0S siwawdinbg 2010
o8’y 09V'E6's 679's9°L - 256'98 LLY'8L9 680°65°11 - - 6806511 saImixiJ % mpwny
51955 2q13un ],
TI0T ‘1€ We CI0Z 1LWEN | €107 1YW | swaunsnfpy poNdd 7107 ‘1 1dy £10T ‘1€ Yarep siwaunsalpy Z10z 1 1dy
0o Sy uo sy o1dn / SuoIapd( s Joy ordn uo sy / SUonoNpaQg FUOMPPY uo sy
R301g BN nogEziomyuoRERIdQ PajenwRIY 150D )8 0| g $S04D)
96 LOET'Y 970298 6¥19'tL 169°97'SE 875'99'61 TS'1T68 SLE'86'6S'1 £80°1C'7y - $SH62'20'T 1Bjo)
610°CI'6 §9¢€'9L9 LST'60'9 - 059'9£'7 LO9TLE 979'58°TI - - 979'58°ZI SOPIYIA
LR1'ES'TH STO'I9'LE 651511 - 'Sy L65°€9'9 Y8L9I°6p - - p8L91'6¥ suawar0IduT ploysses]
p£0'ST9 9LETTS 095'16°0¢1 299°10°¢ $£6'61°9 £62'CL°9S 9€6°21°6€ 16£'$6'CE - LTE0'EL siaindwo))
WY LLLYLOE WLTTL SHYIL'T 1S8°LY°S 98I 695°L6'LY £90°79°L - 7£9'65°SS sjuawdinbg 2030
00v'C6't SLY'E0C 186°18°L 8L5'€S 0£6'69 679°S9'L 09b°$8°01 679°tL - 680'65°11 SUMXI ] % AMyIuIn |
$13s8€ 3[qI3u k]|
£10T ‘1€ Yore PIOZ 1S YPRN | €107 1€ WRW | sudsinasn(py pousq £107 1 udy PLOT 1€ Yore siuounsnipy €10z 1 dy
o sy uo sy oydn / suonanpaQq a Jog adn uo sy / suondnpag SUCHIPPY uo sy

HI0I N

1ONEZILIOW YOO EINAIAA( PAEINWNIIY

1S07) Je N20|g SSOu D

(seadny wi sunowe | vy)

$)J3SSY PAxI] 6

QALIAIT ALVATEd (VIAND SIWALSAS INAWJOTIAAA NOILITVOD




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

- 10]Other Assets o March 31,2014 | March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
ACurrent
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 8,60,179 §.52,790
Total(A) 8,60,179 8,52,790
(b)Non Current
Other Bank Balances
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 70,20,146 1,00,000
Total(B) 70,20,146 1,00,000
Grand total(A+B) 78,80,325 9,52,790
11{Loans and Advances March 31,2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupces
(a)Current
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances 11,82,409 -
Loans and Advances to related parties - 3,501,302
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 70,552 13,679
Other loans and advances
Loan and advances to employees 91,703 2,62,371
Service (ax input credit receivable 2,35919 -
Prepaid expenses 3.25,801 3,23,365
Total(A) 19,06,384 9,50,717
(b)Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposit 46,20,972 46,20,972
Total(B) 46,20,972 46,20,972
Grand total(A+B) 65,27,356 55,71,689
12| Trade Receivables March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due - -
Other regeivables
Unsecured, considered good 66,26,851 1,83,17,420
Total 66,26,851 1,83,17,420
13{Cash and bank balances March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash equivalents
(i)Cash in hand - -
(ii)Balances with banks:
— In current accounts 54,12,035 1,13,48,517
94,12,035 1,13,48,517
Qther bank halances
— Deposits with original maturity within 12 months 3,00.00,000 2,17.91,180
Total 3,94,12,035 3,31,39,697




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014
-

-
March 31, 2014

|
March 31, 2013

14|Income from operations
Rupees Rupees
Researched Data Processing Service 7,41,71,419 11,38,71,106
Total 7,41,71,419 11,38,71,106
15|Other income March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupces Rupees
Interest on bank deposits 22,08,236 11,49,071
Foreign Exchange Gain(net) 27.42,517 -
Total 49,50,753 11,49,071
16|Personnel expenses March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Salaries, wages and bonus 3,89,14,191 5,56,60,018
Leave Encashment 32,381 19,24,010
Contribution io:
Provident funds 4,47,650 6,80,172
Other funds(Refer Note No. 27) 2,52,142 18.54,774
Staff welfare expenses 21,90,468 21,76,987
Staff Insurance and Mediclaim 1,80,325 1,51,816
Total 4,20,17,157 6,24,47,777
17|Establishment Expenses March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings 11,10,554 17,17,877
Repairs and maintenance - Others 35,89,051 38,846,429
Eleciricity 15,94,341) 21,80,200
Communication expenses 12,63,133 18,336,005
Insurance 47,582 72,050
Rent (Refer Note No.26 ) 74.72,808 81,06,174
Total 1,50,77,469 1,77,98,735
18|Other Expenses March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Foreign Exchange Loss (net) - 30,44,338
Service Tax - 27,08,582
Fixed asscts writtenoff 7,04.391 -
Bank Charges 1,10,252 1.01,251
Printing and stationery 1,13.896 2,16,384
Stamp Duty & Other Legal Expenses 1,000 - 4,671,774
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 27,23,052 26,25,269
Books and periodicals 7.852 36,719
Other Miscellancous Expenses 2,86,054 1,21,380
Asset Usage Charges 77,218 1,52,521
Professional fees 21,96,349 40,79,367
Auditors' remuneration(Refer Note No. 22) 80,000 1,20,000
Membership & Subscription Charges 2,38,436 71,799
Total 65,138,500 1,37,45,385




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2014

Details of Contingent liabilities and commitments are as under

Contingent Liabilities As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2014 2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Disputed Income Tax Demand for A.Y.2010-11 pending before Appelate Authority 26,83,680 26,83,680
Disputed Income Tax Demand for A.Y.2011-12 pending before Appelate Authority 69,82,430 -
Commitments As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2014 2013
(Rupees) {Rupees)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed on capital account and not 9797951 -
provided for

The Company has the process of identification of ‘suppliers’ registered under the “The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development (‘MSMED”) Act, 2006” by obtaining confirmations from supptiers. There are no Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom the
compariy owes dues on account of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have

21
a)

b)

22

23

24

been made.

Payment in Foreign Currency

Value of imports calculated on C.1F basis for Capital goods:

Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Value Of Capital goods imported on C.I.F Basis - -
Total - -
Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency, on account of expenses
Parliculars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Foreign Travel 4,98,571 422,991
Total 498,571 4,22,99]1
Auditors' Remuneration includes :
Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) (Rupcees)
Audit Fees 60,000 85,000
Taxation Marniers 20,000 35,000
Total 80,000 1,20,000

Secgment Reporting
Business Segments:

The Company's main business is to provide researched data processing services. The business operations of the company
are primarily concentrated in one geographical location. As such, there is no separate reportable segment as per accounting

standard 17 on segmeni reporting.

List of Related Parties

Parties

Relationship

Related parties where control exists

CRISIL Linvited
Coalition Development Ltd, UK

Mercator Info Service India Pvt Ltd

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2014

25 Related Party Disclosure

Name of the Nature of transaction March 31,2014  |March 31,2013

related party (Rupees) (Rupees)

Coalition

Development Lid, |Researched Data Processing

UK Service 741,71,419 11,38,71,106
Reimbursement of Expense - 3,48,252
Amount Receivable 66,26,851 1,86,68,722

CRISIL Limited Share Capital Outstanding 5,00,000 5,00,000

Mercator Info

Service Indja Pvt

[ad Reimbursement of Expense 33,05,404 50,64,245
Amount Pavable 5,33,100 10,68.785

26

27

Operating | ease

The Company has taken certain office premises on non cancelable operating lease basis. Some of these agreements have a
price escalation clause. Details as regards payments and {uture commitments are as under :

Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)

Leasc Payment recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 74,72,808 81,06,174
Future Minimum 1 ease Pavments :

Not later than One Year 39,75,032 59,62,548
Later than One Year & not later than Five Years . 39,75,032
Later than Five Years - -
Total 39,75,032 99,37,580

Employee Retiral Benefits : (AS 15)(As per Actuarial Valuation Report)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a
gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an
insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market,

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
the funded status and amounts recogoised in the Balance Sheet for the respective plans.

Statement of Profit and Loss:
Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)

Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Current Service cost 5,10,651 3,15,674
Interest cost 2,63,323 95,561
Expected return on plan assets {1,93,813) (1,22,651)
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year (3.30.827) 15,62,734
Net Gratuity Benefit Expense 2,49,334 18,51,318




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2014

Balance Sheet:
Details of Provision for Gratuity Benefit

Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
{Rupees) (Rupecs)
Fair value of the plan asset af the end of the year 16,32,690 22,27,730
(Present value of Benefit obligation at the end of the period) (27,35,381) (31,91,799)
Funded Status (11,02,691) (9,64,069)
Net Asset/(Liability) Recognised in the Balancesheet (11,02,691) {9,64,069)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 31,91,799 11,94,517
Current Service Cost 5,10,651 3,15,674
Interest Cost 2,63,323 95,561
Plan Amendment Cost -
Actuarial (gain)/loss (3,78,891) 15,86,047
Benefits paid (8.51,501) -
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 27,35,381 31,91,799
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Opening Fair value of plan assets 22,27,730 15,33,142
Expected return on plan assets 1,93,813 1,22,65]
Actuarial gain/ (loss) (48,064) 23,313
Contribution by employer 1,10,712 5,48,624
Benefiis paid (8,51,501) -
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 16,32,690 22,27,730




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2014

Experience Adjustment

Particulars April 01, 2013 -

March 31, 2014
On plan liability(gain)/losses (2,19,972)
On plan assets(losses)/gains (48,064)
The principal assumptions used in determining Gratuity for the Company s ptans is as below:
Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
Discount Rale 9.28% 8.25%
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 8.70% 8.70%
Attrition Rate 12.00% 12.00%
Salary Escalation 6.00% 6.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply end demand in the employment market.

28 Previous yvear comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current vear's classification.

Auditor's Report
Signed in terms of separate report of even date.
M.B. ADVANI & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No - 1000.

Mukesh Advani
Proprietor

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors

ket M

Ravishankar Gedela
Director Director

pate: 4 A AUL LUIH
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Coalition Development Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd
Unit 2, 7" Floor, Bldg. 5 & 6, Mindspace SEZ,
Thane Belapur Rd, Airoli, Navi Mumbai, India - 400708

COALITION Tel: +91 22 39116400 Fax: +91 22 66733721

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Ninth Annual General Meeting will be held on Friday, September 6, 2013 at
11:00 a.m. at CRISIL House, Central Avenue, Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, Mumbai 400 076 to transact

the following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Profit & Loss Account of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2013 and the audited Balance Sheet as at that date, together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors

thereon.

2. To appoint director in place of Mr. Raman Uberoi, who retires by rotation and being eligible, seeks re-

appointment.

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 224 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956, M/s M. B. Advani & Co., Chartered Accountants having registration No. 100052W, be
and hereby re-appointed statutory auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Meeting
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, on such remuneration to be fixed

by the Board of Directors of the Company.”
By order of the Board of Directors

Raman Uberoi
Director

Regd.Office :

701B Churchgate Chambers
5 New Marine Lines
Mumbai 400 020

Mumbai, August 12, 2013

Registered Office: 701 B, Churchgate Chambers, 5, New Marine Lines, Mumbai, India - 400020
Tel: +91 22 61713690 Fax: +91 22 22703690



Coalition Development Systems (india) Pvt. Ltd
Unit 2, 7 Floor, Bidg. 5 & 6, Mindspace SEZ,
Thane Belapur Rd, Airoli, Navi Mumbai, India - 400708

COALITION Tel: +91 22 39116400 Fax: +91 22 66733721

NOTES :

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in
his stead and a proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. An Explanatory statement pursuant to section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, relating to the special
business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

3. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

Registered Office: 701 B, Churchgate Chambers, 5, New Marine Lines, Mumbai, India - 400020
Tel: +91 22 61713690 Fax: +91 22 22703690



Coalition Development Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd
Unit 2, 7" Floor, Bldg. 5 & 6, Mindspace SEZ,
Thane Belapur Rd, Airoli, Navi Mumbai, india - 400708

GOAI;HTON Tel: +91 22 39116400 Fax: +91 22 66733721

DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors herewith present their Ninth Annual Report together with Audited Statement of Accounts and the
Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2013.

Accounts : During the year under review, your Company has earned Net Profit after tax of Rs. 1,33,99,575/-
(Previous Year Rs. 80,99,494/-).

Shareholding: The Company continues to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRISIL Limited.

Dividend : Your Company has decided to retain the earnings for growth of the company’s business activities,

hence no dividend is proposed for the year.

Business Plans : During the year under review, your Company continued to provide Researched Data Processing

Services to Coalition Development Limited, a fellow subsidiary of CRISIL Limited.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement : Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies

Act, 1956 with respect to Directors’ responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

i. that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2013, the applicable

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii. that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year under review;

iii. that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the company and

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. that the directors had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2013 on a ‘going

concern’ basis.

Registered Office: 701 B, Churchgate Chambers, 5, New Marine Lines, Mumbai, india - 400020
Tel: +91 22 61713690 Fax: 491 22 22703630



Coalition Development Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd

Unit 2, 7" Floor, Bldg. 5 & 6, Mindspace SEZ,
Thane Belapur Rd, Airoli, Navi Mumbai, India - 400708

GOAI.‘ITION Tel: +91 22 39116400 Fax: +91 22 66733721
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Directors : Mr. Raman Uberoi retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Auditors : M/s M. B. Advani & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Auditors of the company retire at the ensuing

Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for reappointment.

Personnel : During the year, one employee received remuneration of Rs 6 million or more per annum. In
accordance with the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 and rules framed thereunder, the

names and other particulars are set out in the annexure to the Directors’ Report.

Particulars regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption : Since, the Company does not
own any manufacturing facility, the other particulars relating to conservation of Energy and technology
absorption stipulated in the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules,

1988 are not applicable.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo : The Company has earned Rs. 1 1,38,71,106/-equivalent to GBP
13,16,540.49 (previous year Rs. 8,91,48,074 equivalent to GBP 11,55,430) in foreign exchange during the year
under review. The total expenditure in foreign exchange for the year under review was Rs. 4,22,991 equivalent to

GBP 4,915 (previous year Rs. 20,61,458 equivalent to GBP 18,855 and USD 11,267).

Acknowledgement : Your Directors wish to place on record their grateful appreciation for the continued support,
co-operation and assistance extended to the Company from time to time by the Company’s Bankers, Clients, and
various authorities for their confirmed support, and for the hard work put in by the Employees at all levels.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DI TORS

agns

an Uberoi  Trevor Foster Black
Director Director

August 12,2013

Registered Office: 701 B, Churchgate Chambers, 5, New Marine Lines, Mumbai, India - 400020
Tel: +91 22 61713690 Fax: +91 22 22703690
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Statement pursuant to section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Particulars of Employees)
Rules, 1975 and forming part of the Directors' Report
for the Year ended March 31,2013

. ; . Datc of Previous
Namc of Designation/ Experic . .
Sr. . . Age Commence- Remuneration | Previous Employm
the Nature of Qualification nce . - . .
No . (Yrs) ment of Received (Rs) | Designation | ent
Employee Duties (Yrs)
Employment Company
Country Head -
Yogendra ircfslz(l)/nsible for MBA - 1Q
1 Deep P . Finance & 40 16 8-Jan-07 8,251,436 Co-promoter .
. the entire gamut . Arbitrage
Singh . . Marketing
of operations at
the India office

Registered Office: 701 B, Churchgate Chambers, 5, New Marine Lines, Mumbai, India - 400020
Tel: +91 22 61713690 Fax: +91 22 22703690



C.A. MUKESH B. ADVANI MoBo ADVANI & CO

B.COM.F.CA. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE
LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S COALITION
DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for oyr
audit opinion.

O
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
a. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;
b. in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit/ loss for the year ended on that date;

c. in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956;

e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2013,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section
(1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

f) Since the Central Government has not issued any notification as to the rate at which the
cess is to be paid under section 441A of the Companies Act, 1956 nor has it issued any
Rules under the said section, prescribing the manner in which such cess is to be paid, no
cess is due and payable by the Company.

For M.B.ADVANI & CO.
Chartered/Accountants

%WM\
Mukesh B. Advani ™3
(Proprietor)

Membership No. — 037657

Place:Mumbai
Date: August 12, 2013



ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph (3) of our report of even date on the accounts for the year ended 31*
March, 2013, of COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED.

- (@) The Company has maintained proper records to show full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified during the year by the management in accordance
with a programme of verification, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, the fixed
assets have been physically verified by the management, during the year and no material
discrepancies between the book records and the physically inventory have been noticed.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, a substantial
part of fixed assets has not been disposed of by the Company during the year.

- (a) The company has no inventory, hence this clause is not applicable.
(b) The company has no inventory, hence this clause is not applicable.

(¢) The company has no inventory, hence this clause is not applicable.

- (@) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act, and
accordingly clauses (iii) (b), (iii) (c) and (iii) (d) of paragraph 4 of the order are not
applicable.

(b)  According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not taken any
loans, secured or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties covered in the
Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, and accordingly
clauses (iii) (f) and (iii) (g) are not applicable.

. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business for obtaining the services, fixed assets and for rendering the services.
Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across nor
have been informed of any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid
internal control procedures.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

**2**

. (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

transactions that need to be entered into the register in pursuance of Section 301 of Act,
have been so entered.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions made in pursuance of the contracts or arrangements entered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of
Rs. Five Lakhs in respect of any party during the year have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time, except that
reasonableness could not be ascertained where comparable quotations are not available
having regard to the specialized nature of some of the transactions of the Company.

. The Company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of Sections 58A and 58AA

of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and

nature of its business.

. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under

clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

. (a) According to records examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing

undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, MVAT, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Wealth Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax,
Wealth-tax, Customs Duty, and Excise Duty were outstanding, at the year end for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, except for disputed Income Tax
Assessment dues amounting to Rs.34,09,600/-, there are no other dues of Sales Tax,
Income Tax, Customs Duty, Wealth Tax, Excise Duty or Cess outstanding on account of
any dispute,

The Company has no accumulated losses as at 31% March, 2013 and it has not incurred any

cash losses in the financial year ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial

year.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or
bank or debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted loans
and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares and other securities.

The provisions of special statute applicable to chit fund and nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society
are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not a dealer or trader in shares, securities, debentures and
other investments.
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17.
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20.
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**3 * %k

According to the information and explanations given to us and the record examined by us, the
Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial
institutions.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no term loans were availed by the Company during the year.

On the basis of an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, in our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no funds raised on a
short-term basis which have been used for long- term investment, and vice versa.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies
covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act during the year.

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year.
The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
such case by the management.

For M.B.ADVANI & CO.

Membership No. - 037657
Place: Mumbai
Dated: August 12, 2013



COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013

Particulars Notes As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds

Share Capital 3 5,00,000 5,00,000

Reserves and Surplus 4 5,36,87,756 4,02,88,181
Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 - 5,17,686
Current liabilities

Trade payables 5 42.21,346 11,56,473

Other current liabilities 4,79,587 4,31,843

Short-term provisions 7 1,17,63,503 66,90,892
TOTAL 7,06,52,192 4,95,85,075
ASSETS
Non-current assets

Fixed Assets

Tangible assets 9 1,13,07,946 1,29,13,789
Deferred tax assets(Net) 8 13,62,650

Long-term loans and advances 11 46,20,972 46,20,972

Other Non Current Assets 10 1,00,000 1,00,000
Current assets

Trade Receivables 12 1,83,17,420 1,28,55,208

Cash and bank balances 13 3,31,39,697 1,53,00,449

Short-term loans and advances 11 9,50,717 36,08,359

Other current assets 10 8,52,790 1,86,298
TOTAL 7,06,52,192 4,95,85,075
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's Report

Signed in termg of separate report of even date.

M.B. ADVANI & CO.
Chartered Agcountants
2 o[- 10005
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MukKesh Advani

Proprietor
Membership No.- 037657

Date: August 12,2013
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Trevor Foster Black
Director

Date: August 12,2013
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Raman Uberoi
Director




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2013

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2013 March 31,2012
Rupees Rupees
INCOME
Income from operations 14 11,38,71,106 8,91,48,074
Other Income 15 11,49,071 5,43,685
TOTAL 11,50,20,177 8,96,91,759
EXPENDITURE
Personnel expenses 16 6,24,47,777 4,58,58,440
Establishment expenses 17 1,77,98,735 1,67,01,162
Other expenses 18 1,37,45,385 1,14,47,379
Depreciation 9 25,09,041 15,71,233
TOTAL 9,65,00,938 7,55,78,214
Profit Before Exceptional And
Extraordinary Items And Tax (I-II) 1,85,19,239 1,41,13,545
Exceptional ltem - -
Profit Before
Extraordinary Items And Tax (I1I-1V) 1,85,19,239 1,41,13,545
Extraordinary ltems - -
Profit Before Tax 1,85,19,239 1,41,13,545
Tax Expense
Current tax 70,00,000 45,52,347
Deferred tax charge / (Benefit) (18,80,336) 5,17,686
Income Tax of earlier years - 9,44.018
Total tax expense 51,19,664 60,14,051
Profit after tax 1,33,99,575 80,99,494
Profit for the year from operations 1,33,99,575 80,99,494
Earnings per share : Nominal value of Rs.10 per share :
Basic 267.99 161.99
Diluted 267.99 161.99
Number of Shares used in Computing
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share 50,000 50,000
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's Report

Signed in terms of separate report of even date.

M.B. AD

Pfoprietor
Membership No.- 037657

Date: August 12,2013

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of

Directors

-~

Trevor Foster Black
Director

Date: August 12,2013

-

Raman Uberoi
Director




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2013
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2.4

25
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Nature of Operations

The Company is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing services.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on an accrual
basis in compliance with all material aspect of the Accounting Standard (AS) Notified by Companies Accounting Standard Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year.

Summoary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current/ Non-Current classification of assets and liabilities

Ali assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule V1 to the Companies
Act, 1956, Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of Current and Non Current classification of assets and liabilities

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting year end. Although
these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions,actual results could differ from these estimates.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use.Items of fixed asset held for disposal are stated at lower of the net book value and net realisable value and are shown under other current
assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on all the assets under Written-Down value Method on pro-rata basis on the assets, which were in use during the year at the rates prescribed in Schedule
X1V of the Companies Act, 1956. If the assets are purchased during the year, depreciation is provided on pro ~ rata basis from the date the assets are installed. In case the assets are
sold, depreciation is provided on the same upto the date of sale on pro - rata basis

Assets Schedule XIV
Rates (WDV)
Furniture & Fixtures 18.10%
Office Equipments 13.91%
Computers 40.00%
Vehicles 25.89%

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term on Straight Line Basis

Impairment
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized

wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value at interest rate specific to the asset and in case where the specific rate is not available at the weighted average
cost of capital which is adjusted for country risk/currency risk.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life

Operating 1 eases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially ali the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments
Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term
invest ts. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However,

provision for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that itis probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured

Income from Operations

Income from Operations comprises of Income from Researched Data Processing Services and same is recognised for on accrual basis when the service has been provided and in
accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the company and the counter party.

Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
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COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2013

29

2.10

2.1

213

214

215

Retirement_and other employee benefits
Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities or trusts.

Contribution to Gratuity fund of LIC is made and Actuarial valuation is obtained to ascertain the liability. During the year gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an
Actuartal valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of financial year.

Compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amounts, the monthly average exchange rates for the respective periods in which
the transaction takes place.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rates. Non monetary items which are carried in terms of historical costs denominated in a foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction

LExchange Difference

Exchange differences relating to long term monetary items, arising during the year, such differences are accumulated in the “ Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Account”
and amortised to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the balance life of the long term monetary item. All other exchange differences are recognised as income or expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss

Non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items
which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate that existed, when the values were determined.
Exchange differences arising as a result of the above are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Taxes On Income

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax
Act of 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversa! of
timing differences of earlier years

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied
by same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably
certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. The Company writes down the carrying amount of a Deferred Tax Asset to the extent it is no
longer reasonably or virually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which Deferred Tax Asset can be realised. Any such write
down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Segment Reporting Policies
Segment Policies:
The Company mainly is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing Services and primarily concentrated in one geographical location Hence there is only one segment

of business

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with original maturity of three months or less

Chaiterstd Az )
Memibership No.
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COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

3| Share Capita) March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Authorised Capital:
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 500,000 500,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up (P.Y. 50,000 shares of Rs. 10 each) 500,000 500,000
Total 500,000 500,000
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Equity shares
March 31, 2013
Rs. Nos.
At the beginning of the period (face value of Rs. 10/- per share) 500,000 50,000
Add: Shares issues during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 500,000 50,000
March 31, 2012
Rs. Nos
At the beginning of the year (face value of Re. 10/- per share) 500,000 50,000
Add: Shares issues during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 500,000 50,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/ associates are

as below:
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Particulars Rupees Rupees
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 are held by CRISIL Ltd (Holding Company) 500,000 -
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 are held by Coalition Development Ltd (Holding Company) - 500,000
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Name of the shareholder March 31, 2013

% holding in the class Nos
Fquity shares of Rs. 10 -each fully paid
CRISTL Ltd 100.00% 50,000
Name of the shareholder March 31, 2012

% holding in the class Nos
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Coalition Development Ltd, UK 100.00% 50,000

4| Reserves and Surplus March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
1.Surplus:
Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 40,288,181 32,188,687
Add: Profit after tax for the year 13,399,575 8,099,494
Less: Appropriations(if any) - -
Total appropriations - -
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 53,687,756 40,288,181
Total 53,687,756 40,288,181

Chartesad Accauntant
Merharship No.

37657




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

Trade Payables March 31, 2013 March 31,2012
Rupees Rupees
(a) Current
Trade payables (Refer Note No. 20) 4,221,346 1,156,473
Total 4,221,346 1,156,473
Other liabilities March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
(a)Current
Statutory Dues 479,587 431,843
Total 479,587 431,843
Provisions March 31,2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
(a)Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Leave Encashment 1,713,086 -
Provision for bonus 6,412,650 3,890,425
Provision for Gratuity(Refer Note No.27) 964,069 E
9,089,805 3,890,425
Other provisions
Provision for tax (nct of advance tax) 2,673,698 2,800,467
2,673,698 2,800,467
Total 11,763,503 6,690,892
Deferred Tax Liabilities March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax Liability
Due to fixed assets - 517,686
Deferred tax asset
Due to fixed assets (1,362,650) -
Gross deferred tax liability (1,362.650) 517,686

37657
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COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

March 31,2013

March 31, 2012

10| Other Assets
Rupees Rupees
Current
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 852,790 186,298
Total 852,790 186,298
Non Current
Other Bank Balances
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 100,000 100,000
Total 100,000 100,000
11} Loans and Advances March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
(a)Current
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances - 188,287
Loans and Advances to related parties 351,302 3,050
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 13,679 2,500
Other loans and advances
Loan and advances to employees 262,371 45910
Service tax input credit receivable - 2,621,692
Prepaid expenses 323,365 746,920
Total 950,717 3,608,359
(U)Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposit 4,620,972 4,620,972
Total 4,620,972 4,620,972
12§ Trade Receivables March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
(a)Current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment - -
Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good 18,317,420 12,855,208
Total 18,317,420 12,855,208
13| Cash and bank balances March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash equivalents
(i)Cash in hand - 15,314
(ii)Balances with banks:
— In current accounts 11,348 517 8,343,693
11,348,517 8,359,007
Other bank balances
— Deposits with original maturity within 12 months 21,791,180 6,941,442
Total 33,139,697 15,300,449
14| Income from operations March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Researched Data Processing Service 113,871,106 89,148,074
Total 113,871,106 89,148,074
15| Other income March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Interest on bank deposits 1,149,071 514,685
Income from Sale of Scrap - 29,000
Total 1,149,071 543,685

Fitembership No.
37657

Ghartered Accountant



COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

March 31, 2012

16/ Personnel expenses March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Salaries, wages and bonus 55,660,018 42,576,758
Leave Encashment 1,924,010 -
Contribution to:
Provident funds 680,172 779,046
Other funds(Refer Note No. 27) 1,854,774 141,743
Staff welfare expenses 2,176,987 2,198,200
Staff Insurance and Mediclaim 151,816 162,693
Total 62,447,777 45,858,440
17| Establishment Expenses March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings 1,717,877 1,560,066
Repairs and maintenance - Others 3,886,429 5,491,813
Electricity 2,180,200 1,653,960
Communication expenses 1,836,005 1,831,918
Insurance 72,050 145,521
Rent (Refer Note No.26 ) 8,106,174 6,017,884
Total 17,798,735 16,701,162
18| Other Expenses March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Foreign Exchange Loss (net) 3,044,338 102,182
Service Tax 2,708,582 -
Loss on Sales of Assets - 1,413,441
Bank Charges 101,251 138,049
Printing and stationery 216,384 191,638
Stamp Duty & Other Legal Expenses 467,774 1,530
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 2,625,269 4,850,628
Books and periodicals 36,719 52,426
Vehicle Expenses 85,758 128,184
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 35,622 1,324,135
Asset Usage Charges 152,521 -
Professional fees 4,079,367 3,017,035
Auditors' remuneration(Refer Note No. 22) 120,000 50,000
Membership & Subscription Charges 71,799 178,131
Total 13,745,385 11,447,379




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2013

19 Details of Contingent liabilities are as under :
Disputed Income Tax Demand for A.Y. 2010-11 pending before Appelate Authority in respect of which the Company is in appeal Rs 34,09,600/-

20 The Company has the process of identification of ‘suppliers’ registered under the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006” by obtaining
confirmations from suppliers. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom the
company owes dues on account of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been made

21 Paymentin Foreign Currency
a) Value of imports calculated on C.1F basis for Capital goods

Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Value Of Capital goods imported on C.1.F Basis - 580,490
Total - 580,490
b) Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency, on account of expenses
Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Foreign Travel 422,991 1,480,968
Total 422,991 1,480,968
22 Auditors' Remuneration includes
Particutars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Audit Fees 85,000 50,000
Taxation Matters 35,000 -
Total 120,000 50,000

23 Segment Reporting
Business Segments:
The Company's main business is to provide researched data processing services. The business operations of the company are primarily concentrated in one geographical location. As

such, there is no separate reportable segment as per accounting standard 17 on segment reporting

24 List of Related Parties

Parties Relationship
Related parties where control exists

CRISIL Limited Holding Company
Coalition Development Ltd, UK Fellow Subsidiary
Mercator Info Service India Pvt Ltd Fellow Subsidiary

25 Related Party Disclosure

Name of the related party Nature of transaction March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Coalition Development Ltd, UK Service Income 113,871,106 89,148,074
Reimbursement of Expense 348,252 181,905
Amount Receivable 18,668,722 12,858,259
Share Capital Qutstanding - 500,000
CRISIL Limited Share Capital Outstanding 500,000 -
Mercator Info Service India Pvt Ltd Reimbursement of Expense 5,064,245 -
Amount Payable 1,068,785 -

26 Qperating Lease
The Company has taken certain office premises on non cancelable operating lease basis. Some of these agreements have a price escalation clause. Details
as regards payments and future commitments are as under :

Particulars March 31,2013 | March 31,2012
Lease Payment recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 8,106,174 6,017,884
Future Minimum Lease Payments :

Not later than One Year 5,962,548 5,962,548
Later than One Year & not later than Five Years 3,975,032 9,937,580
Later than Five Years - -
Total 9,937,580 15,900,128

Charterod Accerntant
Neinbership No.
37657
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Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2013
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28

Employee Retiral Benefits : (AS 15)(As per. Actuarial Valuation Report)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of s

cach completed year of service. The scheine is funded with an insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

ervice gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) fo

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the

employment market.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance

Sheet for the respective plans.

Statement of Profit and Loss:
Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31,2012

Current Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year
Net Gratuity Benefit Expense

3,15.674 2,32,168

95,561 75,541
(1,22,651) (1,12,394)
15,62,734 (57.,460)
18,51,318 1,37,855

Balance Sheet:
Details of Provision for Gratuity Benefi

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Fair value of the plan asset at the end of the year
(Present value of Benefit obligation at the end of the period)

Funded Status
Net Asset/(Liability) Recognised in the Balancesheet

2227730 11,94,517
(31,91,799) (15,33.142)
(9,64,069) (3,38,625)
(9,64,069) (3,38,625)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation
Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Plan Amendment Cost

Actuanal (gain)/loss

Benefits paid

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation

11,94,517 9,44,268
3,15,674 232,168
95,561 75,541
15,86,047 (57,460)
31,91,799 11,94,517

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31,2012

Opening Fair value of plan assets
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gain/ (loss)

Contribution by employer

Benefits paid

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets

15,33,142 12,39,931
1,22,651 1,12,394
23,313 -
5,48,624 1,80,817
22,27,730 15,33,142

Experience Adjustment

Particulars

01/04/12-31/03/13

On plan liability(gain)/losses
On plan assets(losses)/gains

(95,052)
23313

The principal assumptions used in determining Gratuity for the Company’s plans is as below:

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31,2012

Discount Rate
Estimated rate of return on plan assets
Attrition Rate

Salary Escalation

8.25%
8.70%)|
12.00%
6.00%|

8.00%
9.96%)
2.00%
3.00%)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the

employment market.

Previous year comparatives

Previous yeat's figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current year's classification.

Auditor's Repol
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Trevor Foster Black
Director

Date: August 12,2013

Raman Uberoi
Director




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2013

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

. |Cash Flow from Operating Activities :

Profit before tax 1,85,19,239 1,41,13,545
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 25,09,041 15,71,233
Loss on Sale of Assets - 14,13,441
Interest on deposits (11,49,071) (5,14,685)
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,98,79,209 1,65,83,534
Movements in working capital
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (54,62,212) 95,60,962
- (Increase)/decrease in advances 26,57,642 (28,48,938)
- (Increase)/decrease in other assets - 10,626
- Increase/(decrease) in sundry creditors 30,64,873 1,68,306
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 52,47,124 -
Cash generated from operations 2,53,86,636 2,34,74,490
- Taxes paid 71,26,769 43,87,824
Net cash generated from operating activities - (A) 1,82,59,867 1,90,86,666
. |Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of fixed assets (9,03,198) (1,14,85,063)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 66,000
Interest on deposits & loans 4,82,578 3,28,387
Net cash generated from investing activities - (B) (4,20,620) (1,10,90,676)
Cash flow from Financing Activity:
Net cash generated from financing activities - (C) - -
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,78,39,247 79,95,990
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance as on 1 April 2012 1,53,00,449 73,04,459
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing balance as on 31 March 2013 3,31,39,697 1,53,00,449
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,78,39,247 79.95,990
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at
with banks on current account 1,13,48,517 83,59,007
with bank in fixed deposits with original maturity period of less than 3
months or less 50,00,000 10,46,745
with bank in fixed deposits with original maturity period of more than 3
months but less than 12 months 1,67,91,180 58,94,697

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Auditor's Report
Signed in terpis of separate report of even date
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Date: August 12,2013

Director

For and on Be
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Date: August 12,2013
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C.A. MUKESH B. ADVANI

B.LCOM.F.CA.

302&3043,'” A
TEL. OFFICE 228E

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’SREPORT

TO,

THE MEMBERS OF COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA)
PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

1.1 have audited the 'accompanying ﬁnancialv statements of COALITION
- DEVELOPMENT SYSTEM (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at June 30" 2015, the Statement of Proﬁt
and Loss , the Cash Flow Statement for the period or* April 2()15 to 30™ June

2015, and a summary of the s1gmﬁcant accounting p011c1es and other eXplanatory :

information.-

‘ Management’s Respon'sibility for the. Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is respomlble for the matters stated i in Section

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparatlon of

these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posmon

financial performance & cash flows of the Company in accordance with the-

accounting principles generally acgepted in India, mc‘udmg the Accounfmg
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the prov1s1ons of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other . irregularities; ‘s'election and application‘ of appropriate a;counting
policies; making ju‘dgménts and estimates that are reasonable and prudent' and
design, im plementatlon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the

 For Goalition Development Systerns (india) Private Limited

‘Director / Authorised Signator,




accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. I have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

4. T conducted your audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to
the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company has in
place all adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial statements.




6. 1 believe that the audit evidence obtained by me is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for my audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

7.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations
given to me, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at June 30" 2015, and its profits and its cash flows for the period 01*
April 2015 to 30™ June 2015.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, I report that:

(a) I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of your audit.

(b) In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by

the Company so far as it appears from my examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In my opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
June 30™ 2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on June 30™ 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms

of Section 164(2) of the Act.




9. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to me:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

sarered
N Membershg No.

Membership No. — 037657

Place : Mumbai
Date : 17" October 2015




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2015

Particulars Notes As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Rupees Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 3 500,000 500,000
Reserves and Surplus 75,573,225 72,961,215
Non-current liabilities
Trade payables 5 4,544,768 3,754,706
Current liabilities
Trade payables 6 5,032,695 4,529,214
Other liabilities 2,464,290 529,748
Provisions 8 4,105,455 2,085,792
TOTAL 92,220,433 84,360,675
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed Assets
Tangible assets 9 17,001,686 17,648,579
Deferred tax assets (Net) 10 5,326,734 3,178,886
Loans and advances 11 14,099,020 9,028,106
Current assets
Other Assets 12 1,115,087 |- 605,425
Trade Receivables 13 10,906,850 3,815,619
Cash and bank balances 14 42,707,523 49,134,857
Loans and advances 15 1,063,533 949,203
TOTAL 92,220,433 84,360,675
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

M.B. ADVAN( & CO.
Chartered Accountant

Chartered Accountan
Membership No.

Proprietor
Membership No.- 037657

Date: 17th October 2015

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors of
Coalition Development Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.

MM

Rajasekhar Kaza aman Uberoi
Director Director

Date: 17th October 2015




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the period April to June 30, 2015

Particulars 3 months ended 3 months ended
Notes June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
INCOME
Income from operations 16 22,668,191 20,041,076
Other Income 17 1,090,102 659,339
TOTAL 23,758,293 20,700,415
EXPENDITURE
Personnel expenses ) 18 15,543,791 12,013,513
Establishment expenses 19 2,917,703 3,573,403
Other expenses 20 672,121 1,028,569
Depreciation 9 702,207 368,481
TOTAL 19,835,822 16,983,966
Profit Before Tax 3,922,471 3,716,450
Tax Expense
Current tax 3,458,310 1,357,271
Deferred tax charge / (Benefit) (2,147,849) (75,705)
Total tax expense 1,310,461 1,281,566
Profit after tax 2,612,010 2,434,884
Profit for the period from operations
2,612,010 2,434,884
Earnings per share: Nominal value of Rs.10 per share:
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share for 3 months 52.24 48.70
Number of Shares used in Computing
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share - 50,000 50,000
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors of
Coalition Development Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.

X ., MAQM_O\N |
Chartered Accountant A
Membership NO. Rajasekhar Kaza aman Uberoi

Director Director

Proprietor
Membership No.- 037657
Date: 17th October 2015 Date: 17th October 2015




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the period April to June 30, 2015

Particulars 3 months ended 30,
June 2015
A. |Cash Flow from operating activities :
Profit before tax 3,922,471
Adjustments for :
Depreciation . 702,207
Unrealized Forex (Gain) / Loss : (242,464)
Interest on deposits (509,662
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,872,552
Movements in working capital
- (Increase)/decrease in Trade receivables (6,848,766)
- (Increase)/decrease in loans and advances (577,444)
- (Increase)/decrease in Provision for Employee Benefits 2,019,663
- Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payables 1,293,544
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 1,934,542
Cash generated from operations 1,694,091
- Taxes paid (8,066,110)
Net cash generated from operating activities - (A) : (6,372,019
B. {Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of fixed assets (55,315)
Net cash generated from investing activities - (B) (55,315)
C |Cash flow from financing activities: -
Net cash generated from financing activities - (C) -
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (6,427,334)
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance 49,134,857
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing balance 42,707,523
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (6,427,334)
3 months ended 30, June
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at 2015
with banks in current account 20,058,117
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months -
Deposits with original maturity between 3 months to 12 months 22,649,406
Total 42,707,523

The accompanying ngtes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors of
Coalition Development Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.

M edbion

artered Acco:ntan\

ukesh Advani Membarshp 8P Rajasekhar Kaza
roprietor 37657 Director
Membership No.- 037657
Date: 17th October 2015 Date: 17th October 2015




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

1 Nature of Operations
The Company is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing services.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
India, mandatory accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“ the 2013 Act”), read together
with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention on an accrual basis. The accounting policies applied by the company are consistent with those used in the previous

period.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non- current as per the company's normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in Revised Schedule [II to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating

cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current / non- current classification of assets and liabilities.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are

based upon 's best knowledge of current events and actions,actual results could differ from these estimates.

2.2 Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and
any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Items of fixed asset held for disposal are

stated at lower of the net book value and net realisable value and are shown under other current assets.

2.

w

Depreciation

Considering the applicability of Schedule II, the n has re-estimated useful lives and residual values of all its fixed
assets. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual
values of fixed assets, though these rates in certain cases are different from lives prescribed under Schedule II.

Fixed Asset purchased during the peiod, depreciation is provided on pro — rata basis from the date the assets are installed. In case
the assets are sold, depreciation is provided on the same upto the date of sale on pro — rata basis. The perpetual software licenses

are depreciated over a period of three (3) years .The non-perpetual licenses are writtenoff in the license period.

Leaschold Improvements are amortized over the lease term or useful life of the asset, whichever is lower.

2.4 Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable

amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

2.5 Operating Leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

2.6 Investments
Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All
other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value
determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in
value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.
.
2.7 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be

reliably measured.

Income from operations comprises of income from research activities carried out by the Company during the period. Revenue is

recognised based on mark up over cost incurred.

Interest Income
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

28

29

2.10

2.1

2.1

N

2.14

Retirement_and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations
other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities or trusts.

The Company provides gratuity a defined benefit plan to the eligible employees. Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial period.

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided for based
on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to Statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in reporting currency (INR) by applying to the foreign currency amounts to the monthly
average exchange rates for the respective periods in which the transaction takes place.

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rates. Non monetary items which are carried in terms of historical
costs denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange Difference

Exchange differences relating to long term monetary items, arising during the period, such differences are accumulated in the
“Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Account” and amortised to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the balance life of
the long term monetary item. All other exchange differences are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a
foreign currency are reported ysing the exchange rate that existed, when the values were determined. Exchange differences arising
as a result of the above are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Taxes On Income
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act of 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of
current period timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the period and reversal of timing differences
of earlier periods.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied by same governing
taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the company has unabsorbed
depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by
convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred tax
assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realised.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. The Company writes down the carrying
amount of a Deferred Tax Asset to the extent it is no longer reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which Deferred Tax Asset can be realised. Any such write down is reversed to the
extent that it becomes reasonably or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Segment Reporting Policies

The Company is engaged in providing low risk IT enabled services which in the context of Accounting Standard- 17 “Segment
Reporting” notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules 2014 is considered as the only segment. The Company’s activities are restricted within India and hence no separate
geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary.

Earnings Per Share

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term investmerits with original
maturity of three months or less.
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3|Share Capital As at June 30,2015 | As at June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Authorised Capital:
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 500,000 500,000
1ssued, Subscribed and Paid Up:
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up (P.Y. 500,000 500,000
50,000 shares of Rs.10/- each) .
Total 500,000 500,000
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Equity shares
As at June 30, 2015
Rupees Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Rs. 10/- per share) 500,000 50,000
Add: Shares issues during the period - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 500,000 50,000 |
As at June 30, 2014
Rupees Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Re. 10/- per share) 500,000 50,000
Add: Shares issues during the period - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 500,000 50,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/associates
Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding
company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

As at June 30,2015 | As at June 30, 2014

Particulars Rupees Rupees
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- are held by CRISIL Ltd 500,000 500,000
(Holding Company)
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Name of the shareholder As at June 30, 2015

% holding in the Nos.
Equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid
CRISIL Ltd .- 100.00% 50,000
Name of the shareholder As at June 30, 2014

% holding in the Nos.

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid

CRISIL Ltd 100.00% 50,000




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
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Asat] 0, 2015
4 |Reserves and Surplus s at June 3

As at June 30, 2014

Rupees Rupees
Surplus:
Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 72,961,215 64,464,787
Profit for the period 2,612,010 8,496,428
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 75,573,225 72,961,215
Total 75,573,225 72,961,215
5 |Trade Payables As at June 30, 2015 | As at June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Non-Current
Trade payables (Refer note no.22) 4,544,768 3,754,706
Total 4,544,768 3,754,706

6 |Trade Payables As at June 30, 2015

As at June 30, 2014

Rupees Rupees
Current
Trade Payables ( Refer note no.22) 5,032,695 4,529,214
Total 5,032,695 4,529,214
7 |Other liabilities As at June 30, 2015 | As at June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Current .
Other Current Liabilities 2,464,290 529,748
Total 2,464,290 529,748

8 |Provisions As at June 30, 2015

As at June 30, 2014

Rupees Rupees
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Bonus Payable 3,627,455 1,697,792
Provision for Leave encashment 478,000 388,000
Total 4,105,455 2,085,792




COALITION DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

9. Fixed Assets

in Rupees
Gross Block at Cost Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
Ason Additions Deductions / Ason Up to For the Deductions / Upto As on As on
April 1,2015 Adjustments June 30,2015 April 1,2015 Period Adjustments| June 30, 2015 June 30,2015 | March 31, 2015
Tangible assets
Fumiture & Fixtures 1,361,300 9,500 - 1,370,800 886,017 22,464 - 908,481 462,319 475,283
Office Equipments 5,484,112 37,940 - 5,522,052 2,329,555 112,889 - 2,442 444 3,079,608 3,154,557
Computers 3912936 - - 3,912,936 3,420,109 49,013 - 3,469,122 443 813 492,826
Software - 7,875 - 7,875 - 396 - 396 7,479 -
Lease Improvements 16,107,794 - - 16,107,794 3,083,139 485,178 - 3,568,317 12,539,477 13,024,655
Vehicles 1,285,626 - - 1,285,626 784,369 32,267 - 816,636 468,990 501,257
Total 28,151,768 55,315 - 28,207,083 10,503,189 702,207 - 11,205,396 17,001,686 17,648,579
Gross Block at Cost Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
Ason Additions | Peductions / As on Up to For the Deductions / Upto Ason As on

April 1,2014 Adjustments | March 31,2015 April 1, 2014 Year Adjustments| March 31,2015 March 31,2014 | March 31, 2013
Tangible assets
Fumiture & Fixtures 1,085,460 275,840 - 1,361,300 781,981 104,036 - 886,017 475,283 303,479
Office Equipments 4,797,569 686,543 - 5,484,112 1,722,792 606,763 - 2,329,555 3,154,557 3,074,777
Computers 3912936 - - 3,912,936 3,091,560 328,549 - 3,420,109 492,827 821,376
Lease Improvements 4916,784 | 11,191,010 - 16,107,794 1,155,759 1,927,380 - 3,083,139 13,024,655 3,761,025
Vehicles 1,285,626 - 1,285,626 609,257 175,112 - 784,369 501,257 676,369
Total 15,998,375 | 12,153,393 - 28,151,768 7,361,349 3,141,840 - 10,503,189 17,648,579 8,637,026
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As at June 30, 2015

As at June 30, 2014

10 |Deferred Taxes Rupees Rupees

Deferred tax asset

On Depreciation of Fixed assets 1,545,805 1,519,639
On lease rent amortisation 1,180,331 1,153,217
On provision for Leave Encashment 79,894 125,885
On provision for Bonus 2,671,385 550,840
On provision for Gratuity (150,681) (170,695)
Net deferred tax asset 5,326,734 3,178,886

As at June. 30, 2015

As at June 30, 2014

11 (Loans and Advances
_ Rupees Rupees
Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 9,014,934 4,407,134
Gratuity 463,114 -
Sundry Deposits 4,620,972 4,620,972
Total 14,099,020 9,028,106
12 |Other Assets As at June 30, 2015 | As at June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit 1,115,087 605,425
Total 1,115,087 605,425
13 | Trade Receivables As at June 30,2015 | As at June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Unsecured, considered good 10,906,850 3,815,619
Total 10,906,850 3,815,619
14 |Cash and bank balances As at June 30, 2015 | As at June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash equivalents
(ii) Balances with banks:
— In current accounts 20,058,117 26,485,451
20,058,117 26,485,451
Other bank balances
— Deposits with original maturity between 3 to 12 months 22,649,406 22,649,406
Total 42,707,523 49,134,857
15 |Loans and Advances As at June 30, 2015 | As at June 30,2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 410,660 101,340
Cenvat Credit receivable 235,919 235,919
Other loans and advances 316,902 63,610
Loans and advances to employees 100,052 22,220
Gratuity - 526,114
Total 1,063,533 949,203
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3 months ended June

3 months ended June

16|Income from operations 30, 2015 30,2014
Rupees Rupees
Researched Data Processing Services 22,668,191 20,041,076
Total 22,668,191 20,041,076
3 months ended June|3 months ended June
17{Other income 30,2015 30,2014
Rupees Rupees
Interest income 509,662 659,339
Foreign Exchange Gain 580,440 -
| Total 1,090,102 659,339
3 months ended June{3 months ended June
18|Personnel expenses 30, 2015 30,2014
Rupees Rupees
Salaries, wages and bonus 15,156,990 11,339,031
Contribution to:
Provident fund 115,698 92,044
Other fund 63,000 38,849
Staff welfare expenses 208,103 543,589
Total 15,543,791 12,013,513

3 months ended June

3 months ended June

19|Establishment Expenses 30,2015 30,2014

Rupees Rupees
Repairs and Maintenance-Building 480,463 510,275
Repairs and Maintenance-Others 347,110 518,375
Electricity 45,762 380,940
Communication expenses 223,856 311,590
Insurance - 8,029

Rates and Taxes 3,662 -

Premises rent (Refer note no.27) 1,816,850 1,844,194
Total 2,917,703 3,573,403

3 months ended June

3 months ended June

20{Other Expenses 30, 2015 30,2014

Rupees Rupees
Printing and Stationery 17,092 5,838
Travelling & Conveyance 412,424 125,201
Bank charges 7,926 5,110
Professional fees 158,421 553,765
Foreign Exchange Loss - 200,717
Auditors' remuneration (Refer Note 25) 20,000 20,000
Miscellaneous Expense 56,261 20,020
Membership and subscription - 97,918
Total 672,124 1,028,569
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Notes to the financial statements

21 Details of Contingent liabilities are as under :

a) [Contingent Liabilities As at June 30, | As at March 31,
2015 2015
Rupees Rupees
Disputed Income Tax Demand pending before Appelate Authority
AY.2010-11 2,683,680 2,683.680
AY.2011-12 6,982,430 6,982.430
AY.2012-13 7.098.639 7,098,639
b) |Commitments As at June 30, | As at March 31,
2015 2015
Rupees Rupees
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided NIL 591,422
for

22 The Company has a process of identification of ‘suppliers’ registered under the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006” by obtaining confirmations from suppliers. There are no Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom any amount was payable on

account of principal amount or interest, accordingly no additional disclosures have been made.

23 Payment in Foreign Currency
Amount remitted during the period in foreign currency

y, on account ofexpenses

3 months ended | 3 months ended
icul June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Particulars Rupees Rupees
Foreign Travel 76,776 -
Total 76,776 -

24 Earnings in foreign currency

- For 3 month ended June 30, 2015 Rs. 22,668,191 (For 3 months ended June 30, 2014 Rs. 20,041,076)

25 Auditors' Remuneration includes :

3 months ended 3 months ended

Particulars June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Audit Fees 20,000 20,000
Total 20,000 20,000
26 List of Rel Parti
Parties Relationship
Related parties where control exists

CRISIL Limited
Coalition Development Ltd, UK
Mercator Info Services India Pvt Ltd

Holding Companv
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Related Party Disclosure

3 months ended | 3 months ended

Name of the related party Nature of transaction June 30,2015 | June 30,2014
Rupees Rupees
Coalition Development Ltd, UK Service Income 22,668,191 20,041,076
CRISIL Limited Reimbursement of Expenses Paid 162,998 172,026
Mercator Info Service India Pvt Ltd Reimbursement of Expense Paid 314,046 884,723
Reimbursement of Expense Received 4,486 -

As at June 30, | As

at March 31,

Name of the related party Nature of transaction 2015 2015
Coalition Development Ltd, UK Amount Receivabie 10.906.895 3.815.619
CRISIL Limited Share Capital Qutstanding 500,000 500,000

27 Operating Lease

The Company has taken office premises on cancelable operating lease basis and which have a price escalation clause. Details as
regards payments and future commitments are as under :

Particulars 3 months ended | 3 months ended
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Lease Payment recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 1,816,850 1,844,194
Particulars As at June 30, | As at March 31,
2015 2015
- Rupees Rupees
Future Minimum Lease Payments :
Not later than One Year 6,856,930 6,856,930
Later than One Year & not later than Five Years 30,084,781 29,827,646
|Later than Five Years 12,353,903 14,325,270
| Total 49,295,614 51,009,846
28 Details of unhedged foreign exposure
Particulars As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
Rupees Rupees
Currency Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
GBP 10,906,895 - 3,815,619 -
Total 10,906,895 - 3,815,619 -

29 Previous year figures of Cash Flow Statement have not been provided as the Company has opted exemption as per para 44 of
notified acounting standard 25, "Interim Financial Reporting"
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30 Previous period comparatives

Figures for the period April 01, 20i4 to June 30, 2014 are unaudited and compiled by the management, and have been
regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current period’s classification

As per our report

M.B. ADVANI & £0O.

Q
o
*

*
Chartered Accountant
Membership No.

37657

Membership No.- 037657
Date: 17th October 2015

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors of
Coalition Development Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd.

Meeddna

Rajasekhar Kaza beroi.
Director Director

Date: 17th October 2015
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C.A. MUKESH B, ADVANI M.B. ADVANI & CO

B.COM.F.CA. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
e 302 & 304%B,"NEELKANTH", 98, MARINE DRIVE,MUMBAI- 400 002.
TEL.: OFFICE : 2281 28 17,2281 68 07 * FAX : 2281 6807
E-mail : mukeshadvanil203@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO,

THE MEMBERS OF MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE
LIMITED |

Report on the Financial Statements

1.1 have audited the accompanying financial statements of MERCATOR INFO-
SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31% 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

_Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance & cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the proviéions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate aqcounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial cbntrols,

that yere operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the




accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. I have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

. 1 conducted your audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to
the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company has in
place all adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting‘ and
the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the

accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the

overpll presentation of the financial statements.




6. 1 believe that the audit evidence obtained by me is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for my audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

7.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations
given to me, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31% 2015, and its profits and its cash flows for the year

ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, I give
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the
Order to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, I report that:

(a) I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of your audit. -

(b) In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by

the Company so far as it appears from my examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss. and the Cash Flow

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In my opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31% 2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the

directors is disqualified as March 31* 2015 from being appointed as a director

injterms of Section 164(2) of the Act.




10. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

- given to me:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of‘pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M.B.ADVANI & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No - 100052W

hartered Accountant
Membership No.

37657
ukesh B . Advani

(Proprietor)
Membership No. — 037657
Place : Mumbai

Date : 02™ September 2015




Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph (8) of my report of even date on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2015, of MERCATOR INFO SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED)

I report that to the members of MERCATOR INFO SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED)
For the year Ended on March 31* 2015.

(1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)  The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed
assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain fixed assets
were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(i) (a) The company has no inventory; hence this clause is not applicable.
(b)  The company has no inventory; hence this clause is not applicable.

(¢)  The company has no inventory; hence this clause is not applicable.

(iii) As informed, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
Companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions stated in the
paragraph 3(iii)(a) and 3(iii)(b) of the order are not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management of the company, there is an adequate internal control system
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with
regard to purchase of inventories and fixed assets and with regard to the sale of
goods and services. During the course of audit we have not observed any major
weakness in the internal control system during the course of the audit.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given by the
management of the company, the company has not accepted any deposits from the
public within the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies Acceptance & Deposits Rules 2014.




(vi)

(Vii)

(viii)

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost
records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of
the products of the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to me and on the
basis of my examination of the records of the Company, amounts
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
wealth tax, service tax, value added tax, custom duty, excise duty. cess any
other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year
by the Company with the appropriate authorities. ’

There was no undisputed amounts payable by the Company in respect of
the af_oreSaid statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2015 for a period
more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanation given to me, there are no
disputed amounts payable in respect of Wealth tax and Cess , Duty of
Excise, Duty of Customs, Sales-Tax and Service Tax which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to me, the amounts
which were required to be transferred to the investor education and
protection fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the

- Companies Act, and rules there under has been transferred made there
under.

The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial
year and has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(ix) According to the records of the Company examined by me and the information and

(x)

(xi)

explanation given to me, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to
any financial institution or bank or debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to me and the record
examined by me, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by
others from banks or financial institutions.

To the best of my knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations given to me, no term loans were availed by the Company during the

ar.




(xii) During the course of examination of the books and records of the Company
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practice in India,
and according to the information and explanation given, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud on or by the company, noticed or reported during the
year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management of the
company.

For M.B.ADVANI & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Fi g No.:-100052'y

\ Chartered Accountant /
\ Membership No. /

(Proprietor)
Membership No. — 037657

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 02" September 2015
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: " MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015
Particulars - | Notes : As at
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ‘
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 3 1,000,000 1,000,000
Reserves and Surplus 4 57,920,848 | 29,194,399
Non-Current liabilities .
Trade Payables 5 ' 3,510,363 2,522,325
Current liabilities :
Trade payables 6 16,419,862 1,583,647
Other liabilities 7 1,602,608 11,318,434
Provisions : 8 12,425,057 - 12,571,091
TOTAL ' 92,878,738 58,189,896
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed Assets ,
Tangible assets 9 46,573,930 27,493,746
Capital Work in Progress - 93,800
Loans and advances 10 ' 5,343,317 4,482,944
Current assets
Trade Receivables 11 9,405,625 -
Loans and advances 12 6,192,339 9,014,067
Cash and bank balances 13 25,363,527 17,105,339
TOTAL 92,878,738 58,189,896
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Auditor's Report
Signed in terms of separate report of even date.
M.B. ADVA & CO.
For And On Behalf Of The Board Of
Directors
Chartered Accountant / M_Ovv M
Mukesh Advani \ Hembersiip No. / Rajasekhar Kaza Raman Uberoi
Poprietor 37881 Director Director
Membership No.- 037657 ‘ v
Date: 2nd September 2015 Date: 2nd September 2015
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MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the calendar year ended 31 March 2015
Particulars ‘ Year ended Year ended
Notes | March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
INCOME
Income from operations 14 235,295,082 137,141,176
Other Income 15 51,542 77,217
TOTAL 235,346,624 137,218,393
EXPENDITURE
Personnel expenses 16 128,618,282 63,746,208
Establishment expenses 17 24,209,221 22,570,611
Other expenses 18 34,010,532 21,285,561
Depreciation 9 12,581,496 8,696,170
- TOTAL 199,419,531 116,298,550
Profit Before Exceptional And
Extraordinary Items And Tax 35,927,093 20,919,843
Exceptional Item - -
|Profit Before
Extraordinary Items And Tax 35,927,093 20,919,843
Extraordinary Items - -
Profit Before Tax 35,927,093 20,919,843
Tax Expense '
Current tax 7,200,644 4,185,590
Deferred tax charge / (Benefit) - -
Total tax expense 7,200,644 4,185,590
Profit after tax 28,726,449 16,734,253
Profit for the year from operations 28,726,449 16,734,253
Earnings per share : Nominal value of Rs.10/- per share :
Basic 287.26 167.34
Diluted - 287.26 167.34
Number of shares used in computing earnings per share
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share 100,000 100,000
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Auditor's Report _
Signed in terms of separate report of even date.
M.B. ADVANY & CO. _ :
For And On Behalf Of The Board Of
Directors
Jlkesh Advani sy4 Rajasekhar Kaza R%
Proprietor — Director Director
Membership No.- 037657 ,
Date: 2nd September 2015 Date: 2nd September 2015




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the calendar year ended 31 March 2015

.[Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of fixed assets
Sales of Fixed Assets

Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
|Cash Flow from operating activities :
Profit before tax 35,927,093 20,919,843
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 12,581,496 8,696,170
Forex (Gain) / Loss (673,577) 2,409,025
Interest Income (34,603) -
(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets . - 327,388
Operating profit before working capital changes 47,800,409 32,352,426
Movements in working capital
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (8,732,048) -
- (Increase)/decrease in advances 1,961,355 (5,314,908)
- Increase/(decrease) in sundry creditors 15,824,253 793,189
- Increase/(decrease) in Provisions (146,034) 7,342,866
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (9,715,826) (7,395,988)
Cash generated from operations 46,992,108 27,777,585
- Taxes paid 7,200,644 4,205,156
Net cash generated from operating activities - (A) 39,791,464 23,572,429

(31,567,879)

(10,667,675)

(31,567,879)

(10,667,675)

Net cash generated from investing activities - (B)
.[Cash flow from financing activities: '
Interest Income 34,603 -
Net cash generated from financing activities - (C) 34,603 -
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 8,258,188 12,904,754
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance 17,105,339 4,200,585
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing balance 25,363,527 17,105,339
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,258,188 12,904,754
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Cash on hand 75,966 5,423
with Bank on current account 25,287,561 17,099,916
Total B 25,363,527 17,105,339

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's Rep
Signed in terpis of separate report of even date

*
Chartered Accountant
Memberstip NO.

37657

kesh Advani
roprietor

Membership No.- 037657
Date: 2nd September 2015

For and on Behalf of the board of Directors

[Mobton

Rajasekhar Kaza
Director

Date: 2nd September 2015

an Uberoi

Director




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of the Fi ial S for the calendar year ending 31 March 2015

1 Nature of Operations
The Company is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing Services.

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement_
The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with g ) pted accounting principles in India, mandatory i dards notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (* the 2013 Act”), read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The Financial Statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The accounting policies applied by the company are consistent with those used in the previous year.
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non- current as per the company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Revised Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the company
has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current / non- current classification of assets and liabilities.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Poficies

2.1 Use of Estimates ;
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent fiabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during
the reporting year end. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these
estimates.

2.2 Fixed Assets
"Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use.Items of fixed asset held for disposal are stated at lower of the net book value and net realisable value and are shown
under other current assets.

2.3 Depreciation
Based on internal and independ, hnical evaluation carried out by external valuers the management believes that the useful lives as given below best represent
the period over which management expects to use these assets. Hence in certain class of assets, the useful lives is different from the useful lives prescribed under Part C of
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. .
Fixed Asset purchased during the year, depreciation is provided on pro - rata basis from the date the assets are installed. In case the assets are sold, depreciation is
provided on the same upto the date of sale on pro — rata basis.The perpetual software licenses are depreciated over a period of three (3) years .The non-perpetual
licenses are writtenoff in the license period.

Assets Rates (WDV) Schedulc I

. Rates (WDV)
Furniture & Fixtures. 18.10% 25.89%
Office Equipments 13.91% 45.07%
Computers : 40.00% 63.16%!

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term or useful life of the asset, whichever is lower

Fixed assets having original cost of less than Rs. 5,000 individually, are depreciated fully in the year / period of purchase.
2.4 Impairment .

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is
recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in
use. -

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

2.5 Operating_Leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.6 Revenue Recognition :
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Income from operations comprises of income from research activities carried out by the Company during the year. Revenue is recognised based on mark up over cost
incurred.
.

Interest Income
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable

2.7 Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirément benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities.

The Company provides gratuity a defined benefit plan to the eligible employees. Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method made at the end of each financial year.

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial
valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the S of Profit and Loss and are not deferred.




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED |
Notes Forming Part of the Fi ial Stat ts for the calendar year ending 31 March 2015 '

2.8 Foreign Currency Transactions
Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in reporting currency (INR) by applying to the foreign currency amounts, the monthly average exchange rates for the
respective periods in which the transaction takes place.

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rates. Non monetary items which are carried in terms of historical costs denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

LExchange Difference

Exchange differences relating to long termi monetary items, arising during the year, such differences are accumulated in the “Foreign Currency Monetary Item
Translation Account” and amortised to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the balance life of the long term monetary item. All other exchange differences are
recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-
monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate that existed, when the
values were determined. Exchange differences arising as a result of the above are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.9 Taxes On Income
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian
Income Tax Act of 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income
for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

As the company operates from a Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and is liable to pay Income Tax on its book profits as per provisions of Section 115JB of the Income
Tax Act, 1961, hence there are no timing differences which arise between taxable income and accounting income. Thus there are no deferred tax assets or liabilities.

2.10 Segment Reporting Policies
Segment Policies:
The Company mainly is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing Services and primarily concentrated in one geographical location hence there is only
one segment of business.

2.1

Earnings Per Share .
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.12 Provisions .
A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to
scttle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

2.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents ‘
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with original maturity of three months or less.




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2015

3{Share Capital March 31, 2015 March 31,2014

Rupees Rupees
Authorised Capital:
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up (P.Y. 1,00,000 shares of]
Rs. 10/-each) e 1,000,000 1,000,000

Total 1,000,000 1,000,000
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Equity shares ‘
March 31, 2015

Rupees. Nos.
At the beginning of the period (face value of Rs.10/- per share) 1,000,000 100,000
Add: Shares issues during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 1,000,000 100,000

March 31, 2014

Rupees. Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Rs.10/- per share) 1,000,000 100,000
Add: Shares issues during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,000,000 100,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to

one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be'in proportion to the number of equity shares

held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their

subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2014

Particulars Rupees Rupees
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- are held by CRISIL Ltd (Holding Company) 1,000,000 1,000,000
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Name of the shareholder March 31, 2015

% holding in the class Nos.
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid . v
CRISIL Ltd 100.00% 100,000

Name of the shareholder

March 31, 2014

% holding in the class

Nos.

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid

CRISIL Ltd

100.00%

100,000




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

. Notes to financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2015

March 31, 2015

March 31,2014

4|Reserves and Surplus
Rupees Rupees
Surplus:
Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss .
Opening balance 29,194,399 12,460,146
Profit for the year 28,726,449 16,734,253
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 57,920,848 29,194,399
Total 57,920,848 29,194,399
5|Trade Payables March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Non-Current
Trade payables (Refer Note No. 20) 3,510,363 2,522,325
Total 3,510,363 2,522,325
6|Trade Payables March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Trade payables (Refer Note No. 20) 16,419,862 1,583,647
Sub-Total 16,419,862 1,583,647
Total 19,930,225 4,105,972
7]0ther liabilities March 31,2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
{Current
Other Current Liabilities 1,602,608 760,555
Unearned revenue/ Fees received in advance - 10,557,879
Total 1,602,608 11,318,434
8|Provisions March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for bonus 6,895,703 10,210,728
Provision for Gratuity 3,754,354 -
Provision for leave encashment 1,775,000 2,360,363
Total 12,425,057 12,571,091




9. Fixed Assets

MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

in Rupees
Gross Block at Cost Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
As on Additi Deductions / As on Upto For the Deductions / Upto As on Ason
ons
April 1,2014 Adjustments March 31, 2015 April 1, 2014 Year Adjustments March 31, 2015 March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Tangible assets
Furniture & Fixtures 4,122,159 5,228,091 (381,297) 9,731,547 1,245,960 1,078,630 2,324,590 7,406,958 2,876,199
Office Equipments 7,780,866 2,934,999 381,207 10,324,568 2,000,827 1,243,715 7277 3,226,265 7,098,303 5,771,039
Computers 28,101,044 8,882,785 36,983,829 13,599,096 8,330,074 (27,277) 21,956,447 15,027,382 14,501,948
Leasehold Improvements 5,596,361 14,625,804 20,222,165 1,251,801 1,929,077 3,180,878 17,041,287 4,344,560
Total 45,600,430 31,661,679 - 77,262,109 18,106,684 12,581,496 - 30,688,180 46,573,930 27,493,746
Ason Additions Deductions / As on Upto For the Deductions / Up to As on Ason
April 1, 2013 Adjustments March 31, 2014 April 1, 2013 Period Adjustments March 31, 2014 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Tangible assets
Furniture & Fixtures 4,122,159 - - 4,122,159 609,431 636,529 . 1,245,960 2,876,199 3,512,728
Office Equipments 7,496,985 283,881 N 7,780,866 1,101,759 908,068 B 2,009,827 5,771,039 6,395,226
Computers 18,234,043 10,289,994 472,993 28,101,044 7,109,802 6,584,898 95,605 13,599,096 14,501,048 11,124,240
Leasehold Improvements 5,596,361 - - 5,596,361 685,126 566,675 - 1,251,801 4,344,560 4,911,235
Total 35,449,548 10,573,875 422,993 45,600,430 9,506,118 8,696,170 95,605 18,106,684 27,493,746 25,943,430




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

~Notes to financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2015

10|Loans and Advances March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
i Rupees Rupees
Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 169,283 74,833
Prepaid expenses 671,923 -
Cenvat Credit Receivable 220,496 220,496
Sundry Deposits 4,281,615 4,187,615
Total 5,343,317 4,482,944
11l Trade Receivables March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good 9,405,625 -
Total 9,405,625 -
12|Loans and Advances March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 86,405 3,843,008
Other loans and advances
Loans and advances to employees 788,930 139,397
Other loans and advances 2,195,473 -
Gratuity - 1,573,488
Prepaid expenses 3,121,531 3,458,174
Total 6,192,339 9,014,067
13{Cash and bank balances March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash equivalents
(i)Cash in hand ) 75,966 5,423
(ii)Balances with banks:
- In current accounts 25,287,561 17,099,916
Total 25,363,527 17,105,339




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2015

14|Income from operations March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Researched Data Processing Services 235,295,082 137,141,176
Total 235,295,082 137,141,176
15{Other Income March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Rupees Rupees
Miscellaneous Income 16,939 77,217
Interest income 34,603 -
Total 51,542 77,217
16/ Personnel expenses March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Staff salaries and bonus 112,191,007 57,716,384
Leave encashment 2,311,000 1,436,713
Contribution to:
Provident fund 2,345,785 908,371
Other funds 5,480,000 322,545
Staff Training & Welfare Expenses 4,048,255 2,986,174
Staff Insurance and Mediclaim 2,242,235 376,021
Total 128,618,282 63,746,208
17|Establishment Expenses March 31,2015 March 31, 2014
) Rupees Rupees
Repairs and Maintenance-Building 4,370,820 2,089,364
Repairs and Maintenance-Others 8,079,949 9,302,915
Electricity 1,147,313 1,006,078
Communication expenses 4,126,364 3,691,500
Insurance 16,843 127,149
Premises Rent (Refer Note No.26) 6,467,932 6,353,605
Total 24,209,221 22,570,611
18}Other Expenses March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Foreign Exchange Loss (net) 5,018,828 3,782,357
Bank Charges 157,206 104,046
Printing and Stationery 328,388 177,493
Travelling & Conveyance 9,489,701 9,062,718
Books and periodicals 5,721,306 2,695,590
Professional fees 10,418,888 3,341,622
Auditors' remuneration (Refer Note No. 22) 100,000 85,000
Loss on sale of assets - 327,389
Miscellaneous Expense 345,333 261,576
Membership and subscription 531,962 261,867
Recruitment Expenses. 1,898,920 1,185,903
Total 34,010,532 21,285,561




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of the Fi ial for the calendar year ending 31 March 2015

20

Details of Contingent liabilities are as under :
(i) There are no contingent liabilities as on the balance sheet date and thus no relevant disclosure has been made in this regards. (P.Y: Rs. NIL)

(i) Estimate amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. 477,733 (PY: RS. 7,202,049)

The Company has a process of identification of ‘suppliers’ registered under the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006” by
obtairiing confirmations from suppliers. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 to whom any amount was payable on account of principal amount or interest, accordingly no additional disclosures have been made.

21 Payment in Foreign Currency

a) Value of imports calculated on C.LF basis for Capital goods:

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Value Of Capital goods imported on C.LF Basis 8,928 702 4,812,563
Total 8,928,702 4,812,563
b) Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency, on account of
Particulars ’ Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Travel Expenses 3,636,150 2,806,456
Other 1,883,552 2,488,347
Total 5,519,702 5,294,803
22 Auditors' Remuneration includes :
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Audit Fees 80,000 60,000
Taxation & Other Matters 20,000 25,000
Total 100,000 85,000

23
24

25

26

27

Earnings in foreign currency Rs. 235,295,082 (P.Y Rs. 137,141 ,i76)

Segment Reporting

Business Segments:
The Company's main business is to provide researched data processing services. The business operations of the company are primarily concentrated in one
geographical location. As such, there is no separate reportable segment as per accounting standard 17 on segment reporting.

List of Related Parties

Parties Relationship

Related parties where control exists

Capital IQ, Inc *

CRISIL Limited

Coalition Development Singapore Pte Ltd
Coalition Development Systems India Pvt Ltd

Fellow Subsidiary
Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Related Party Disclosure

Name of the related party Nature of transaction Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Coalition Development Singapore Pte Ltd Service Income 235,295,082 137,141,176
Amount Payable (net) - 10,557,879
Amount receivable 9,405,625 C -
Coalition Development Systems India Pvt Ltd Reimbursement of Expenses charged 1,795,307 3,305,404
Reimbursement of Expenses Paid 79,918 -
Amount receivable . - 533,100
CRISIL Ltd Share capital outstanding 1,000,000 1,000,000
Reimbursement of Expenses Paid 306,390 -
Capital 1Q, Inc Subscription fees paid 1,738,378 -

Operating Lease
The Company has taken certain office premises on cancelable operating lease basis. Some of these agreements have a price escalation clause. Details as regards
payments and future commitments are as under :

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees

Lease Payment recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 6,467,932 6,353,605

Future Minimum Lease Payments :

Not later than One Year 6,413,343 3,717,880

Later than One Year & not later than Five Years 27,898,042 -

Later than Five Years 13,398,542 -

Total 47,709,927 3,717,880

Employee Retiral Benefits : (AS 15) (As per Actuarial Valuation Report)

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees of the
Company. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based
on the respective employee’s salary and tenure of employment with the Group.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in
the Balance Sheet for the respective plans.




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the calendar year ending 31 March 2015

Statement of Profit and Loss:
Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Current Service cost 164,000 309,088
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 13,000 18,460
Expected return on plan assets (155,000) (89,292)
Net actuarial loss recognised in the year 5,458,842 84,289
Net Gratuity Benefit Expense 5,480,842 322,545
Balance Sheet:
Details of Provision for Gratuity Benefit
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Present value of funded obligations (5,273,390) (643,891)
Less: Fair value of plan assets 1,519,036 2,217,379
Net (Liability)/Assets (3,754,354) 1,573,488
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 643,891 230,750
Current Service Cost 164,000 309,088
Interest Cost 13,000 18,460
Benefit paid from the Fund (1,015,000) -
Actuarial (gain)/loss 5,467,499 85,593
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 5,273,390 643,891
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Opening Fair value of plan assets 2,217,379, 1,026,340
Expected return on plan assets 155,000 89,292
Benefit paid from the Fund (1,015,000) -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) 8,657 1,304
Contribution by employer 153,000 1,100,443
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 1,519,036 2,217,379
Experience Adjustment
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2014 March 31, 2015
Rupees Rupees
On plan liability gain / (loss) (158,751) (4,987,000)
On plan assets gain / (loss) 1,304 8,657
The principal assumptions used in determining Gratuity for the Company’s plans is as below:
Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
% %
Discount Rate 7.80% 9.29%
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 8.70% 8.70%
Attrition Rate 12.00% 12.00%
Salary Escalation 6.00% 6.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and

demand in the employment market.

28 Details of unhedged foreign exposure

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Rupees Rupees
Currency Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
SGD 10,049,605 2,900,487 10,557,879
Total 10,049,605 2,900,487 10,557,879




» MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of the Fi ial St nts for the calendar year ending 31 March 2015

29 Previous period comparatives
Previous period figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current year's classification.
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

THE MEMBERS OF
MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

We have examined the registers, records, books and papers of MERCATOR INFO-
SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (the Company) as required to be maintained
under the Companies Act, 1956, (the Act) and the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and also the provisions
contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company for the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2014. In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the examinations carried out by us and explanations
furnished to us by the Company, its officers and agents, we certify that in respect
of the aforesaid financial year:

1. The Company, is registered under CIN No. U72300MH2010PTC211572
with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra and having its Registered
Office at 104, Standard House, 83, Maharshi Karve Road, Mumbai - 400002
has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure "A’ to this
certificate, as per the provisions and the rules made thereunder and all
entries therein have been duly recorded.

2. The Company has duly filed the forms and returns prescribed under the Act
and the rules made thereunder as stated in Annexure "B’ to this certificate
with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra or other authorities within
the time prescribed under the Act.

3. The Company has the minimum prescribed paid-up capital and members as
required under the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

4. The Board of Directors duly met 4(Four) times on the under mentioned
dates:

14th June, 2013

12th August, 2013

13th November, 2013 and
03rd February, 2014




10.

11.

12.

13.

in respect of which meetings proper notices were given and the
proceedings of the Board Meetings and the Circular resolutions were
properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the
purpose.

The Company was not required to close its Register of Members during the
year.

The Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended on 31st March,
2013 was held on 06t September, 2013 after giving due notice to the
members of the Company and the resolutions passed thereat were duly
recorded in the Minutes book of the Company.

The Company has not held any Extra Ordinary General Meeting during the
financial year.

The Company has not advanced any loan to directors or persons or firms or
companies referred to under Section 185 of the Companies Act 2013.

The Company has not entered into contracts falling within the purview of
Section 297 of the Act.

The Company has made necessary entries in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Act.

As there are no instances which are covered by the provisions of Section
314 of the Act the Company was not required to obtain any approval from
the Board of Directors, Members and Central Government.

The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificates during the
financial year.

The Company has:

(i) there was no allotment/transfer/transmission of securities during
the financial year.

(ii)  not deposited any amount in separate Bank Account as no dividend
was declared during the financial year.

(iii) notrequired to post warrants to any member of the Company as no
dividend was declared during the financial year.




14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

(iv) has duly complied with the requirements of section 217 of the Act.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and the
appointment of the additional directors has been duly made. There was no
appointment of alternate directors and directors to fill casual vacancy
during the financial year.

The Company has not appointed any Managing or Whole-time Director
during the year.

The Company has not appointed any sole-selling agents during the year.

During the year the Company was not required to obtain any approvals of
the Central Government, Company Law Board, Regional Director, Registrar
of Companies, Maharashtra or such other authorities as are prescribed
under the various provisions of the Act.

The directors have disclosed their interest in other firms/companies to the
Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the rules made
thereunder.

The Company has not issued any shares, debentures or other securities
during the financial year.

The Company has not bought back any shares during the financial year.

The Company has not issued any preference shares nor any debentures,
hence there was no redemption of preference shares or debentures during
the financial year

There were no transactions necessitating the Company to keep in abeyance
the rights to dividend, right shares and bonus shares pending registration
of transfer of shares.

The Company has not invited/accepted any deposits including any
unsecured loans falling with in the purview of sections 58A during the
financial year.

The Company has not made any borrowings during the financial year
ended 31st March, 2014.

The Company has not made any loans or advances or given guarantees or
provided securities to other body corporate.




26. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association with respect to situation of the Company’s registered office
from one state to another during the year under scrutiny.

27. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association with respect to the objects of the Company during the year
under scrutiny.

28. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association with respect to name of the Company during the year under
scrutiny.

29. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association with respect to share capital of the Company during the
financial year under scrutiny.

30. The Company has not altered its Articles of Association of the Company
during the financial year under scrutiny.

31. There was no prosecution initiated against the Company nor were any
show cause notices received by the Company and no fines or penalties or
any other punishment has been imposed on the Company during the
financial year for offences, if any, under the Act.

32. The Company has not received any money as security from its employees
during the financial year.

33. The Company has deducted contributions to Provident Fund during the
financial year and the Company has duly deposited the said contributions
to Provident Fund with the concerned department.

Place: Mumbai ALWYN D’SOUZA & Co.,
Date : 14t August, 2014 Company Secretaries
Office Address :

Annex-103, Dimple Arcade, ( Alwyn P D’souza F(CS.5559)
Asha Nagar, Kandivli (E), (Proprietor)

Mumbai 400101. Certificate of Practice No.5137




Annexure A

Annexed to the Compliance Certificate

Registers as maintained by the Company

Application for and Allotment of Shares Register
Register of Members U/s. 150.

Register of Charges U/s.143

Register of Transfers

Register of Directors, Managing Directors etc. U/s. 303.
Register of Directors Shareholdings U/s. 307.
Attendance Register

Register of Contracts U/s. 301.

O© 00 N O U1 - W N =

Register of Contracts, Companies and Firms in which Directors are interested
U/s.301(3).

10 Board Minutes Book and General Body Minutes Book Under Section 193.
11 Books of Accounts U/s.209.

12 Register of Fixed Assets

Note:

The Company has not maintained the following registers as there were no entries
/ transactions to be recorded therein

1. Register of Investments under section 49(7)

2. Register of deposits under section 58A




Annexure B

Annexed to the Compliance Certificate

Forms and Returns as filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies,
Regional Director, Central Government or other authorities during the financial year
ending on 31st March, 2014.

1.

Form No. 20B i.e,, Annual Return filed under section 159 made upto 06t
September, 2013 with normal filing fees.

Form No. 23AC-XBRL and Form 23ACA-XBRL ie, Balance sheet filed under
section 220 of the Companies Act, 1956 for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2013 with normal filing fees.

Form No.66 i.e., Compliance Certificate for the year ended 315t March, 2013
filed under proviso to Section 383A of the Companies Act, 1956 with normal
filing fees.

Form No.32 filed under section 303(2) for appointment of Mr. Ravishankar
Gedela and resignation of Mr. Mani Gangadharan with normal filing fees.

Form No.32 filed under section 303(2) for appointment of Mr. Stephane
Besson and resignation of Mr. Trevor John William Foster Black with normal
filing fees.
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C.A. MUKESH B. ADVANI M.B. ADVANI & CO

B.COM. FC.A. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
302 & 304 -B, "NEELKANTH", 98, MARINE DRIVE.MUMBAI- 400 002.
TEL.. OFFICE : 2281 28 17 , 2281 68 07 * FAX - 2281 68 07
E-mail : mukadvani @vsnl.net.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S MERCATOR INFO-
SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2014, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act™)(which continue 10 be applicable in respect of section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in terms of General Circular 15/2013 dated September 13,2013 of the

Ministry of Corporate Affairs). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers interal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficie and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.




Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
a. inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2014;
b. in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date;

¢. inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and § of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

2)
b)
¢)

d)

we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 (which continue to be applicable in respect of section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in terms of General Circular 15/2013 dated September 13,2013 of
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs);

on the basis of writien representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2014,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2014, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section
(1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Since the Central Government has not issued any notification as to the rate at which the
cess is to be paid under section 441A of the Companies Act, 1956 nor has it issued any
Rules under the said section, prescribing the manner in which such cess is to be paid, no
cess is due and payable by the Company.

For M.B.ADVANI & CO.

Chartered 4
Firm Reg No - 100052W._

ukesh B . Advani ™.

(Proprietor)

Membership No. — 037657
Place:Mumbai
Date:August 14,2014



ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph (3) of our report of even date on the accounts for the year ended
31* March, 2014, of MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED.

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records to show full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified during the year by the management in accordance
with a programme of verification, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, the fixed
assets have been physically verified by the management, during the year and no material
discrepancies between the book records and the physically inventory have been noticed.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, a substantial
part of fixed assets has not been disposed of by the Company during the year.

2. (a) The company has no inventory, hence this clause js not applicable.
(b) The company has no inventory, hence this clause is not applicable.

(c) The company has no inventory, hence this clause is not applicable.

3. (@) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act, and
accordingly clauses (iii) (b), (iii) (¢) and (iii) (d) of paragraph 4 of the order are not
applicable.

(b)  According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not taken any
loans, secured or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties covered in the
Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, and accordingly
clauses (iii) (f) and (iii) (g) are not applicable.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business for obtaining the services, fixed assets and for rendering the services.
Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across nor
have been informed of any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid
internal control procedures.




10.

11

12.

13.

14.

LA Nl 3 |

-(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

transactions that need to be entered into the register in pursuance of Section 301 of Act,
have been so entered.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions made in pursuance of the contracts or arrangements entered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of
Rs. Five Lakhs in respect of any party during the year have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time, except that
reasonableness could not be ascertained where comparable quotations are not available
having regard to the specialized nature of some of the transactions of the Company.

- The Company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of Sections 58A and S8AA

of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and
nature of its business.

. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under

clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

. (a) According to records examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing

undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, MVAT, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Wealth Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and other statutory dues applicable
to 1t with the appropriate authorities and no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Income-tax, Wealth-tax, Customs Duty, and Excise Duty were outstanding, at the year end
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Sales Tax,
[ncome Tax, Customs Duty, Wealth Tax, Excise Duty or cess outstanding on account of
any dispute.

The Company has no accumulated losses as at 31 March, 2014 and it has not incurred any

cash losses in the financial year ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial
year.

- According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation

given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or
bank or debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted loans
and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares and other securities.

The provisions of special statute applicable to chit fund and nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society
are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not a dealer or trader in shares, securities, debentures and
other investments.
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15. According to the information and explanations given to us and the record examined by us, the
Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial
institutions.

16. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no term loans were availed by the Company during the year.

17. On the basis of an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, in our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no funds raised on a
short-term basis which have been used for long- term investment, and vice versa.

18. The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies
covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act during the year.

19. The Company did not issue any debentures during the year.

20. The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue during the year.

21. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud

on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
such case by the management.

For M.BADVANI & CO.

(Proprietor)

Membership No. - 037657
Place: Mumbai
Dated:August 14,2014



MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014

Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share Capital 3 10,00,000 10,00,000
Reserves and Surplus 4 2,91,94,399 1,24,60,146
Current liabilities
Trade payables 3 41,05,972 33,12,783
Other current liabilities 6 1,13,18,434 1,63,05,397
Short-term provisions 7 1,25,71,091 52,28,225
TOTAL 5,81,89,896 3,83,06,551
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed Assets
Tangible assets 8 2,74,93,746 2,59,43.431
Capital work-in-progress 93,800 -
Long-term loans and advances 9 4482944 42,42,880
Current assefs
Cash and bank balances 10 1,71,05,339 42,00,585
Short-term [oans and advances 9 90,14,067 39,19,655
TOTAL 5,81,89,896 3,83,06,551
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's Report

Signed in terms of separate report of even date,
For And On Behalf Of The Board Of

M.B. ADVANI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Proprietor
Membership No.- 037657
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MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2014

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
INCOME
Income from operations 11 13,71,41,176 7,56,16,214
TOTAL 13,71,41,176 7,56,16,214
EXPENDITURE
Personnel expenses 12 6.37,89,833 3,21,04,582
Establishment expenses 13 2,24,54,190 1,56,44,338
Other expenses 14 2,12,81,140 85,68,675
Depreciation 8 86,96,170 77,63,441
TOTAL 11,62,21,333 6,40,81,536
Profit Before Exceptional And
Extraordinary Items And Tax 2,09,19,843 1,15,34,678
Exceptional Item - -
Profit Before
Extraordinary Items And Tax 2,09,19,843 1,15,34,678
- Extraordinary Jtems - -
Profit Before Tax 2,09,19,843 1,15,34,678
Tax Expense
Current tax 41,85,590 23,50,000
Total Tax Expense 41,85,590 23,50,000
Profit After Tax 1,67,34,253 91,84,678
Profit for the year from operations 1,67,34,253 91,84,678
Earnings per share : Nominal value of Rs.10/- per share :
Basic 167.34 91.85
Diluted 167.34 91.85
Number of shares used in computing earnings per share
Basic {,00,000 1,00,000
Diluted 1,00,000 1,00,000
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finaucial statements.

Auditor's Report

Signed in terms of separate report of even date.

M.B. ADVANI & ¢O.

Proprietor
Membership No.- 037657
Date: A a1l 9N

14 AUG /U145
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MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2014

March 31, 2014

March 31, 2013

{Rupees) {Rupees)
. |Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
Profit before tax 2,09,19,843 1,15,34,678
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 86,96,170 77,63,441
Fixed assets writtenoff 327,388 -
~ |Operating profit before working capital changes 2,99,43,401 1,92,98,119
Movements in working capital
- Increase/(decrease) in Provisions 73,42,866 32,40,628
- (Increase)/decrease in advances (53,14,908) (7,26,736)
- Increase/(decrease) in sundry creditors 7,93,189 16,14,817
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (49.86,963) (93,69,534)
Cash generated from operations 2,77,77,585 1,40,57,294
- Taxes paid 42,05,156 24,51,287
Net cash generated from operating activities - (A) 2,35,72,429 1,16,06,007

. |Cash flow from investing activities :

- |Purchase of fixed assets (1,06,67,675) (1,44,63,690)
Net cash generated from investing activities - (B) (1,06,67,675) (1,44,63,690)
Cash flow from Financing Activity:

Net cash generated from financing activities - (C) - -
Net Increasc in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,29,04,754 (28,57,682)
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance 42.00,585 70,58,267
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing balance 1,71,05,339 42,00,585
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,29,04,754 (28,57,682)
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at

with Bank on current account 1,70,99,916 42,00,585
Cash in hand 5,423

The accompanyiug notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Auditor's Report
Signed in terms of separate report of even date

c
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For and on Behalf of the board of Directors

Ao

Ravishankar Gedela
Proprietor Director
Membership No.- 037657
D 201 b4 4 AUG 201!
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Raman fIi:)&roi
Director




] MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2014

1.1

2.1

22

2.3

24

2.5

Nature of Operations
The Company is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing Services.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

The financial staiements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian
GAAP) under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis in compliance with all material aspect of the Accounting
Standard (AS) Notified by Companies Accounting Standard Rules, 2006 (as amcnded) and the rcjevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified) and the Companies Act, 1956 (o the extent applicable). The accounting
policies have been consistently applied and are consistent with those used in the previous vears.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current/ Non-Current classification of assets and liabilities

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956. Based on the nature of products and the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of current — Non Current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimales and assumptions that affcct the reported amounts of assels and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting year end,Although these
estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,acrual resulis could differ from these
estimates.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase
price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.ltems of fixed asset held for
disposal are stated at lower of the net book value and net realisable value and are shown under other current assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on all the assets under Written-Down value Method on pro-rata basis on the assets, which were in
use during the year at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. If the assets are purchased during
the year, depreciation is provided on pro - rata basis from the date the assets are installed. In case the assets are sold,
depreciation is provided on the same upto the date of sale on pro —rafa basis.The perpetual software licenses are depreciated
over 4 period of three (3) years .The non-perpetual licenses are writtenoff in the license period.

Assets Schedule XIV
Rates (WDV)
Furniture & Fixtures 18.10%
Office Equipments 13.91%
Computers 40.00%

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term on Straight Line Basis.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value at interest rate specific to the asset and in case where the
specific rate is not available at the weighted average cost of capital which is adjusted for country risk/currency risk.

Afier impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2014

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Operating L eases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially ail the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

[nvesiments

Invesiments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments.
All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value
determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution
in value is made 10 recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured.

Income from Operations

Income from Operations comprises of Income from Researched Data Processing Services and same is recognised for on
accrual basis when the service has been provided and in accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the
company and the counter party.

Interest Income
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount ousstanding and the rate applicable.

Retirement_and other emplovee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respeciive funds are due. There are no other
obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities or trusts.

Contribution to Graruity fund of LIC is made and Actuarial valuation is obtained to ascertain the liability. During the year
gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an A cruarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of
financial year.

Compensaled absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit
credit method.
Foreign Currency Transactions

Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amoums, the monthly
averagce exchange rates for the respective periods in which the transaction takes place.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rates. Non monetary items which are carried in terms of
historical costs denominated in a forcign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange Difference
Exchenge differences relating to long term monetary items, arising during the vear, such differences are accumulated in the
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Transtation Account” and amortised to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the balance

life of the long term monetary item. Al) other exchange djfferences are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost denominated in & foreign currency are reported using the exchange
rale at the date of the transaction; and non-monelary jtems which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate thar existed, when the values were determined.

Exchange differences arising as a result of the above are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

The foreign currency transactions have been accounted in accordance with AS-1 [ issued by the ICAI Monetary transactions
arising in foreign currency during the year are converted at Bank rates as per Bank advice received during the year. In
absence of Bank intimation, and for transactions outstanding as on the year end dale, the exchange rate prevailing on that
date is taken.
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2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Taxes On Income

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected 1o be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act of 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income laxes reflects the
impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing
differences of earlier years.

As the company operates from a Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and is liable 10 pay Income Tax on its book profits as per
provisions of Section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961, hence there are no timing differences which arise between taxable
incomne and accounting income. Thus there are no deferred tax assets or liabilities

Segment Reporting Policies

Segment Policies:

The Company mainly is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing Services and primarily concentrated in
one geographical location,Hence there is only one segment of business.

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable fo equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all ditutive potential
equity shares.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted fo reflect the current best estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with
original manrity of three months or less.
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3|Share Capital March 3], 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Authorised Capital;
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 10,00,000 10,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. {10/~ each fully paid vp (P.Y. 1,00,000
shares of Rs, 10/- each) 10,00,000 10,00,000
Total 10,00,000 10,00,000
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Equity shares
March 31,2014
Rs. Nos.
At the beginning of the period (face value of Rs.10/- per share) 10,00,000 1,00,000
Add: Shares issues during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 10,00,000 1,00,000
March 31, 2013
Rs. Nos.

At the beginning of the year (face value of Rs. 10/~ per share) 10,00,000 1,00,000
Add: Shares issues during the year - .
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,00,000 1,00,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

is entitled to on¢ vote per share.

equity shares held by the shareholders.

subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equily shares

[n the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of|
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 10 the number of

(¢) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Out of equity shares issued by the company;, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their

March 33, 2014 March 31, 2013
Particulars Rupces Rupess
1,00,000 Cquity Shares of Rs.10/- are held by CRISIL Ltd (Holding 10,00,000 10,00,000
Company)
(d) Details of shareholders ho!ding more than 5% shares in the company
Name of the shareholder March 31, 2014
% holding in the Nos.
class
Lquity shares of Rs. 10/~ each full id
CRISIL Ltd 100% 1,00,000
Name of the shareholder March 31, 2013
% holding in the Nos.
class
£quily shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
CRISIL Led 100% 1,00,0600
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-

e |
Reserves and Surplus March 31,2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Surplus:
Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 1.24,60,146 32,75,468
Add: Profit afier tax for the year 1,67,34,253 91,84,678
L ess: Appropriations - -
Total appropriations - -
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 2,91,94,399 1,24,60,146
Total 2,91,94,399 1,24,60,146
Trade Payables March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Current
Trade payables (Refer Note No. 16} 41,05,972 13,12,783
Total 41,05,972 33.12,783
Other liabilities March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Current
Statutory Dues 7,60,555 6,03,226
Uncarned revenue/ I‘'ces received in advance 1,05,57,879 1,57,02,171
Total 1,13,18,434 1,63.05,397
Provisions March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for bonus 1,02,10,728 36,84,373
Provision for leave encashment 23,60,363 15,43,852
Total 1,25,71,091 52.28,225




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

8. Fixed Assets
(Amounts in Rupees)
Gross Block a3 Cost Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
Ason Additions Deductions / Ason Upto For the Ceductions / Upto Ason Ason
Apnl !, 2013 Adjustments March 31,2014 Aprl 1,2013 Petiod Adjusiments March 31, 2014 March 31, 2014 March 3!, 2013
Tangible assets
Furniture & Fixivres 41,22,159 - 4122159 6,094 6,36,529 - 12.45,960 28.76,199 35,12,728
Officc Equipments 7496985 2,383,881 - 77,680,966 11,601,759 9,08.068 - 2009827 57.71.03% 63,95,226
Computers 1,82.34,043 1,02.89,994 422993 2.81,01,043 71.09,802 65,84 808 95,605 1,35.99,0956 §£.4501,947 111,249,240
Leasehold Improvements $5,96,361 - - 55,906,361 6,85,126 566,675 - 12,51 801 43.44,560 49.11,235
Total 3,54,49,548 105,73 875 4,22,993 4.56,00,430 95.06,118 86,946,170 95,605 1,81,06,684 2,74,93,746 2,59,43,44
Gross Block as Cost Accomulated Depreciation/Amortization Nei Block
Ason Additions Deductions / As on Upto For the Deductions / Upto As on As on
Aprl 1, 2012 Adjustments March 31, 2013 Aprl 1, 2012 Period Adjustments March 31, 2013 Match 31,2013 March 31, 2012
Tangible assets
Furniture & Fixtures 16,94,270 24,27 800 41,22,139 100,274 509,157 - 609431 35,12,728 15,93,996
QiTice Equipments 53,21.166 21,75.819 - 74,96, 985 240,521 B61.238 - 11,081,759 6395226 50,80 645
Computers 96.70,102 £5,63,941 - 1,82,24,043 12,56,108 58,53,6%4 - 71,09,802 1,11,.24,240 84.13,993
Leascheld Improvements 43.0032) 12.96,040 - 5596361 1,45,774 539352 - 6,85,126 49,11.235 41,54,547
Total 2,09,85,858 1,44,63,6%0 - 3.54,49,548 17.42.677 7763441 - 25.06,113 2,58.43 430 1,92,43,181
B 1 o
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014

9|Loans and Advances March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
(8)Current
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances 30,66,400 2,06,660
Loans and Advances to related parties 5,33,100 10,68,785
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 2.43,508 299
Other loans and advances
Loan and advances o cmployees 1,39,397 7.52,941
Prepaid expenses 34,358,174 10.95,380
Gratuity Contributions (Refer Note No. 23) 15,73,488 7,95,590
Total(A) 90,14,067 39,19,655
(b)Non-Current
Unsecured,considered good
Security deposit 41,87,615 41,87,615
Advance Income Tax(Net of provision for taxation) 74,833 55,265
Service tax credit 2,20,496 -
Total(B) 44,82,944 42,42,880
Grand Total(A+B) 1,34,97,011 81,62,535
10|Cash and bank balances March 31,2014 Mareh 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash equivalents
()Cash in hand 5,423 -
(ii)Balances with banks:
~ In current accounts 1,70,99,916 42,00,585
Total 1,71,05,339 42,00,585
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11|Income from operations March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Researched Data Processing Service 13,71,41,176 7,56,16,214
Total 13,71,41,176 7,56,16,214
12|Personnel expenses March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rupees Rupees
Staff Salaries and Bonus 5.74,63.354 2,44 68,247
Leave Encashment 14,36,713 16,36,785
Contribution to:
Provident fund 9,08,371 4,08,753
Other Funds(Refer note 23) 3,28,593 3,23,325
Staff welfare expenses 34,56,333 51,90,205
Staff Insurance and Mediclaim 1,96,469 77,267
Total 6,37,89,833 3,21,04,582
13| Establishment Expenses March 31, 2014 March 31,2013
Rupees Rupees
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings 9,29,950 17,70,469
Repairs and maintenance - Others 1,04,05,671 28.67,989
Electricity 10,06.079 6,52,351
Communication expenses 36,82.017 38,06,234
Insurance 1,27,149 1,32,251
Rent (Refer Note No.22 ) 63,03.324 64,15.544
Total 2,24,54,190 1,56,44,838
14|Other Expenses March 21, 2014 March 31,2013
Rupees Rupees
Foreign Exchange Loss (nct) 37,82,353 32,48,093
Service Tax - 31,264
Bank Charges 1.04,046 57,308
Printing and statione¢ry 1,77,493 236,463
Stamp Duty & other Legal Expenses 3,932 1,02,727
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 91,12,995 20,27,362
Books and periodicals 26,95,590 2,172,610
Postage & Courier - 27,163
Professional fees 23,06,902 18,322,228
Auditors’ remuneration(Refer Note No. 18) 85,000 1,15,000
Membership & Subscription Charges 2,61,867 6,03,128
Fixed assets wriltenoff 3,27,388 -
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 24,23,570 70,332
Total 2,12,81,140 85,68,675
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15

b)

17
a)

b)

20

Details of Contingent liabilities and commitments are as under °

There are no contingent liabilitics as on the balanceshect date and thus no disclosure has been made.

Commitments

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

2014 2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 72,02,049 -

provided for

The Company has the process of ideniification of ‘suppliers’ registered under the “The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006” by oblaining confirmations from suppliers. There are no Micro, Small ang
Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom the company
owes dues on account of principal amounl together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been made.

Payment in Foreign Currency
Value of imports calculated on C.1.F basis for Ca

pital goods:

Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
VaJue Of Capital goods imported on C.I.F Basis 48,12,563 51,04,112
Total 48,12,563 51,04,112
Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency, on account of expenses
Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Travel Expenses 28,06,456 -
Subscription fee 24,88,347 42,480
Total 52,94,803 42,480
Auditors' Remuneration includes :
Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Audit Fees 60,000 85,000
Taxation & Other Matters 25,000 30,000
Total 85,000 1,15,000

Segment Reporting
Business Segments;

The Company's main business is to provide researched data processing services, The business operations of the company are
primarily concentrated in one geographical location. As such, there is no separate reponiable segment as per accounting

standard 17 on segment reporting.

List of Related Parties

Parttes

Relationship

Related parties where control exists
CRISIL Limited

Coalition Development Singapore Pte Ltd

Coalition Development Systems India Pvt Lid

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
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Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the

year ending 31 March 2014

21 Related Pg—ﬁisclo@
Name of the Nature of transaction March 31,2014  |March 31,2013
related party (Rupees) (Rupees)
Development Researched Data
Singapore Pte Ltd  |Processing Service 13,71,41,176 7.56,16,214
Advance Received 1,05,57.879 1,57.02,171
Coalition Reimbursement of 33,05,404 50,64,245
Development Expenses paid
Systems India Pvt
Ltd
Amount receivable 5,33,100 10,68.785
CRISIL Ltd Share capital outstanding 10,00,000 10,00,000
22 Operating Lease
The Company has taken certain office premises on non cancelable operating lease basis. Some of these agreements have a
price escalation clause. Details as regards payments and future commitments are as under :
Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) {Rupees)
Lease Payment recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 63,03,324 64,15,544
Future Minimum Lease Pavments :
Not later than One Year 37,17,880 55,76,820
Later than One Year & not later than Five Years - 37,17,880
Later than Five Years - -
Total 37,17,880 92,94,700
23

Emplovyee Retiral Benefits : (AS 15)(As per Actuarial Valuation Report)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a
gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an
insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant facors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The foliowing tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
the funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for the respective plans.

Statement of Profit and Loss:
Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)

Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) {Rupees)

Current Service cost 3,09,088 1,18,304
Interest cost 18,460 3,967
Expected return on plan assets (89,292) (23,840)
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year 84,289 57,576
Past service cost - -
Net Gratuity Benefit Expense 3,22,545 1,56,007




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2014

Balance Sheet:

Details of Provision for Gratuity Benefi

Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013 |
(Rupees) {Rupees)

Present value of funded obligations (6,43,891) (2,30,750)

Less: Fair value of plan assets 22,17,379 10,26,340

Net (Liability)/Asset 15,73,488 7,95,590

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

On plan assets(losses)/gains

1,304

Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) {Rupees)
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 2,30,750 46,668
Current Service Cost 3,039,088 1,18,304
Interest Cost 18,460 3,967
Actuarial (gain)/loss 85,593 61,811
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 6,43,891 2,30,750 |
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particutars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013
(Rupees) (Rupecs)
Opening Fair value of plan asscts 10,26,340 2,80,476
Expected retumn on plan assets 89,292 23,840
Actuarial gair/ (loss) 1,304 4,235
Contribution by employer 11,00,443 7,17,789
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 22,17,379 10,26,340
Lixperience Adjustment
Particulars April 01,2013 -
March 31, 2014
On plan liability(gain)/losses 1,58,751
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The principal assumptions used in determining Gratuity for the Company’s plans is as below:

Particulars March 31,2014 | March 31,2013

Discount Rate 9.29% 8.00%
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 8.70% 8.70%
Attrition Rate 12.00% 12.00%
Salary Escalation 6.00% 6.00%

The estimales of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senjority, promotion and

other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

24  Previous vear comparatives
Previous year's figures have been regrouped where necessary 10 conform to current year's classification.

Auditor's Report

Signed in terms of separate report of even date.
M.B. ADVANI & CO.

&
Ravishankar Gedela
Director
Date: : " e Dat.e:;i! f”.'r L‘l“ U : U ? {"

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors

r/__r/
Raman Uberoi
Director
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Mercator Info-Services India Private Limited
104 Standard House, 83 Maharshi Karve Road,
Mumbai 400002

Tel: +91 22 66343690 Fax: +91 22 22703690

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Third Annual General Meeting will be held on Friday, September 6, 2013 at
11.30 a.m. at CRISIL House, Central Avenue, Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, Mumbai 400076 to transact the
following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Profit & Loss Account of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2013
and Balance Sheet as at that date, together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint director in place of Mr. Raman Uberoi, who retires by rotation and being eligible, seeks re-
appointment.

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 224 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956, M/s M. B. Advani & Co., Chartered Accountants having registration No. 100052W, be
and hereby re-appointed statutory auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Meeting
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, on such remuneration to be fixed
by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

By order of the Zﬁard of Directors

- ™

Raman Uberoi
Director

Regd.Office :

104, Standard House

83, Maharshi Karve Road,

Mumbai 400002

Mumbai, August 12, 2013
NOTES :

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in
his stead and a proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. An Explanatory statement pursuant to section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, relating to the special
business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

3. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors herewith present the Third Annual Report of the Company together with Audited Statement of
Accounts and the Auditors’ Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2013.

Accounts : During the year under review, the company has earned profit after tax of Rs. 91,84,678/- (Previous
Year — Rs. 32,75,468/-).

Shareholding : The Company continues to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRISIL Limited.

Dividend : The Directors do not recommend any dividend distribution for the current year and intend to retain it
for the growth of the company in future.

Business Plans: During the year under review, your Company continued to provide Researched Data Processing
Services to Coalition Development Singapore Pte. Limited, a fellow subsidiary of CRISIL Limited.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement: Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies
Act, 1956 with respect to Directors’ responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

i. that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2013, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii. that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year under review;

iii. that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. that the directors had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2013 on a ‘going
concern’ basis.

Directors: Mr. Raman Uberoi retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Secretarial Compliance Certificate : As required under proviso to Section 383A(1) of the Companies Act, 1956,
a Secretarial Compliance Certificate issued by a practising Company Secretary, M/s. Alwyn D’Souza & Company
is annexed to this report.

Auditors : M/s M. B. Advani & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Auditors of the Company retire at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for reappointment.

Personnel : Statement under Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars
of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended is not attached as none of the employees of the Company are covered
under the provisions of the said section.
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Particulars regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption : Since, the Company does not
own any manufacturing facility, the other particulars relating to conservation of Energy and technology
absorption stipulated in the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules,
1988 are not applicable.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo : The Company has earned a revenue of Rs. 7,56,16,214 equivalent to
SGD 17,34,368.52 (Previous year Rs.2,73,72,510 equivalent to SGD 6,89,880) as foreign exchange, including
other income, during the year under review. The total expenditure in foreign exchange for the year under review
was Rs. 51,46,592 equivalent to USD 95,134 (Previous year Rs.1,07,71,562 equivalent to GBP 11,520 , EURO
8,528 and USD 1,90,952).

Acknowledgement : Your Directors wish to place on record their grateful appreciation for the continued support,
co-operation and assistance extended to the Company from time to time by the Company’s Bankers, Clients, and
various authorities for their confirmed support, and for the hard work put in by the Employees at all levels.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

m Trevor Foster Black

Director Director

4

August 12, 2013



ALWYN D’SOUZA & CO.

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Annex-103, Dimple Arcade, Asha Nagar, Kandivli (E), Mumbai 400101.Tel: 022-28549355

Branch Office: D-003, Gr. FIr, Indraprasta, Poonam Vihar, Mira Road (E) Thane 401107.
Tel: 022-28125781; Mob: 09820465195 ; E-mail: alwyn.co@gmail.com

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

THE MEMBERS OF
MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

We have examined the registers, records, books and papers of MERCATOR INFO-
SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (the Company) as required tc be maintained
under the Companies Act, 1956, (the Act) and the rules made thereunder and also the
provisions contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2013. In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the examinations carried out by us and explanations
furnished to us by the Company, its officers and agents, we certify that in respect of
the aforesaid financial year:

1. The Company , is registered under CIN No. U72300MH2010PTC211572 with
the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra and having its Registered Office at
104, Standard House, 83, Maharshi Karve Road, Mumbai-400002 has kept and
maintained all registers as stated in Annexure “A’ to this certificate, as per the
provisions and the rules made thereunder and all entries therein have been
duly recorded.

2. The Company has duly filed the forms and returns prescribed under the Act
and the rules made thereunder as stated in Annexure ‘B’ to this certificate with
the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra or other authorities within the time
prescribed under the Act.

3. The Company being a Private Limited Company has the minimum prescribed
paid-up capital and its maximum number of members during the said financial
year excluding its present and past employees of the Company during the year
under scrutiny is less than 50 and the Company :

(i) has not invited public to subscribe for its shares or debentures; and
(if) has not invited or accepted any deposits from any personas other than
its members, directors or their relatives.




10.

11.

12,

13.

The Board of Directors duly met 5(Five) times on the under mentioned dates

01.06.2012

1.

2. 03.07.2012
3. 31.08.2012
4. 12.12.2012
5. 06.02.2013

in respect of which meetings proper notices were given and the proceedings
of the Board Meetings and the Circular resolutions were properly recorded and
signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

The Company was not required to close its Register of Members during the
year.

The Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended on 315t March, 2012
was held on 25t September, 2012 after giving due notice to the members of the
Company and the resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in the
Minutes book of the Company.

The Company has not held any Extra Ordinary General Meeting during the
financial period.

The Company has not advanced any loans to its Directors or persons or firms
or companies referred to under section 295 of the Act.

The Company has not entered into contracts falling within the purview of
Section 297 of the Act.

The Company has made necessary entries in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Act.

As there are no instances which are covered by the provisions of Section 314 of
the Act the Company was not required to obtain any approval from the Board
of Directors, Members and Central Government.

The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificates during the
financial year.

The Company has:

(i) delivered all the certificates on lodgment thereof for transfer in

accordance with the provisions of the act and the Company has not
made any allotments /transmission of securities during the financial
year.

(if) not deposited any amount in separate Bank Account as no dividend
was declared during the financial year.

not required to post warrants to any member of the Company as no
dividend was declared during the financial year.




(iv) has duly complied with the requirements of section 217 of the Act.

14. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and the
appointment of the additional directors has been duly made. There was no
appointment of alternate directors and directors to fill casual vacancy during
the financial year.

15. The Company has not appointed any Managing or Whole-time Director
during the year.

16. The Company has not appointed any sole-selling agents during the year.

17. During the year the Company was not required to obtain any approvals of the
Central Government, Company Law Board, Regional Director, Registrar of
Companies, Maharashtra or such other authorities as are prescribed under the
various provisions of the Act.

18. The directors have disclosed their interest in other firms/ companies to the
Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the rules made
thereunder.

19. The Company has not issued any shares, debentures or other securities during
the financial year.

20. The Company has not bought back any shares during the financial year.

21.The Company has not issued any preference shares nor any debentures, hence
there was no redemption of preference shares or debentures during the financial
year

22.There were no transactions necessitating the Company to keep in abeyance the
rights to dividend, right shares and bonus shares pending registration of
transfer of shares.

23. The Company has not invited/accepted any deposits including any
unsecured loans falling with in the purview of sections 58A during the
financial year.

24. The Company has not made any borrowings during the financial year ended
31st March, 2013.

25. The Company has made any loans or advances or given guarantees or
provided securities to other bodies corporate and necessary have been made in
the register kept for the purpose.

. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association with respect to situation of the Company’s registered office from
one state to another during the year under scrutiny




27.

28.

29.

30.

The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association with respect to the objects of the Company during the year under
scrutiny.

The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association with respect to name of the Company during the year under
scrutiny.

The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association with respect to share capital of the Company during the financial
year under scrutiny.

The Company has not altered its Articles of Association of the Company
during the financial year under scrutiny.

31. There was no prosecution initiated against the Company nor were any show
cause notices received by the Company and no fines or penalties or any other
punishment has been imposed on the Company during the financial year for
offences, if any, under the Act.

32. The Company has not received any money as security from its employees
during the financial year.

33. The Company has deducted contributions to Provident Fund during the
financial year and the Company has duly deposited the said contributions to
Provident Fund with the concerned department.

Place : Mumbai ALWYN D’'SOUZA & Co.,
Date : 12.08.2013 Company Secretaries
Office Address : L&

Annex-103, Dimple Arcade,

( Alwyn P D’souza FCS.5559)

Asha Nagar, Kandivli (E), (Proprietor)
Mumbai 400101. Certificate of Practice No.5137




Annexure A
Annexed to the Compliance Certificate

Registers as maintained by the Company

Application for and Allotment of Shares Register
Register of Members U/s. 150.

Register of Charges U/s.143

Register of Transfers

Register of Directors, Managing Directors etc. U/s. 303.
Register of Directors Shareholdings U/s. 307.
Attendance Register

Register of Contracts U/s. 301.

O 00 N N Uk W

Register of Contracts, Companies and Firms in which Directors are interested
U/s. 301(3).

10 Board Minutes Book and General Body Minutes Book Under Section 193.
11 Books of Accounts U/s.209.

12 Register of Fixed Assets

Note:

The Company has not maintained the following registers as there were no entries /
transactions to be recorded therein

1. Register of Investments under section 49(7)
2. Register of deposits under section 58 A
=T




Annexure B

Annexed to the Compliance Certificate

Forms and Returns as filed By the Company with the Registrar of Companies, Regional
Director, Central Government or other authorities during the financial year ending on
31st March, 2013.

1.

Form No. 20B i.e.,, Annual Return filed under section 159 made upto 25.09.2012
with normal filing fees.

Form No. 23AC-XBRL and Form 23ACA-XBRL ie, Balance sheet filed under
section 220 of the Companies Act, 1956 for the financial period ended 31st March,
2012 with normal filing fees.

Form No.66 i.e., Compliance Certificate for the year ended 31st March, 2012 filed
under proviso to Section 383A of the Companies Act, 1956 with additional filing
fees.

Form No.32 filed under section 303(2) for resignation of directors with normal
filing fees.

Form No.32 filed under section 303(2) for appointment additional director with
normal filing fees.

Form 32 filed under section 303(2) for change in designation as Director of the
Company with additional filing fees.

Form No. 22B filed under section 187C (4) for declaration of beneficial interest
with normal filing fees.




C.A. MUKESH B. ADVANI M.B o A]DVANI & CO

B.COM.F.CA. IRTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S MERCATOR INFO-
SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”’), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2013, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion. :

i I
A
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E -MAIL : mukesh advani@@hotmail.com




Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
a. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;
b. in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit/ loss for the year ended on that date;

c. in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and S of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

¢) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsection (3C) of section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1956;

e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2013,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section
(1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

f) Since the Central Government has not issued any notification as to the rate at which the
cess is to be paid under section 441 A of the Companies Act, 1956 nor has it issued any
Rules under the said section, prescribing the manner in which such cess is to be paid, no
cess is due and payable by the Company.

For M.B/ADVANI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(Proprietor)
Membership No. — 037657

Place:Mumbai
Date: August 12, 2013



ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph (3) of our report of even date on the accounts for the year ended 31*
March, 2013, of MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED.

1. (@) The Company has maintained proper records to show full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified during the year by the management in accordance
with a programme of verification, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, the fixed
assets have been physically verified by the management, during the year and no material
discrepancies between the book records and the physically inventory have been noticed.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, a substantial
part of fixed assets has not been disposed of by the Company during the year.

2. (a) The company has no inventory, hence this clause is not applicable.
(b) The company has no inventory, hence this clause is not applicable.

(c) The company has no inventory, hence this clause is not applicable.

3. (a) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act, and
accordingly clauses (iii) (b), (iii) (c) and (iii) (d) of paragraph 4 of the order are not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not taken any
loans, secured or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties covered in the
Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, and accordingly
clauses (iii) (f) and (iii) (g) are not applicable.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business for obtaining the services, fixed assets and for rendering the services.
Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across nor
have been informed of any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid
internal control procedures.




10. The Company has no accumulated losses as at 3

11.

12.

14.

**2**

. (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

transactions that need to be entered into the register in pursuance of Section 301 of Act,
have been so entered.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions made in pursuance of the contracts or arrangements entered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of
Rs. Five Lakhs in respect of any party during the year have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time, except that
reasonableness could not be ascertained where comparable quotations are not available
having regard to the specialized nature of some of the transactions of the Company.

. The Company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of Sections 58A and 58AA

of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

The Company does not have paid up share Capital of Rs.50 Lakhs nor does it have average
annual turnover in the past three years exceeding Rs.5 Crores hence this clause of internal audit
system is not applicable.

. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under

clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

. (a) According to records examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing

undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, MVAT, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Wealth Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and other statutory dues applicable
to it with the appropriate authorities . According to the information and explanations given
to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, Wealth-tax,
Customs Duty, and Excise Duty which were outstanding at the year end for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Sales Tax,
Income Tax, Customs Duty, Wealth Tax, Excise Duty or cess outstanding on account of
any dispute.

1®* March, 2013 and it has not incurred any

cash losses in the financial year ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial

year.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or
bank or debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted loans
and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares and other securities.

. The provisions of special statute applicable to chit fund and nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society

are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not a dealer or trader in shares, securities, debentures and
other investments.

e
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Chartered Accountant
Membership No.
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15. According to the information and explanations given to us and the record examined by us, the
Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial
institutions.

16. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no term loans were availed by the Company during the year.

17. On the basis of an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, in our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no funds raised on a
short-term basis which have been used for long- term investment, and vice versa.

18. The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies
covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act during the year.

19. The Company did not issue any debentures during the year.
20. The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue during the year.

21. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
such case by the management.

For M.\B.ADVANI & CO.

(Proprietor) \ ’
Membership No. - 037657
Place: Mumbai

Dated: August 12, 2013



MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013

Particulars Notes As at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds

Share Capital 3 10,00,000 10,00,000

Reserves and Surplus 4 1,24,60,146 32,75,468
Current liabilities

Trade payables 5 33,12,783 16,97,966

Other current liabilities 6 1,63,05,397 2,56,74,931

Short-term provisions 7 52,28,225 19,87,597
TOTAL 3,83,06,551 3,36,35,962
ASSETS
Non-current assets

Fixed Assets

Tangible assets 8 2,59.,43,431 1,92,43,181

Long-term loans and advances 9 42.42.880 41,87,615
Current assets

Cash and bank balances 10 42,00,585 70,58,267

Short-term loans and advances 9 39,19,655 31,46,899
TOTAL 3,83,06,551 3,36,35,962
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's Report

Signed in terms of separate report of even date.

M.B. ADVANI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

kesh Advani
Proprietor
Membership No.- 037657

Date: August 12,2013

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of

Directors
{ (g

Raman Uberoi
Director

7

Trevor Foster Black
Director

Date: August 12,2013




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2013

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
INCOME
Income from operations 11 7,56,16,214 2,73,72,510
TOTAL 7,56,16,214 2,73,72,510
EXPENDITURE
Personnel expenses 12 3,19,38,044 43,23,459
Establishment expenses 13 1,56,44,838 72,65,273
Other expenses 14 87,35,213 98,65,632
Depreciation 8 77,63,441 17,42,677
TOTAL 6,40,81,536 2,31,97,042
Profit Before Exceptional And
Extraordinary Items And Tax (I-IT) 1,15,34,678 41,75,468
Exceptional Item - -
Profit Before
Extraordinary Items And Tax (ITI-TV) 1,15,34,678 41,75,468
Extraordinary Items - -
Profit Before Tax 1,15,34,678 41,75,468
Tax Expense
Current tax 23,50,000 9,00,000
Deferred tax charge / (Benefit) - -
Income Tax of earlier years - -
Total tax expense 23,50,000 9,00,000
Profit after tax 91,84,678 32,75,468
Profit for the year from operations 91,84,678 32,75,468
Earnings per share : Nominal value of Rs.10 per share :
Basic 91.85 34.36
Diluted 91.85 34.36
Number of shares used in computing earnings per share
Basic 1,00,000 95,315
Diluted 1,00,000 95,315
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's Report
Signed in t¢rms of separate report of even date.
M.B. ADVANI & CO.

Direct%

Trevor Foster Black
Director

Proprietor
Membership No.- 037657

Date: August 12,2013 Date: August 12,2013

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of

Raman Uberoi
Director




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2013

2.1

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Nature of Operations
The Company is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing Services.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on
an accrual basis in compliance with all material aspect of the Accounting Standard (AS) Notified by Companies Accounting Standard Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the
previous year.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current/ Non-Current classification of assets and liabilities

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company 's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the
Companies Act, 1956. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of current — Non Current classification of assets and liabilities

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the
reporting year end. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions,actual results could differ from these estimates.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use.ltems of fixed asset held for disposal are stated at lower of the net book value and net realisable value and are shown
under other current assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on all the assets under Written-Down value Method on pro-rata basis on the assets, which were in use during the year at the rates prescribed in
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. If the assets are purchased during the year, depreciation is provided on pro - rata basis from the date the assets are installed
In case the assets are sold, depreciation is provided on the same upto the date of sale on pro - rata basis

Assets Schedule X1V
Rates (WDV)
Furniture & Fixtures 18.10%
Office Equipments 13.91%
Computers 40.00%

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term on Straight Line Basis.

Impairment
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is

recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value at interest rate specific to the asset and in case where the specific rate
is not avatilable at the weighted average cost of capital which is adjusted for country risk/currency risk

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life

Operating_l.eases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantally all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease

payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-
term investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at
cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Income from Operations

Income from Operations comprises of Income from Researched Data Processing Services and same is recognised for on accrual basis when the service has been
provided and in accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the company and the counter party.

Interest Income
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Chartergy Accuumanl*
Munbership No.
37657



MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2013

29

2.10

211

212

214

2.15

Retirement_and other employee benefits
Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities or trusts.

Contribution to Gratuity fund of LIC is made and Actuarial valuation is obtained to ascertain the liability. During the year gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of
an Actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of financial year.

Compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.

Foreign Currency Transactiong

Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amounts, the monthly average exchange rates for the respective
periods in which the transaction takes place.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rates. Non monetary items which are carried in terms of historical costs denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Ixchange Difference

Exchange differences relating to long term monetary items, arising during the year, such differences are accumulated in the “ Foreign Currency Monetary Item
Translation Account” and amortised to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the balance life of the long term monetary item. All other exchange differences are
recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-
monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate that existed, when the
values were determined. Exchange differences arising as a result of the above are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss

FExchange Difference

It was observed that the foreign currency transactions have been accounted in accordance with AS-11 issued by the ICAIL Monetary transactions arising in foreign
currency during the year are converted at Bank rates as per Bank advice received during the year. In absence of Bank intimation, and for transactions outstanding as on
the year end date, the exchange rate prevailing on that date is taken

Taxes On Income

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian
Income Tax Act of 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income
for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

As the company operates from a Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and is liable to pay Income Tax on its book profits as per provisions of Section 115JB of the Income Tax
Act, 1961, hence there are no timing differences which arise between taxable income and accounting income. Thus there are no deferred tax assets or liabilities

Segment Reporting Policies
Segment Policies

The Company mainly is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing Services and primarily concentrated in one geographical location. Hence there is only

one segment of business.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with original maturity of three months or less




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

3|Share Capital March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees

Authorised Capital:
100,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
100,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up (P.Y. 100,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)
1,000,000 1,000,000

Total 1,000,000 1,000,000

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period

Fquity shares

March 31, 2013
Rs. Nos.
At the beginning of the period (face value of RS.10/- per share) 1,000,000 100,000
Add: Shares issues during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 1,000,000 100,000
March 31, 2012
Rs Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Re. 10/- per share) 100,000 10,000
Add: Shares issues during the year 900,000 90,000
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,000,000 100,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/ associates are
as below:

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Particulars Rupees Rupees
100,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 are held by CRISIL Ltd (Holding Company) 1,000,000 -
99,990 Equity Shares of Rs.10 are held by Coalition Singapore PTE Ltd (Hotding Company) - 999,900
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Name of the shareholder March 31, 2013
% holding in the class Nos.
Equity shares of RS. 10 - each fully paid
CRISIL Ltd 100.00% 100,000
Name of the shareholder March 31, 2012
% holding in the class Nos
Eguity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Coalition Development Singapore Pte Ltd 99.99% 99,990
4{Reserves and Surplus March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
1.Surplus:
Surplus/ {deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 3,275,468 -
Add: Profit after tax for the year 9,184,678 3,275,468
Less: Appropriations(if an - -
Total appropriations - -
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 12,460,146 3,275,468
Total 12,460,146 3,275,468
5|Trade Payables March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Current
Trade payables (Refer Note No. 16) 3,312,783 1,697,966
Total 3,312,783 , 1,697,966

Charterey /\csuumamir
Membership No.
37657



MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

6] Other liabilities

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Rupees Rupees
(a)Current
Statutory Dues 603,226 403,184
Unearned revenue/ Fees received in advance 15,702,171 25,271,747
Total 16,305,397 25,674,931
7[Provisions March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
(a)Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for bonus 3,684,373 1,087,597
Provision for leave encashment 1,543,852 -
5,228,225 1,087,597
Other provisions
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) - 900,000
- 900,000
Total 5,228,225 1,987,597
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MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

9|Loans and Advances March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
(a)Current
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances 206,660 1,599,602
Loans and Advances to related parties 1,068,785 -
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 299 1,180,412
Other loans and advances
Loan and advances to employees 752,941 47,229
Prepaid expenses 1,095,380 128,152
Gratuity Contributions (refer Note No. 23) 795,590 191,504
Total 3,919,655 3,146,899
{b}Non-Current
Unsecured,considered good
Security deposit 4,187,615 4,187,615
Advance Income Tax(Net of provision for taxation) 55,265 -
Total 4,242,880 4,187,615
10| Cash and bank balances March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash equivalents
(i)Cash in hand - -
(ii)Balances with banks:
— In current accounts 4,200,585 7,058,267
Total 4,200,585 7,058,267
11]|Income from operations March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Researched Data Processing Service 75,616,214 27,372,510
Total 75,616,214 27,372,510
12| Personnel expenses March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Staff Salaries and Bonus 24,468,247 3,730,012
Leave Encashment 1,636,785 -
Contribution to.
Provident fund 408,753 64,511
Other Funds(Refer note 23) 156,787 46,896
Staff welfare expenses 5,190,205 468,919
Staff Insurance and Mediclaim 77,267 13,121
Total 31,938,044 4,323,459
13| Establishment Expenses March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings 1,770,469 576,490
Repairs and maintenance - Others 2,867,989 3,040,713
Electricity 652,351 290,768
Communication expenses 3,806,234 1,461,607
Insurance 132,251 36,755
Rent (Refer Note No.22 ) 6,415,544 1,858,940
Total 15,644,838 7,265,273
14| Other Expenses March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Rupees Rupees
Asset Usage Charges (152,521) -
Foreign Exchange Loss (net) 3,248,093 3,617,088
Service Tax 31,264 15,426
Bank Charges 57,305 10,304
Printing and stationery 236,463 -
Stamp Duty & other Legal Expenses 102,727 15,960
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 2,027,362 1,219,473
Books and periodicals 217,610 -
Postage & Courier 27,163 -
Professional fees 1,832,228 708,594
Auditors' remuneration(Refer Note No. 18) 115,000 25,000
Pre-operative Expenses Written off - 4,194,314
Membership & Subscription Charges 603,128 8,093
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 389,391 51,381
Total 8,735,213 9,865,632

Crartered Accountant
froebership No.
37657




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2013

15 Details of Contingent liabilities are as under :
The Company has received a notice for non-payment of Cess to the Navi Mumbai Municipal Corporation.Proviston for payment of Cess upto March 2013 amounting to
Rs 149,704/~ has been made in the books However the Company may be liable for penalty for non payment of the above Cess to the extent of the amount of cess not
paid The same has not been provided in the accounts as the assessment proceedings are yet to be concluded

16 The Company has the process of identification of “suppliers’ registered under the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006” by
obtaining confirmations from suppliers. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 to whom the company owes dues on account of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been made.

17 Payment in Foreign Currency
a)  Value of imports calculated on C.LF basis for Capital goods:

Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Value OFf Capital goods imported on C.1F Basis 5,104,112 9.857,855
Total 5,104,112 9,857,855
b) Amount remitted during the year in foreign currency, on account of expenses
Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Travel Expenses - 913,707
Subscription fee 42,480 -
Total 42,480 913,707
18 Auditors' Remuneration includes :
Particulars March 31,2013 | March 31,2012
Audit Fees 85,000 20,000
Taxation Matters 30,000 5,000
Total 115,000 25,000
19 Segment Reporting
Business Segments:
The Company's main business is to provide researched data processing services. The business operations of the company are primarily concentrated in one geographical
location. As such, there is no separate reportable segment as per accounting standard 17 on segment reporting.
20 List of Related Parties
Parties Relationship
Related parties where control exists
CRISIL Limited Holding Company
Coalition Development Singapore Pte Ltd Fellow Subsidiary
Coalition Development Systems India Pvt Ltd Fellow Subsidiary
21 Related Party Disclosure
Name of the related party Nature of transaction March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Coalition Development Singapore Pte Ltd Service Charges Charged 75,616,214 27,372,510
Advance Received 15,702,171 25,271,747
Share capital outstanding - 999,900
.. . Reimbursement of
Coalition Development Systems India Pvt Ltd Expenses paid 5,064,245 R
Amount receivable 1,068,785 -
CRISIL Ltd Share capital outstanding 1,000,000 -
22 Operating Lease

‘The Company has taken certain office premises on non cancelable operating lease basis. Some of these agreements have a price escalation clause.
Details as regards payments and future commitments are as under :

Particulars March 31,2013 | March 31,2012
Lease Payment recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 6,415,544 1,858,940
Future Minimum Lease Payments :

Not later than One Year 5,576,820 5,576,820
Later than One Year & not later than Five Years 3,717,880 9,294,700
Later than Five Years - -
Total 9,294,700 14,871,520




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part Of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2013

23 Employee Retiral Benefits : (AS 15)(As per Actuarial Valuation Report)

demand in the employment market.

Balance Sheet for the respective plans.

Statement of Profit and Loss:
Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn
salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the

Particulars

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Current Service cost 1,18,304 46,668
Interest cost 3,967 -
Expected return on plan assets (23,840) -
Net actuarial (gain) loss recognised in the year 57,576 (276)
Past service cost - -
Net Gratuity Benefit Expense 1,56,007 46,392

Balance Sheet:
Details of Provision for Gratuity Benefit

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Present value of funded obligations
Less: Fair value of plan assets
Net (Liability)/Asset

(2,30,750) (46,668)
10,26,340 2,80,476
7,95,590 2,33,808

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 46,668 -
Current Service Cost 1,18,304 46,668
Interest Cost 3,967 -
Plan Amendment Cost - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss 61,811 -
Benefits paid - -
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 2,30,750 46,668
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Opening Fair value of plan assets 2,80,476 -
Expected return on plan assets 23,840 -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) 4,235 276
Contribution by employer 7,117,789 2,80,200
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 10,26,340 2,80,476

Experience Adjustment

Particulars

April 01,2012 - March 31, 2013

On plan liability(gain)/losses
On plan assets(losses)/gains

83,577
4,239

The principal assumptions used in determining Gratuity for the Company’s plans is as below:

Particulars March 31,2013 March 31, 2012

Discount Rate 8.00%) 8.50%)
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 8.70%) 8.50%)
Attrition Rate 12.00% 2.00%
Salary Escalation 6.00%) 6.00%

demand in the employment market.

24 Previous year comparatives
Previous year's figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current year's classification.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and

Auditor's Report
Signed in ternfis of separate report of even date.
M.B. ADVANY & CO. T

Proprietor

Membership No.- 037657
Date: August 12,2013
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For An Behalf Of The Board Of

Direc]

Trevor Foster Black
Director

Date: August 12,2013
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Raman Uberoi
Director




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2013

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2012

A. |Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
Profit before tax
Adjustments for :

Depreciation
Operating profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital
- Increase/(decrease) in Provisions
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
- (Increase)/decrease in advances
- Increase/(decrease) in sundry creditors
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities
Cash generated from operations
- Taxes paid
Net cash generated from operating activities - (A)

B. [Cash flow from investing activities :

Purchase of fixed assets
Net cash generated from investing activities - (B)

C [Cash flow from Financing Activity:

1,15,34,678 41,75,468
77,63,441 17,42,677
1,92,98,119 59,18,145
32,40,628 ;
(11,61,600)
(7,26,736) (61,03,336)
16,14,817 2,84,41,076
(93,69,534) -
1,40,57,294 2,70,94,285
24,51,286 -
1,16,06,008 2,70,94,285

(1,44,63,690)

(2,09,85,858)

(1,44,63,690)

(2,09,85,858)

Issue of Shares - 9,00,000
Net cash generated from financing activities - (C) - 9,00,000
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (28,57,682) 70,08,426
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance as on 1 April 2012 70,58,267 49,841
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing balance as on 31 March 2013 42,00,585 70,58,267
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (28,57,682) 70,08,426
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at

with Bank on current account 42.00,585 70,58,267

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Auditor's Report
Signed in t¢rms of separate report of even date

*
Charterad Accountant
Meinbership Ng.
37657

Proprietor
Membership No.- 037657
Date: August 12,2013

For and on Behalf of the board of Directors
QQW\‘

Raman Uberoi
Director

4

Trevor Foster Black
Director

Date: August 12,2013




C.A. MUKESH B. ADVANI
BCOM.FCA. . %

THE MEMBERS OF MERCATOR INFOSERVICES INDIA PRIVATE
LIMITED . e T

Report on the Financial Statements

1. T have audited the accompanying financial statements of MERCATOR INFO-
SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which compnse the
Balance Sheet as at June 30™ 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss , the. Cash

Flow Statement for the period 01% April 2015 to 30™ June 2015, and a summary of

the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

: | :
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is respoﬁsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with tespect to the preparation of |

| these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial pos_iﬁon,
financial performahce. & cash flows of the Company in gccordance with the
accounting principles generaliy accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; This respohsibility also- includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in acbordanée_ with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and: for preventingf and deté¢ting frauds
and other :irrégularities; selection and applilc;vatio;l of: appropriate accgunting'
policies; making judgments and estimates that aré reasonable and prudent; and

design, implementation and ‘maintenance of ad‘eqiuatefintemai financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the

For Mercator Info-Systetns India Private Limited

s

Director / Authorised Signatary

\, Memberskip No.
37657,

e e et




accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. I have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

4. 1 conducted your audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to
the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company has in
place all adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and

the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the

appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial statements.




6.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained by me is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for my audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

7.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations
given to me, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at June 30" 2015, and its profits and its cash flows for the period 01*
April 2015 to 30" June 2015.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, I report that:

(2) I have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of your audit.

(b) In my opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by

the Company so far as it appears from my examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In my opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
June 30™ 2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as June 30'™ 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of

Section 164(2) of the Act.




9. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to me:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M.BABVANI & CO.

* tant
nartored Accounie
\ Mompershtp No.

17657

Membership No. — 037657
Place : Mumbai
Date : 17" October 2015




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2015

Particulars Notes As at
June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Rupees Rupees

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’' Funds

Share Capital 3 1,000,000 1,000,000

Reserves and Surplus 66,017,200 57,920,848
Non-Current liabilities

Trade Payables 5 3,977,134 3,510,363
Current liabilities

Trade payables 6 14,380,659 16,419,862

Other liabilities 1,792,201 1,602,608

Provisions 8 18,475,616 12,425,057
TOTAL 105,642,810 92,878,738
ASSETS
Non-current assets

Fixed Assets

Tangible assets 9 51,848,315 46,573,929

Loans and advances 10 5,105,854 5,343,318
Current assets

Trade Receivables 11 18,954,412 9,405,625

Loans and advances 12 8,776,192 6,192,339

Cash and bank balances 13 20,958,037 25,363,527
TOTAL ' 105,642,810 92,878,738
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors of

MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (1) PVT. LTD.

Cratered Aol M&J/\J/\Qb\/ L —
Mo Rajasekhar Kaza man Uberoi
Director Director

Membership No.- 037657

Date: 17th October 2015 Date: 17th October 2015




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
o Statement of Profit & Loss for the period April to June 30, 2015
Particulars 3 months period ended | 3 months period ended
Notes June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Rupees Rupees
INCOME :
Income from operations 14 66,898,582 51,921,975
Other Income 15 943,584 14,074
TOTAL 67,842,166 51,936,049
EXPENDITURE '
Personnel expenses 16 41,293,888 25,879,031
Establishment expenses 17 6,180,425 7,994,361
Other expenses 18 6,171,635 8,027,360
Depreciation . 9 4,026,346 2,114,996
TOTAL 57,672,294 44,015,748
Profit Before Tax 10,169,872 7,920,301
Tax Expense
Current tax 2,073,520 1,571,718
Deferred tax charge / (Benefit) - : -
Total tax expense 2,073,520 ' 1,571,718
Profit after tax 8,096,352 _ 6,348,583
Profit for the period from operations
8,096,352 6,348,583
Earnings per share : Nominal value of Rs.10/- per share :
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share for 3 months 80.96 63.49
Number of shares used in computing earnings per share
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share 100,000 100,000
Summary of significant accounting policies 2 -
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors of
MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (l) PVT. LTD.
Membership No.
37657 Rajasekhar Kaza aman Uberoi
Director Director
Membership No.- 037657 :
Date: 17th October 2015 Date: 17th October 2015




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for 3 months ended 30 June 2015

Particulars June 30, 2015
A |Cash Flow from operating activities :
Profit before tax 10,169,872
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 4,026,346
Forex (Gain) / Loss (108,328)
Interest Income (260)
Operating profit before working capital changes 14,087,630
Movements in working capital
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (9,440,459)
- (Increase)/decrease in advances (2,346,389)
- Increase/(decrease) in sundry creditors (1,572,432)
- Increase/(decrease) in Provisions 6,050,559
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 189,593
Cash generated from operations 6,968,502
- Taxes paid 2,073,520
Net cash generated from operating activities - (A) 4,894,981
B.|Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of fixed assets (9,300,732)
Interest Income 260
Net cash generated from investing activities - (B) (9,300,472)
C.|Cash flow from financing activities:
Net cash generated from financing activities - (C) -
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (4,405,491)
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance 25,363,527
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing balance 20,958,037
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (4,405,490)
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at June 30, 2015
Cash on hand 75,966
with Bank on current account 20,882,071
Total 20,958,037

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our r¢port of even date

Membership No.- 037657
Date: 17th October 2015

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors of
MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (1) PVT. LTD.

-

"Rajaseckhar Kaza Raman Uberoi
Director Director

Date: 17th October 2015
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MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of the Financial S t

1 Nature of Operations
The Company is in the business of providing Researched Data Processing Services.

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India,
mandatory accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (* the 2013 Act”), read together with paragraph 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis.
The accounting policies applied by the company are consistent with those used in the previous period.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non- current as per the company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set
out in Revised Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose
of current / non- current classification of assets and liabilities.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
2.

Use of Estiates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

2.2 Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.Items of fixed asset held for disposal are stated at lower of
the net book value and net realisable value and are shown under other current assets.

2.3 Depreciation
Considering the applicability of Schedule II, the r gement has re-estimated useful lives and residual values of all its fixed assets. The

management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of fixed assets,
though these rates in certain cases are different from lives prescribed under Schedule I1.

Fixed Asset purchased during the period, depreciation is provided on pro — rata basis from the date the assets are installed. In case the assets
are sold, depreciation is provided on the same upto the date of sale on pro — rata basis.The perpetual software licenses are depreciated over a
period of three (3) years . The non-perpetual licenses are writtenoff in the license period.

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term or useful life of the asset, whichever is lower.

2.4 Impairment
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external
factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

2.5 Operating Leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.6 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured.
Income from operations comprises of income from research activities carried out by the Company during the period. Revenue is recognised
based on mark up over cost incurred.

Interest Income
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

2.7 Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution
payable to the respective authorities.

The Company provides gratuity a defined benefit plan to the eligible employees. Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial
valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred.

2.8 Foreign Cumrency Transactions
Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in reporting currency (INR) by applying to the foreign currency amounts, the monthly average
exchange rates for the respective periods in which the transaction takes place.

Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rates. Non monetary items which are carried in terms of historical costs
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange Difference

Exchange differences relating to long term monetary items, arising during the period, such differences are accumulated in the “Foreign
Currency Monetary Item Translation Account” and amortised to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the balance life of the long term
monetary item. All other exchange differences are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rate that existed, when the values were determined. Exchange differences arising as a result of the above are
recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.9 Taxes On Income
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred. Current incoine tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act of 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current period timing |
differences between taxable incoine and accounting income for the period and reversal of timing differences of earlier period.

+  As the company operates from a Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and is liable to pay Income Tax on its book profits as per provisions of
Section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961, hence there are no timing differences which arise between taxable income and accounting
income. Thus there are no deferred tax assets or liabilities.

2.10 Segment Reporting Policies
The Company is engaged in providing low risk IT enabled services which in the context of Accounting Standard- 17 “Segment Reporting”

notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is
considered as the only segment. The Coinpany’s activities are restricted within India and hence no separate geographical segment disclosure
is considered necessary.

N
=

Eamings Per Share
Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.12 Provisions
A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and
are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

2.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term investinents with original maturity of

three months or less.




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements

3|Share Capital As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
Rupees Rupees
Authorised Capital:
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up (P.Y. 1,00,000 shares of]
Rs. 10/-each) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total 1,000,000 1,000,000
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Equity shares
As at June 30, 2015
Rupees. Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Rs.10/- per share) 1,000,000 100,000
Add: Shares issues during the period - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 1,000,000 100,000
As at March 31, 2015
Rupees. Nos.
At the beginning of the year (face value of Rs.10/- per share) 1,000,000 100,000
Add: Shares issues during the period - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 1,000,000 100,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

vote per share.

shareholders.

associates are as below:

(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining "assets of the Company,
afiter distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/

As at June 30, 2015

As at March 31, 2015
Particulars Rupees Rupees
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- are held by CRISIL Ltd (Holding Company) 1,000,000 1,000,000
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Name of the sharcholder As at June 30, 2015
% holding in the class Nos.
| |Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
CRISIL Ltd 100.00% 100,000

Name of the shareholder

As at March 31, 2015

% holding in the class

Nos.

| Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each gllg gaid

CRISIL Ltd

100.00%

100,000




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements

4|Reserves and Surplus As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31,2015
Rupees Rupees
Surplus:
Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 57,920,848 29,194,399
Profit for the period 8,096,352 28,726,449
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 66,017,200 57,920,848
Total 66,017,200 57,920,848
As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
5 [Trade Payables
Rupees Rupees
Non-Current )
Trade payables (Refer Note No. 20) 3,977,134 3,510,363
Total 3,977,134 3,510,363
6{Trade Payables As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
Rupees Rupees
Current
Trade payables (Refer Note No. 20) 14,380,659 16,419,862
Total 14,380,659 16,419,862
As at June 30,2015 As at March 31, 2015
7 |Other liabilities
Rupees Rupees
Current
Other Current Liabilities 1,792,201 1,602,608
Total 1,792,201 1,602,608
As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31,2015
8 |Provisions
Rupees Rupees
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for bonus 14,964,918 6,895,703
Provision for Gratuity 291,190 3,754,354
Provision for leave encashment 2,428,372 1,775,000
Sub-Total 17,684,480 12,425,057
Other provisions
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 791,136 -
Sub-Total 791,136 -
Total 18,475,616 12,425,057




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

9. Fixed Assets

in Rupees
Gross Block at Cost Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization Net Block
Ason Additions Deductions / Ason Upto For the Deductions / Up to Ason Ason
April 1, 2015 Adjustments June 30, 2015 April 1, 2015 Period Adjustments June 30, 2015 June 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Tangible assets
Fumniture & Fixtures 9,731,547 392,070 - 10,123,617 2,324,590 337,651 - 2,662,241 7,461,376 7,406,957
Office Equipments 10,324,568 82,297 - 10,406,865 3,226,265 270,849 - 3,497,114 6,909,751 7,098,303
Computers 36,983,829 8,691,440 - 45,675,269 21,956,447 2,757,692 - 24,714,139 20,961,130 15,027,382
Software Purchase - 134,925 - 134,925 17,547 - 17,547 117,378 -
Leasehold Improvements 20,222,165 - - 20,222,165 3,180,878 642,607 - 3,823,485 16,398,680 17,041,287
Total 77,262,109 9,300,732 - 86,562,841 30,688,180 4,026,346 - 34,714,526 51,848,315 46,573,929
Ason Additions Deductions / Ason Up to For the Deductions / Up to As on As on
April 1,2014 Adjustments March 31,2015 April 1, 2014 Year Adjustments March 31, 2015 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Tangible assets
Furniture & Fixtures 4,122,159 5,228,091 (381,297) 9,731,547 1,245,960 1,078,630 - 2,324,590 7,406,957 2,876,199
Office Equipments 7,780,866 2,924,999 381,297 10,324,568 2,009,827 1,243,715 27,277 3,226,265 7,098,303 5,771,039
Computers 28,101,044 8,882,785 - 36,983,829 13,599,096 8,330,074 (27,277) 21,956,447 15,027,382 14,501,948
Leasehold Improvements 5,596,361 14,625,804 - 20,222,165 1,251,801 1,929,077 - 3,180,878 17,041,287 4,344,560
Total 45,600,430 31,661,679 0 77,262,109 18,106,684 12,581,496 - 30,688,180 46,573,929 27,493,746
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MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements

10|Loans and Advances As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
Rupees Rupees
Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good
Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) - 169,283
Prepaid expenses 603,743 671,924
Cenvat Credit Receivable 220,496 220,496
Sundry Deposits 4,281,615 4,281,615
Total 5,105,854 5,343,318
11|Trade Receivables As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Unsecured, considered good 18,954,412 9,405,625
Total 18,954,412 9,405,625
As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
12|Loans and Advances
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 2,312,841 86,405
Other loans and advances
Loans and advances to employees 794,400 788,930
Other loans and advances 3,295,805 2,195,473
Prepaid expenses 2,365,834 3,121,531
Capital advances 7,312 -
Total 8,776,192 6,192,339
As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
13{Cash and bank balances )
Rupees Rupees
Cash and cash equivalents
(i)Cash in hand 75,966 75,966
(ii)Balances with banks:
— In current accounts 20,882,071 25,287,561
Total 20,958,037 25,363,527




MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements
3 months ended June 30, 3 months ended June 30,
14{Income from operations 2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
Researched Data Processing Services 66,898,582 51,921,975
Total 66,898,582 51,921,975
3 months ended June 30,} 3 months ended June 30,
15{Other Income 2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
Miscellaneous Income 5,347 14,074
Foreign Exchange Gain (net) 937,977 -
Interest income 260 -
Total 943,584 14,074
3 months ended June 30,| 3 months ended June 30,
16| Personnel expenses 2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
Staff salaries and bonus 37,215,851 23,520,538
Leave encashment 700,000 848,929
Contribution to:
Provident fund 852,416 322,820
Other funds 573,000 285,925
Staff Training & Welfare Expenses 923,533 320,602
Staff Insurance and Mediclaim 1,029,088 580,217
Total 41,293,888 25,879,031
3 months ended June 30, | 3 months ended June 30,
17|Establishment Expenses 2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
Repairs and Maintenance-Building 1,323,486 | 727,444
Repairs and Maintenance-Others 1,695,983 4,448,410
Electricity 474,768 307,661
Communication expenses 1,059,002 905,533
Insurance - 5,474
Premises Rent (Refer Note No.26) 1,627,186 1,599,839
Total 6,180,425 7,994,361
3 months ended June 30,] 3 months ended June 30,
18|Other Expenses 2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
Foreign Exchange Loss (net) - 1,364,908
Bank Charges 70,545 51,475
Printing and Stationery 130,946 81,425
Travelling & Conveyance 2,103,731 3,166,373
Books and periodicals 505,388 1,543,925
Professional fees 2,733,848 892,875
Auditors' remuneration (Refer Note No. 22) 25,000 20,000
Miscellaneous Expense 161,480 43,658
Membership and subscription 88,984 151,037
Recruitment Expenses 351,713 711,684
Total 6,171,635 8,027,360
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19 Details of Contingent liabilities are as under :
(i) There are no contingent liabilities as on the balance sheet date and thus no relevant disclosure has been made in this regards. (Mar-15: Rs.

NIL)

(i) Estimate amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. 477,733 (PY: RS.
7,202,049)

20 The Company has a process of identification of ‘suppliers’ registered under the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
(‘MSMED’) Act, 2006” by obtaining confirmations from suppliers. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the
Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom any amount was payable on account of principal amount or interest,

accordingly no additional disclosures have been made.

21 Payment in Foreign Currency

a) Value of imports calculated on C.LF basis for Capital goods:

Particulars 3 months ended June | 3 months ended June
30,2015 30,2014
Rupees Rupees

Value Of Capital goods imported on C.LF 8,399,675 983,311

Total 8,399,675 983,311

b) Amount remitted during the period in foreign currency, on account of expenses

Particulars

3 months ended June

3 months ended June

30,2015 30,2014

Rupees Rupees
Travel Expenses 792,848 2,159,270
Other - 343,009
Total 792,848 2,502,279

22 Auditors' Remuneration includes :

Particulars 3 months ended June | 3 months ended June
30,2015 30,2014
Rupees Rupees

Audit Fees 25,000 20,000

Total 25,000 20,000

23 Earnings in foreign currency

- For 3 month ended June 30, 2015 Rs. 66,898,582 {For 3 months ended June 30, 2014 Rs. 51,921,975)
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MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

List of Related Parties

Parties

Relationship

Related parties where control exists
Capital 1Q, Inc

CRISIL Limited

Coalition Development Singapore Pte Ltd
Coalition Development Systems (I) Pvt Ltd

Fellow Subsidiary
Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Related Party Disclosure

Name of the related party Nature of transaction 3 months ended June | 3 months ended
30,2015 June 30,2014
Rupees Rupees
Coalition Development Singapore Pte Ltd Service Income 66,898,582 51,921,975
Coalition Development Systems (I) Pvt Ltd Reimbursement of Expenses received 314,046 884,723
Reimbursement of Expenses Paid 4,486 -
CRISIL Ltd Reimbursement of Expenses Paid 1,177,759 297,789
Capital IQ, Inc Subscription fees paid 469,588 472,546
Name of the related party Nature of transaction As at June 30,2015 [ As at March 31,
Rupees 2015
Rupees
Coalition Development Singapore Pte Ltd Amount receivable 18,954,412 9,405,625
CRISIL Ltd Share capital outstanding 1,000,000 1,000,000

Operating Lease

The Company has taken certain office premises on cancelable operating lease basis. Some of these agreements have a price escalation clause.
Details as regards payments and future commitments are as under : )

Particulars 3 inonths ended June | 3 months ended June
30, 2015 30,2014
Rupees Rupees

Lease Payment recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 1,627,186 1,599,839

As at June 30, 2015

As at March 31,

Rupees 2015
Future Minimum Lease Payments :
Not later than One Year 6,413,343 6,413,343
Later than One Year & not later than Five Years 28,138,542 27,898,042
Later than Five Years 11,554,706 13,398,542
Total 46,106,591 47,709,927
Details of unhedged foreign exposure
Particulars As at June 30, 2015 As at March 31, 2015
Rupees Rupees
Currency Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
SGD 18,697,026 - 10,049,605 -
Total 18,697,026 - 10,049,605 -

Previous year figures of Cash Flow Statement have not been provided as the Company has opted exemption as per para 44 of notified
acounting standard 25, "Interim Financial Reporting”
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28 Previous period comparatives
Figures for the period April 01, 2014 to June 30, 2014 are unaudited and compiled by the management, and have been regrouped/reclassified

wherever necessary to confirm to current period’s classification

As per our report of even date

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors of
MERCATOR INFO-SERVICES () PVT. LTD.

4 Chartered Accountant WW

Membership No.”/ Rajasekhar Kaza Raman Uberoi
Director Director

Membership No.- 03765

Date: 17th October 2015 Date: 17th October 2015






